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Corporate
Profile

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a Hong Kong-based retail operator
that specializes in the operation of mid to upper-end
department stores in Hong Kong and mainland China. The
Group’s two SOGO stores in Hong Kong including the flagship
store in Causeway Bay (“SOGO CWB"), the largest and leading
department store in Hong Kong, as well as the Tsim Sha Tsui
store ("SOGO TST"). SOGO TST has ceased business in February
and reopened in November at an arterial road in the key
shopping area of Tsim Sha Tsui with encouraging results in the
two months period in 2014. In mainland China, we have four
stores in operation and our Shanghai Jiuguang store was first
established in 2004 with a similar business format to that of our
flagship SOGO CWB, and is now widely recognized as one of the
most sought-after shopping locations in Shanghai. Since their
opening in January and May 2009 respectively, our Suzhou
Jiuguang and Dalian Jiuguang have been gaining traction and
delivering satisfactory performances. Shenyang Jiuguang, our
fourth Jiuguang Store in mainland China, got off to a steady
start and performed in a stable manner throughout 2014. The
Group’s commercial complex project in Zhabei, Shanghai is
currently under construction and is preliminarily scheduled for
completion in 2018. This project is in line with the Group’s
strategy of expanding sensibly in mainland China. Upon
commencement of operation, the Zhabei project is expected to
strengthen the Group’s presence and influence in Shanghai.

The Group’s retailer brand names — SOGO and Jiuguang — have
become household names over the years, and enabled the
Group and its management team to develop concrete retail
brand building and management expertise, which is leveraged
on to further expand its business into other cities in China. With
the Group’s strong financial position and operating cash flows as
well as its unparalleled brand equity, the Group is always
prepared to take on new investment opportunities to further
fuel its growth momentum in the future.
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Corporate Information
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company Secretary
Mr. Poon Fuk Chuen, Terry (CPA)

Authorised Representatives
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Mr. Poon Fuk Chuen, Terry (CPA)

Audit Committee

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (ACA, FTIHK)
(Chairman of the Audit Committee)

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, Stephen

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (ACA, FTIHK)
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, Stephen
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Corporate Information (continued) ®%#&% (/&)

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Principal Banker
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Auditor
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Solicitors
Reed Smith Richards Butler
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

Hong Kong Share Registrar and Transfer Office
(Branch Registrar)

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Cayman Islands Share Registrar and Transfer Office
(Registrar)

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman lIslands

Share Information

Place of listing: Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1212

Board lot: 500 shares

Financial year end: 31 December

Share price at 31 December 2014: HK$16.32

Market capitalization at 31 December 2014: HK$26,592 million

Website
www.lifestylehk.com.hk
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Operating Results & & £ 4&
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HK'000 F#7T 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(Restated)
(E5)
Sales proceeds 5% A5 708 13,616,709 13,795,500 12,883,804 12,052,081 9,832,734
Turnover & %8 5,969,740 5,955,335 5,523,443 5,131,950 4,317,465
Profit before taxation k& i Ail & 7 2,831,865 3,150,477 2,754,961 2,594,401 1,896,256

Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

REFARRNBHEE AEBGEEF) 2,143,994 2,448,247 2,057,461 1,867,170 1,407,534
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

FREEARZF GBI 131.12 147.83 123.49 111.25 83.9
Total cash dividends per share (HK cents)

FRRIRSAE B 25 (B 59.1 59.1 49.4 44,9 33.7

For the year ended 31st December #Z+—=-A=+—HBI-FE

Turnover Growth & #zEE R
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2014 Sales Proceeds By Market —E— U F#R T2 D 2 HEFBERIE

Hong Kong &&

e closure of old SOGO TST since 12 February
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* New SOGO TST soft-opened on 8 November
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Milestones




e Jul— A
SOGO CWB store underwent a

~ series of renovations to
OCt —|_ ﬂ reinvigorate its leading image. In
July, a brand-new Sogo beauty

The Group introduced Qatar ..., section was opened.

' Investment Authority as its strategic MBESHET—ZIIREBAR
partner and second largest HEQWKBENEN » WA

shareholder. RBREMEREEERE -

K% B3] A Qatar Investment Authority
REEEEIERHE RE ZRKIRE -

Nov ——H

Thankful Week once again set a
record-high daily revenue
exceeding HK$115 million on the
first day.

[ E | FHREBEB e T&ReE
H 835 115,000,000 BT iHERE -

Dec +—_AH

Grand opening of new SOGO TST store.
SHRPEFEEXFAE
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Chief Executive Officer B/EHTE
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Chief Executive

OFffFicer's
Message

The world economic environment in the year 2014 was a mixed
picture. While the performance of big economies such as the US
and China continued to show divergence, Lifestyle International
stayed on course in the execution of its planned business
strategies and adhered to the Group’s objective of creating a
better lifestyle shopping experience for its customers.

During the year, the retail markets of both mainland China and
Hong Kong was sluggish while consumer sentiment remained
weak, due to general economic slowdown and the impact from
China’s anti-grafting measures. However, the Group took this
opportunity to strengthen its competitiveness by reinforcing
the brand equity of its SOGO and Jiuguang operations. Both the
SOGO CWB and Shanghai Jiuguang underwent significant
renovations during the year in order to enhance their appeal.
Given the scale of the renovation works and the need to
minimise the impact to the stores’ normal operations, the
revamp work is planned to be carried out in separate phases,
continuing into 2015 and 2016. All these improvement initiatives
are expected to further enhance the Group’s competitive
positioning, which will result in better store performance in the
foreseeable future.

In 2014, we also had the pleasure of welcoming Qatar
Investment Authority (“QIA") as Lifestyle International’s second
largest shareholder. This partnership highlights the Group’s
long-established business strength and growth potential. We
regard QIA as a high-quality long-term investor and believe that
this strategic partnership will provide us with tremendous
opportunities for potential collaboration in the future.
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Chief Executive Officer's Message (continued) EEHTEHRE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s turnover
was flat, with net profit down by 12.4% to HK$2.14 billion. If the
HK$157.2 million one-off disposal gains in 2013 were excluded,
the profit drop this year was only 6.4%, which was primarily due
to the first full year loss from the Shenyang store and the
absence of profit contribution from the closure of the old SOGO
TST store. Despite a drop in the reported profit, the board of
directors (“Board”) is pleased to recommend a final cash dividend
of 34.3 Hong Kong cents per share. Together with the interim
dividend of 24.8 Hong Kong cents paid during the year, the
dividend for the year 2014 totalled 59.1 Hong Kong cents, same
as the 2013 full year dividend, and represented 45% of the
reported profit.

The slowing trend in the Hong Kong retail market and the
exceptional Occupy Central movement did not hinder SOGO
CWB's growth. As a matter of fact, that store outperformed the
average of the retail market by recording 3.4% sales growth.
During 2014, the Group implemented a series of renovation
works at SOGO CWB, giving the store not only a new look but a
notably broader variety of fashion brands and labels that cater
to different customer groups. These efforts have successfully
reinvigorated SOGO’s leading position as a premium department
store, further proving its commitment to deliver an exciting
shopping experience for its customers. In addition, this has also
increased the store’s efficiency and sales productivity. In keeping
to its commitment, the Group took less than four months to
reopen SOGO TST in Tsim Sha Tsui last November — a strategic
arrangement that coincided with the November Thankful Week
event. The store was quick in gaining a growth momentum that
has generated sales revenue exceeding our management’s
expectation. It is expected that the store’s sales will further
improve when an additional area, previously left vacant due to
approval issues, will be ready for operation before the upcoming
May Thankful Week event.

Meanwhile, given the increased competition and rather weak
domestic consumption trend across the mainland, performance
of the retail market and the department store sector in
particular, has been weak. However, the overall business results
of our Jiuguang stores remain healthy, thanks to Lifestyle
International’s solid business foundation together with our
experienced management teams in handling the mainland
market under the wider economic context. In particular,
Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang continued to
demonstrate their strength amidst severe competition and we
believe their performance is above the sector average.
Meanwhile, the relatively young Shenyang Jiuguang is gradually
strengthening its foothold as the Group continues its effort in
refining its brand and product mix, with the aim of building its
inner strength in serving local customers.
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Chief Executive Officer's Message (continued) EEHTEHRE (&)

We are equally delighted to see the healthy operational
performance of the Beiren Group, a leading retailer based in
Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province in which the Group has equity
interest. For the year 2014, the total sales revenue recorded
small positive growth and the Group’s share of results of
associates (including profit attributable to non-controlling
interest) from the investment was close to HK$348 million,
similar to last year. The operating results in 2014 was impacted
not only by the keen market competition but also the temporary
business disruption from the metro construction work as well as
a store extension project at Beiren’s two major flagship stores in
Shijiazhuang. The disruption is expected to be short-lived and
should imply greater potential for both stores to deliver better
results after the works are completed in the near future.

Our Zhabei project in Shanghai is now in the foundation
construction stage and is tentatively scheduled for completion
in 2018. Meanwhile, we are drawing on our existing resources
and experience in Shanghai to draft sound business plans and
strategies for this new project, with the view of expanding the
Group’s presence in the Yangtze River Delta region. We are
confident that the Zhabei project will be a major milestone in
the development of a mixed use model consisting of both a
department store and a shopping mall.

The Group believes that the mixed picture of the world economy
in 2014 will remain unchanged this coming year, and the Chinese
economy will likely consolidate to a more healthy and sustainable
growth level. The management of Lifestyle International will
remain prudent and cautious with regard to the retail markets in
both mainland China and Hong Kong. However, we are relatively
confident of the Group’s ability to meet these ever-changing
challenges. Regardless of what is in store for 2015, we will stay
focused in maintaining and enhancing the profitability of our
operations and investment through careful planning and
effective execution of various business, marketing and
promotion initiatives. We will take sensible and sound measures
to nurture our younger operations in mainland China, while
continuing on with our renovation programs, with the view of
maintaining and strengthening the edge of our more
established stores in Hong Kong and mainland China. As always,
we will be open to lucrative business opportunities that have
good potential in bringing sustainable returns, not least for our
shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to
all our management team members and staff for their hard
work and contributions to the Group. | also appreciate
wholeheartedly the ongoing support of our customers, business
partners and shareholders. We look forward to your continued
trust and support in the coming years.

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chief Executive Officer

16 March 2015
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Management

Discussion &
Analysis

Market Overview

The world economy was a mixed picture in 2014. While the
recovery story in the US appeared to look more durable, the
Eurozone, however, failed to gain momentum. The slowdown in
the emerging markets continued in 2014 as China’s GDP growth
slowed from 7.7% in 2013 to around 7.4%, the lowest since
1990.

During the year, the anti-corruption drive spearheaded by the
central government had not only hit sales of luxury goods but
also affected demand for staple goods and businesses such as
high-end food and beverages. On the whole, retail sales in
mainland China rose by about 12% year-on-year to
approximately 26.6 trillion yuan, down 1.1 percentage point
from the previous year.

In Hong Kong, from where the bulk of Lifestyle International’s
revenue and profit is derived, economic growth was weaker
than forecast, with the GDP growing only 2.3% in 2014, as
compared to 2.9% in 2013. The rather lacklustre performance
was weighed down by a moderate slowdown in tourist spending
and domestic demand. The Occupy Central movement that took
place during the latter half of the year had inevitably
undermined consumer sentiment, but on balance the impact on
the economy was less significant than initially expected. During
the year, visitor arrivals to Hong Kong continued to grow,
reaching approximately 61 million in total for the whole year,
representing a 12.0% increase year-on-year. In particular,
tourists from mainland China, who accounted for a lion’s share
of tourist spending in Hong Kong, saw a stronger 16.0% growth
over the previous year. For the full year, the value of retail sales
in Hong Kong was stagnant, dipping 0.2% from a year ago, and
compared with an 11% growth in 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B R 2 # (&)

In 2014, the Group remained focused on executing its sound
business strategy anchored around solid objectives, high brand
equity and sensible moves. To ensure its competitive strengths
in the longer term, the Group took careful steps to solidify its
retail operations on its home turf of Hong Kong. Meanwhile,
despite the headwinds in the China market, the Group continued
to take steps to modify its mainland operations so as to enhance
its competitiveness as a lifestyle department store operator. The
management believes its long-standing reputation in offering
high quality products and services and valuable shopping
experiences to customers will continue to enable it to withstand
economic changes.

The year 2014 saw a change in the composition of the
Company’s major shareholders and the Group has the pleasure
to welcome Qatar Investment Authority (“QIA”) as a long-term
strategic investor and the second largest shareholder of the
Company. QIA is a world-class investor with significant
investments globally in the retail sector. It is expected that there
will be ample opportunity for the Group to work with QIA to
develop business together.

Financial Review

During the year, despite the deteriorating market conditions in
both Hong Kong and mainland China, the Group remained
focused on its core retail business, which is anchored around
the strong fundamentals built up by the Group over the past
decade. Marketing, promotion and advertising efforts were
ramped up to maintain and strengthen the brand equity of the
Group’s SOGO and Jiuguang operations. As a result, the Group
was able to deliver a steady and satisfactory performance for
the year 2014, with the aggregate gross sales proceeds held up
at approximately HK$13.6 billion, a mere 1.3% down from 2013.

Despite the somewhat sluggish market sentiment in Hong Kong,
the Group’s SOGO Causeway Bay (“SOGO CWB”) store was
relatively resilient and it outperformed the market average. The
store achieved a 3.4% year-on-year growth in aggregate sales
revenue, reflecting the store’s leading market position in Hong
Kong. Its Kowloon counterpart SOGO Tsim Sha Tsui (“SOGO TST")
store had ceased operation for nine months during the year
before it was soft-reopened again at another premise in the
same shopping hub. It took the Group less than four months to
take over the new premises and soft-open it in November 2014.
The store fared brilliantly in a way that exceeded the
management’s expectation.

Meanwhile, the Group’s operations in mainland China continued
to turn steady in 2014. Their stable results proved their mettle
and reflected the growing strength of the businesses in a
market where competition was, and still is, intense and market
sentiment remains weak. Shanghai Jiuguang experienced
negative growth during the first half of the year partly because
the store carried out a major readjustment of its brand portfolio
and a renovation of its food and confections section. However,
the negative impact proved short-lived and the highly
competent and competitive store was able to turn around its
performance in the second half of the year. Likewise, Suzhou
Jiuguang continued to deliver healthy sales figures. Dalian
Jiuguang was however under greater impact of the external
conditions during the year but its results were within the
management’s expectation. Shenyang Jiuguang, which was
opened in the second half of 2013, performed steadily
throughout the year, although as a young store, it was more
susceptible to the weak local market sentiment and would need
more time to build up its clientele and business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B R 2 # (&)

Turnover and Sales Proceeds

For the year 2014, Lifestyle International’s turnover was flat
when compared with the previous year while total sales
proceeds (net of VAT), derived from both direct and
concessionaire sales transactions, was slightly down by 1.3%. In
terms of sales contribution by region, the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong and mainland China respectively generated
HK$9,910.4 million and HK$3,706.3 million worth of sales
proceeds, accounting for respectively 72.8% and 27.2% (2013:
73.5% and 26.5%) of the Group’s total sales proceeds.

Gross Profit and Concessionaire Rates

The Group’s gross profit margin as a percentage of turnover was
60.0%, compared with 59.8% in 2013. Gross profit totalled
HK$3,583.8 million, up 0.7% from HK$3,560.5 million recorded in
the previous year. During the year, the Group continued to
uphold the strategy of profitable growth with continuous
enhancement of brand and product mix and managed to
improve the average concessionaire rate from approximately
22.7% in 2013 to approximately 23.2% in 2014, amid intense
market competition and a cautious consumer sentiment,
especially in mainland China.

Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders

The Group’s net profit attributable to shareholders for the year
amounted to HK$2,144.0 million, down 12.4% from HKS$2,448.2
million in the previous year. Excluding the one-off gains
recorded in 2013 of HK$107.7 million and HK$49.5 million
respectively realized upon disposal of the Tianjin property and a
trademark, the Group’s core net profit this year was down by
only 6.4% from 2013. While the relatively resilient SOGO CWB
operations helped support the Group’s profit, the first full-year
operating loss of the Shenyang store and the small profit
contribution from SOGO TST, due to closure of the old store in
February before the new store was reopened in November,
have affected the Group’s current year overall performance. As
a result, the Group’s net profit margin, calculated as a
percentage of turnover, contracted from 41.1% in 2013 to
35.9% in 2014.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Aggregate selling and distribution costs of the Group increased
5.5% over the previous year, which was mainly attributable to
higher promotion costs especially at Shanghai Jiuguang and the
full-year impact of the Shenyang store. Total selling and
distribution expenses as a percentage of total sales proceeds
increased slightly from approximately 8.2% in 2013 to 8.8%
which was mainly caused by the relatively low productivity of the
new Shenyang store.

Administrative Expenses

Decrease in the Group’s general administrative expenses during
the year was mainly due to the absence this year of certain IPO
related expenses, which were incurred in 2013 in relation to the
spin-off and separate listing of Lifestyle Properties Development
Limited (“Lifestyle Properties”), the Group’s approximately
60%-owned property development and investment business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & & #wE 54 (&)

Staff Costs

Staff costs (excluding directors) increased 1.9% to approximately
HKS424.3 million during the year under review. Salary and wage
rise of existing staff during the year was largely in line with the
market and general inflation. The total full-time headcount of
the Group at year end was around 2,800 with some 810 working
in Hong Kong and the rest are in mainland China.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Decrease in other income, gains and losses this year was mainly
due to the HKS$80.7 million exchange loss arising from year-end
translation of monetary assets and liabilities and financial
investments in Hong Kong denominated in currencies other
than USD and HKD, as compared to an exchange gain of HK$36.3
million in 2013. The strong USD and therefore depreciation of
the RMB in which a relatively large portion of the Group’s cash
and financial investments are denominated, during the year was
the key factor contributing to this relatively big exchange loss.

Investment Income

Investment income of HK$413.9 million (2013: HK$414.2 million)
comprised mainly interest income of HK$197.3 million from the
Group’s bank deposits and net investment income of HK$204.8
million, comprising fair value changes, interest and investment
income received and receivable and dividend income, from a
portfolio of yield enhancing financial products, consisting of
corporate bonds, fixed income type financial products and listed
equities, amounting to approximately HK$3,841.6 million as at
the year end. Assuming the average bank balance during the
year was HK$8,490.8 million and the average investment
portfolio size was HK$3,562.1 million, the Group’s average
interest rate on bank deposits and average yield on the
investment portfolio was approximately 2.3% and 6.1%
respectively. As such, the average annual yield of the Group’s
bank balances and investment portfolio as a whole was
approximately 3.4% (2013: 3.5%).

Finance Costs

The Group’s total finance costs consisted mainly of interest
expenses on bank loans and interests payable in respect of the
bonds which in aggregate, before capitalization, amounted to
approximately HK$429.1 million (2013: HK$413.9 million) for the
whole year. The higher finance costs charged to the statement
of profit or loss this year of approximately HK$267.3 million, up
from HK$237.8 million a year earlier, was mainly a result of
additional loan facilities being utilised during the year. Assuming
the average loan and bond payable balance for the year was
HKS$10,682.8 million, the average interest rate of the Group’s
debt portfolio, before interest capitalisation, was approximately
4.0% (2013: 3.8%).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s EBITDA during the year decreased slightly by
HKS77.0 million, due mainly to the loss of contribution from
SOGO TST during the period it was closed and the weak
performance of the Shenyang store. As at the end of 2014,
before taking into account the investment portfolio to the tune
of approximately HK$3,841.6 million (2013: HK$3,282.7 million),
the Group’s net debt has increased moderately from
approximately HKS2,172.6 million in 2013 to HK$2,211.4 million.
The cash at banks amounted to about HK$8,312.5 million (2013:
HKS$8,669.1 million) as at the end of 2014, HK$6,071.0 million of
which is kept in Hong Kong. Of the cash at banks, approximately
60.1% was denominated in US dollar and Hong Kong dollar and
approximately 39.9% in RMB.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B R 2 # (&)

The amount of bank loans at the end of 2014 was approximately
HKS4,354.4 million (2013: HK$4,676.2 million) and bonds payable
was approximately HK$6,169.5 million (2013: HKS6,165.5 million).
The bank loans comprised the Hong Kong dollar-denominated
five-year (due in September 2016) secured loan facility in the
amount of HK$5,000 million, of which HKS$3,336 million (or
two-third of the facility) is in the form of term loan, with the
amount outstanding at the year-end totalling HK$2,401.9 million.
While this term loan is repayable semi-annually during the five-
year term, the remaining one-third (equivalent to HK$1,664
million) of the facility is of a revolver nature and was not utilised
at the year end. Interest borne by this loan facility is calculated
with reference to the HIBOR. The remaining bank loan balances
comprised: (1) secured project loans of RMB549.4 million
(equivalent to HK$684.5 million), bearing interest calculated with
reference to the PBOC lending rate, and with approximately
RMB2,490.6 million (equivalent to HK$3,103.3 million) facility still
available; and (2) short-term US dollar loans totalling US$163.6
million (equivalent to HK$1,268.0 million), which are secured
against certain of the Group’s financial investments, with the
interest calculated with reference to the LIBOR and
approximately US$91.4 million (equivalent to HK$708.3 million) is
yet to be utilised. In addition, the Group has an un-utilised
unsecured loan facility amounting to HK$400 million, which
bears interest with reference to HIBOR. As at year end, the
Group has aggregate un-utilised banking facilities in the amount
equivalent to approximately HK$5,875.6 million (2013: HK$2,662.1
million).

The bonds payable of HKS6,169.5 million (or US$800 million at
maturity) (2013: US$800 million at maturity) comprises a US$500
million 5-year (bearing interest at 5.25% and maturing in January
2017) and a US$300 million 10-year (bearing interest at 4.25%
and maturing in October 2022) unsecured guaranteed bonds
issued during 2012, mainly for financing the land acquisition at
Zhabei, Shanghai and the remaining are for working capital
purposes.

The Group’s net debt to equity ratio (defined as borrowings less
cash and bank balances divided by equity attributable to the
owners of the Company) was 19.9% (2013: 20.8%). During the
year, the Group did not use any financial instruments for the
purpose of hedging the interest rate exposure of its
borrowings.

Foreigh Exchange Management

The functional currency of the Company and its major
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is HKD in which most of the
transactions are denominated whereas the functional currency
of those subsidiaries operating in the PRC is RMB in which most
of its transactions are denominated. As described under the
“Liquidity and Financial Resources” section above, certain
monetary assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in
RMB, USD and to a small extent, other foreign currencies. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
as HKD, in which most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated, is effectively pegged to USD and that the uptrend
in the past of the RMB versus the USD has only been reversed
during the year. Management will monitor closely the Group’s
foreign exchange exposure and will consider taking appropriate
hedging measures to mitigate significant foreign currency risks
should the need arises.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & & #wE 54 (&)

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s certain leasehold land and
buildings in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately
HKS$1,369.9 million (2013: HK$1,414.2 million), together with
shares of certain subsidiaries of the Group, has been pledged to
secure the HKS5,000 million (2013: HKS$5,000 million) loan facility
granted to the Group, of which HK$3,336 million (2013: HK$3,336
million) was utilised. In addition, certain of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment in the PRC and the Group’s financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss with carrying values of
approximately HK$7,024.3 million (2013: HK$3,403.9 million) and
HKS$1,790.9 million (2013: HK$1,393.9 million) respectively have
been pledged to secure loan facilities in the amount of
approximately RMB3,040 million (2013: RMB650 million) and
US$255 million (2013: US$155 million) respectively.

contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2014.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
There were no material acquisitions or disposals during the year.

Review of Operations

Lifestyle International once again managed to outperform the
general retail market on its home turf in Hong Kong. Despite the
sluggish market conditions, the Group’s strong fundamentals
and execution ability enabled its retail operations in both Hong
Kong and mainland China to stay resilient and perform
satisfactorily.

Hong Kong

SOGO CwB

In 2014, SOGO CWB continued to be the biggest contributor to
the Group’s revenue and profit. Defying the slowdown trend in
the Hong Kong retail market, the store outperformed the
general retail market as well as the department store sector in
terms of revenue growth, recording approximately 3.4% growth
year-on-year. Other indicators pointing to the store’s status as a
perennially popular shopping destination include the stay-and-
buy ratio, which grew from 33.4% in 2013 to 34.6% in 2014, and
the ticket size, which was up 2.7% to HKS$877.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B R 2 # (&)

The traffic footfall of the store showed a 2.5% decline for the
year 2014. The footfall decrease was partly due to the rather
weak sentiment in the retail market and partly due to the
renovation programs which were aimed to revamp the image of
SOGO CWB and nurture different customer groups. During the
year, the store’s first basement floor section was closed for
almost four weeks and later reopened in mid-July as a brand
new SOGO beauty section. This transformation drew highly
positive feedback and led to growing traffic footfall and
revenue. Meanwhile, the facade of a few shops within the store
also underwent a facelift, and other floors were renovated and
the brand and product mix reshuffled, with increased emphasis
placed on categories such as international fashion brands,
accessories and high-end children’s clothing. Specifically, the
ground and first floors have been transformed with the
introduction of affordable luxury brands. These efforts have not
only successfully reinvigorated SOGO’s leading image, which is in
line with its commitment to deliver more excitement for
shoppers, but also increased the store’s efficiency and sales
productivity. The above-mentioned renovation programs did
temporarily affect the traffic footfall at the store but are
expected to vyield better long-term benefits. The Occupy Central
movement that began in late September and ended in early
November also played a part, though insignificant, in bringing
down the traffic footfall and revenue of the store.

The well-publicised Thankful Week anniversary events in May and
November each year once again achieved record-breaking
results in 2014 with the store setting a new record for the first
day of the November event, with daily sales revenue exceeded
HK$115 million.

SOGO TST

The year 2014 was a watershed year for SOGO TST. Close to nine
years after its birth at Salisbury Road, the old store ceased
business in February. Less than four months after taking
possession of the new premises, the Group managed to
successfully reopen the store in November at an arterial road in
the key shopping area of Tsim Sha Tsui. The reopening of the
store underlines the Group’s commitment to Hong Kong, and
the proven success of its management strength and business
model.

With its prime location, easily accessible by the metro and by
foot, SOGO TST was quick to attract a vast number of locals and
tourists, old and new customers, since the soft opening. The
traffic footfall and performance of the store up to the end of
2014 was above the management’s expectation. The
encouraging results so far were partly attributable to the
November “Thankful Week” event, which coincided with the soft
opening, and partly to the fact that SOGO TST had developed a
strong client base over the years.

The new boutique-type SOGO TST has a gross floor area (GFA) of
approximately 12,000 sg. m., and has a more modern and
fashion-oriented positioning, offering close to 160 different
contemporary popular international brands. The store focuses
on a few select product categories, including cosmetics and
skincare, jewellery and watches, handbags, footwear and fashion
ready-to-wear. The store’s reopening is set to further
strengthen the brand equity of SOGO and solidify the presence
of the Group’s retail operations in Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & & #wE 54 (&)

Mainland China

Shanghai Jiuguang

It has been 10 years since the Group first established its presence
in mainland China. Over the decade, Shanghai Jiuguang store
has been growing from strength to strength and established
itself as one of the leading shopping destinations in this first-tier
mainland Chinese city and its retail clout was well reflected in its
2014 business results. Despite the rather sluggish domestic
demand and fierce competition among existing retail venues
and an increasing number of newcomers, Shanghai Jiuguang
managed to hold up its sales revenue at the level similar to the
previous year. The average daily traffic footfall saw a small
decline to 50,700 from 51,500 a year earlier, demonstrating the
competitive strengths of the store among many well-built
retailing venues.

During the year, Shanghai Jiuguang invested additional
resources to further strengthen its brand portfolio, in particular,
the number of cosmetics and skincare brands and raising the
profile of a selection of reputed brands. As a result, the store
saw approximately 27% growth of revenue from this product
category. Although these promotion efforts had inevitably
lowered the profit margin, the management deemed it
necessary to make the changes so as to broaden Shanghai
Jiuguang’s market share in this particular product category and
strengthen the store’s image in the longer run. Indeed, it is
believed that the store now boasts the stronger portfolio of
cosmetics and skincare brands among all the retail venues on
Nanjing West Road.

The third quarter of the year saw the completion of a renovation
project at the Freshmart supermarket of Shanghai Jiuguang. The
renovation work, being carried out in two phases over a period
of more than five months, inevitably affected the traffic footfall
and business that partly explained the slowdown in revenue
growth of the store.

Suzhou Jiuguang

After several years of stellar growth, Suzhou Jiuguang has
settled on a steady growth track. Having secured a solid position
as a sought-after shopping destination in Suzhou, the store
turned profitable in 2013 and has remained so since then. Its
contribution to the Group’s revenue remains consistent and
meaningful. During the year, the store reported a small negative
growth in sales revenue which was mainly a result of an
accounting adjustment to reverse sales proceeds in respect of
prepaid cards previously recognized as sales revenue. When
excluding this accounting adjustment, the store actually
recorded a low single digit growth in sales revenue for the year.
The business of the store remained healthy and continued to
thrive, as evidenced by the average daily traffic footfall, which
rose to approximately 21,500 from 2013’s 19,900 and the
average ticket size expanded 7.1% to RMB360.

In response to the weakening local consumption and in view of
the store’s increasing popularity, the management focused
during the year on cost control to improve profitability while
keeping the momentum of its marketing and promotion efforts
in order to maintain the store’s appeal.
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Dalian Jiuguang

For the year 2014, Dalian Jiuguang reported a 15.4% negative
growth along with a 4.0% decline in the average daily traffic
footfall. This disappointing result was in line with the local
market condition, which had been characterized by weak
consumption throughout the year.

Shenyang Jiuguang

Since opened in October 2013, the store got off to a steady start
and performed in a stable manner throughout 2014. In view of
the relatively weak demand for mid to high-end products in the
Northern China market and the fact that all young stores need
time to build a growth momentum, the management has
previously predicted that the store, the Group’s fourth Jiuguang
establishment in mainland China, would take more time than the
Group’s other mainland operations before it could turn
profitable. During the year, sales revenue and the growth trend
of the store was less than satisfactory. The Group has made and
will continue to make adjustments to the product and brand mix
for both the food and non-food departments of the store with
the aim of providing a wider array of local and imported
products catering to a broader customer base.

Freshmart Operation

The Group’s first stand-alone “Freshmart” store in Shanghai,
launched in July 2013 inside the L'Avenue Shanghai at the
Changning District of Shanghai, delivered mediocre results for
the year. The operation is not a significant part of the Group’s
mainland operations, but it is meaningful as it demonstrated the
brand equity and underlying strength of Freshmart at a time
when market uncertainties abounded. The Group will continue
to look for suitable locations in Shanghai to expanding further
into this line of business.

Interests in Associates

The Group’s strategic investment in Beiren Group, a leading
retailer based in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, continued to
deliver healthy results in 2014 amidst the highly competitive
market conditions. The investment contributed roughly
HK$347.8 million in profit (including profit attributable to non-
controlling interest) to Lifestyle International, compared with
HK$348.6 million in 2013. The slowdown in its sales revenue
growth, apart from the generally weak market conditions, was a
result of the metro construction work nearby, and store
extension project at, Beiren Group’s two main flagship stores. It
is expected that the impact should only be temporary and traffic
footfall and business should improve following completion of
the works.

Beiren Group currently operates a total of approximately 1.1
million sg.m of floor space that comprises 16 department
stores, 35 supermarkets and various outlets specialising in
electrical appliances, consumer electronics and gold and
jewellery. Most of these store premises are located in
Shijiazhuang.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & & #wE 54 (&)

Lifestyle Properties

Lifestyle Properties, in which the Group owns approximately 60%
equity interest, recorded a loss of HK$13.9 million (2013: profit
of HK$58.7 million) attributable to owners for the year ended 31
December 2014. Lifestyle Properties made a profit in 2013
mainly because there was approximately HK$56.9 million one-off
gain from the disposal of the Tianjin property. The loss this year
was mainly caused by a fair value loss on the investment
properties of Lifestyle Properties and the fact that the main
income sources, which comprised interest income and project
management fee from the Lifestyle International, were
insufficient to cover its operating costs.

At 31 December 2014, cash and bank balances of Lifestyle
Properties amounted to HK$566.1 million (2013: HK$285.7
million). The increase in the cash balance was due to receipt
during the year of the balance payment of the sales
consideration of approximately HK$342.5 million from disposal
of the Tianjin property. Major non-current assets at year end
included investment properties amounted to HK$700.4 million
(2013: HK$716.8 million). The only development project of
Lifestyle Properties, namely the Yifu Land project in Shenyang,
was still in the final design stage at year end and construction
work is unlikely to commence in the first half of 2015. Lifestyle
Properties will strive to dispose of the Group’s remaining
investment properties when opportunities arise.

Expansion in Mainland China

At present, the Group has on hand one green field project,
namely the retail and commercial complex project at Zhabei,
Shanghai. Construction work commenced in December 2013
and the completion date of this project is tentatively scheduled
for 2018. The project will feature a commercial complex
comprising a sizeable retail premises, office blocks, and the
Group’s second Jiuguang store in Shanghai. The plan is in line
with the Group’s strategy of expanding sensibly in mainland
China. Upon commencement of operation in a few years’ time,
the Zhabei project is expected to strengthen the Group’s
presence and influence in Shanghai.

Outlook and Plan

Looking ahead, the management believes the uncertainties
hovering over economies around the world imply a cautious
outlook for the coming 12 months. The expected consolidation
of the Chinese economy in 2015 would no doubt create even
more challenging general economic condition and a much
tougher retail environment for retailers and operators in Hong
Kong and mainland China.

However, the incessant process of urbanisation and the rise of
the middle class in mainland China will continue to work in
favour of better managed retail operators that cater to mid-to-
high end customers. Lifestyle International, being one such
operator, will strive to capitalise on its track record of
outstanding business performance to the full, so as to buttress
its business foundation in both mainland China and Hong Kong.
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As for Hong Kong, notwithstanding the recent slowdown in
tourist arrivals and spending, the management continues to
believe that it is a market with strong appeal to both local
consumers and mainland Chinese shoppers. While improvement
of the local consumer sentiment depends on the external
economic conditions, the tax-free nature and vast selection of
products available in Hong Kong mean that the city’s reputation
as a shopping paradise is solid and will continue to attract
shoppers from mainland China. This will stand the Group’s SOGO
operations in good stead and is the basis of the management’s
belief that the two Hong Kong stores would continue to deliver
steady performance in 2015.

In the months to come, the Group will continue to fine tune the
product and brand mix for the new SOGO TST and to open up
the area not filled up at the time it was soft-opened to provide
more product categories, including certain popular food and
confection items. At SOGO CWB, the Group will continue with
the remaining renovation work and any disruption to the traffic
footfall of the store will be kept to an absolute minimum.

As for operations in mainland China, the Group will continue to
live up to its reputation as a department store operator
providing shoppers with a unique shopping environment and
experiences, as well as trendy and high-quality products and
services, catering to the different needs of consumers in
different regions. In 2015, the Group will start a major renovation
and improvement project for the Shanghai Jiuguang and
continue to boosting Suzhou and Shenyang Jiuguang’s strength
through carefully planned marketing and promotion strategies
amid the lacklustre market environment.

While the strategic partnership with QIA may provide a platform
for exploring future collaborative opportunities, Lifestyle
International will continue to adhere to its own operation
strategy and staying open to new strategic and sensible
investment and expansion opportunities, with a view to
generating maximum returns for its shareholders and also
further solidifying the business foundation of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

Corporate Governance Principles and

Practices

The board of directors (“Board”) and management of the
Company are committed to maintaining good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company has
adopted the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) as its guidelines and
focus on a quality Board, sound internal controls, and
transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Codes Compliance

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the CG
Code for the year ended 31 December 2014, except the code
provision E.1.2 which requires that the chairman of the Board
should attend the Company’s annual general meeting. Due to
other engagement, Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu Tung, the chairman of
the Board was unable to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 14 April 2014 ("ACM").

The Board

(1) Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of
nine directors, including two executive directors, three non-
executive directors and four independent non-executive
directors. More than one-third of the Board is represented
by independent non-executive directors with one of whom
being a certified public accountant. The Board believes that
the number of executive and non-executive directors is
reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and
balances that would safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the Company. The directors possess
professional qualification and knowledge and industry
experience and expertise, which enable them to make
valuable and diversified advice and guidance to the Group’s
business activities and development.

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy in
accordance with the requirements set out in the code
provisions of the CG Code. The Company recognizes the
benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at the
Board level is essential in achieving a sustainable and
balanced development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, industry experience and
expertise. All Board appointments are based on meritocracy
and considered against a variety of criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
“Corporate Information” in this Annual Report. The
directors’ biographies, including the relationships among
the directors are set out in the “Profile of Directors” in this
annual report.
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(2)

3)

The independence of the independent non-executive
directors is assessed according to the relevant rules and
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company has
received written confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors and the
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
directors meet the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are therefore
independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 2)
The chairman of the Board is responsible for setting overall
strategic plan and development of the Group whereas the
chief executive officer is responsible, in addition to assisting
in setting the CGroup’s strategic plan, for implementing the
Board’s decisions, monitoring and supervising the Group’s
overall performance, ensuring adequate capital and
managerial resources are available to implement the
business strategies being adopted from time to time,
setting out and monitoring targets, plans and direction for
management, reporting to the Board on the Group’s
performance and proposing business plans and strategies
for further evaluation and assessment by the Board.

The positions of the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer are currently held by two different
individuals for the purpose of ensuring an effective
segregation of duties and a balance of power and
authority.

Responsibilities (3)
The Board is charged with promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs in a
responsible and effective manner. The Board steers and
oversees the management of the Company including,
establishing the strategic direction and setting long-term
objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance
of management, protecting and maximizing the interests
of the Company and its shareholders, and reviewing,
considering and approving and the subsequent reviewing
and monitoring of the annual budget against actual
performances and results. The Board has delegated
management, under the leadership of the chief executive
officer, with authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-
day operations and administration of the Group.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company. The directors are aware of their
collective and individual responsibilities to the Company
and the shareholders in respect of the manner in which
the affairs of the Company are being controlled and
managed.

Directors are requested to make declaration of their direct
or indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions
to be considered by the Board. If a director has a potential
conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with in accordance with applicable rules
and regulations and, if appropriate, an independent board
committee will be set up to deal with the matter.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

4)

(5)

ERERRE (F)

All directors have full access to and are provided with
adequate, reliable and timely information about the
operations and latest development of the Group to enable
them to discharge their responsibilities and make timely
decision. Updates have been provided to all members of
the Board on a regular basis to enable them to discharge
their duties. Operational and financial Information and
analysis of the Group can be accessed directly through
briefing and reporting by the chief executive officer and
management during Board meetings. Through the
company secretary, independent professional advice, on
the account of the Company, could be sought should such
advice be considered necessary by any director for carrying
out his/her duties properly.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of 4)
Directors

After recommendation from the nomination committee,
appointment of new director(s), if any, is rested with the
Board. Under the Company’s articles of association, the
Board may from time to time appoint a director either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any
such new director shall hold office until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to the
Board) and shall then be eligible for re-election at the same
general meeting.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) are appointed for a specific term of
one year and all directors (including non-executive
directors) are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and are subject to re-election in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (5)
The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31
December 2014 to review among other things quarterly
operating performance of the Group, to approve the

Group’s interim and final results announcements and

financial statements and to recommend or declare

dividends.

Board members attended the Company’s Board meetings
either in person or through telephone conferencing means
in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association. During the year, Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas, Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy, The Hon. Shek Lai Him,
Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, Stephen attended all five
meetings; Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon attended four of the
meetings; Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry attended three of the
meetings; Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William attended two of the
meetings; while Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu Tung did not attend
any of the meetings.
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(6)

7)

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung attended all four Board meetings after his
appointment by the Board on 22 April 2014; Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Joseph attended the only one board meeting before
he resigned from the Board on 14 March 2014; while Mr.
Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond did not attend the only one
board meeting before his retirement from the Board on 14
April 2014.

Practices and Conduct of Board and Board
Committee Meetings

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the
proper convening and conducting of the Board and Board
committee meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda
and Board and Board committee papers being provided to
the directors and relevant Board committee members in a
timely manner before the meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes
of all Board and Board committee meetings. Board and
Board committee minutes are available for inspection by
the directors and Board committee members.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Induction package covering the Group’s businesses and the
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company will be provided to each newly appointed
director, if any. The Group also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the directors’ knowledge
and skills, and provide updates to all directors on any
regulatory requirements.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors
were provided by the Company with relevant reading
materials issued by the Stock Exchange regarding
amendments to the Listing Rules in respect of (i) connected
transactions; and (ii) definitions of connected person and
associate. In addition, the Company was informed that Mr.
Hui Chiu Chung, Stephen and Mr. Ip Yuk Keung (appointed
by the Board on 22 April 2014) have also received trainings
and/or reading materials regarding (i) directors’ duties and
responsibilities and/or (ii) corporate governance.

(6)

(7)
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Directors’' Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions in the shares of the
Company.

In response to a specific enquiry by the Company, all directors
confirmed that they complied with the requirements of the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

Directors’ Responsibility for the

Financial Statements

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing
the preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014. The directors have ensured that
the financial statements of the Group are prepared so as to give
a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, the results
and cash flow for the year, and on a going concern basis in
accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable
accounting and financial reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group’s
financial statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance and
position through all its publications and communications to the
public. They are also aware of the requirements under the
applicable rules and regulations about timely disclosure of inside
information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’'s Report” in this annual report. The Board
has taken steps to ensure the continued objectivity and
independence of the external auditor. For the year ended 31
December 2014, the remuneration paid/payable to the external
auditor of the Company were approximately HK$4.2 million and
approximately HKS0.9 million in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group respectively. Details of significant
non-audit services and the amount incurred are as follows:

Review of interim financial information

for the six months ended 30 June 2014 HKS$0.8 million
Review of Group’s statement of indebtedness
as at 30 November 2014 HKS0.1 million

Annual audit financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2014 HKS4.2 million

EB2HFRS

AARERM ERRIME 0B L ARES
BITEHR B OEFA((BEFA) - EAR
BREERALARDETESR SORTLA -

WA A ARENEG  2RESEARS
REZE-F-ME+=- A=+ AL BEFER
— E TR B -

EEHUBHRRZEE

EEHRAREFEAEERELAEEHE_T
—AFE+ - A=t+—HIFEZHBHRR -EF
EERREAESRELER G MM HEREE
Bl RIBFFEGELERRAEBMBREK - A
HEERTFHERAEBFERNZHBEMN - FHE R
BERE

EEW/RMRANEEMSMTER TIATE - I
EEZBEMARTIENAS R EBRRAEE
R TIALREEH - 9B R S IER R -
HEMABRFEAORUFOER MERKERN
FHBZHRE -

ARARZEMEAEBEHEE T —UF+ =8
=T HUIEFEVBERRIBEEERERZE
SN AF R [ BUIZHAIREE - B 22K
B iR RN R B A BB N B M o B E
T—MF+-_A=+—HIEFE  KRQAINEZ
BB AAEEREZBEIFEREREZE
/R~ B F3 45 511 49 4,200,000 % 7T 5 900,000 3
JL e BEEZEBRE ZFBMTEEERIT ¢

ERBE—_Z-—NFEXA=TH

LE7XME A o B 75 & 800,000 7T
EHR -_ZE-—F+—A=1H

AR T 100,000 7% 7T
HIF—Z-NFIFFEZ

FRTI B ERE 4,200,000 7T



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

REERRE (H)

Board Committees

As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and nomination committee are in
operation and they have been established with specific terms of
references to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities.

4))

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises four members, namely,
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon, The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham,
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, Stephen and Mr. Ip Yuk Keung
(appointed on 22 April 2014), all are independent non-
executive directors. None of them is, or has previously
been, the partner of the Company’s current or previous
external auditor. The audit committee is chaired by Mr. Lam
Siu Lun, Simon, who is a certified public accountant. The
audit committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out
the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow
closely the guidelines of the code provisions of the CG
Code, are available on the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:

1. consider the service and appointment of the
Company’s external auditor, nature and scope of
auditing, and the related audit fee;

2. review and approve changes in accounting policies
and practices, to review effectiveness of the financial
reporting system and process and its compliance with
applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
legal requirements;

3. oversee adequacy of the Group’s financial reporting
process, internal control procedures and risk
management system;

4.  assist the Board in overseeing the proper preparation
of the Group’s financial statements and interim and
annual reports; and

5. perform the corporate governance duties as set out
in the CGC Code.

The audit committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2014. Other than Mr. Cheung Yuet
Man, Raymond who did not attend the only one meeting
before his retirement on 14 April 2014 and Mr. Ip Yuk
Keung who attended the two meetings after his
appointment on 22 April 2014, all committee members
attended all three meetings.

In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed and
discussed with the external auditor the audit planning
report before commencement of the annual audit; (ii)
reviewed and discussed with the external auditor the
Group’s interim and annual financial statements before
they were submitted to the Board for consideration and
approval; (iii) reviewed and discussed with the external
auditor the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and (iv) reviewed the external auditor’s audit
findings, if any. No material issues were noted by the audit
committee which were required to be reported to the
Board during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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(2)

ERERRE (F)

0On 12 March 2015, the members of the audit committee
met to (i) review with the Company’s external auditor the
Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2014 Consolidated
Financial Statements”), including the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group; (ii) note the training
and continuous professional development of the directors
for the year ended 31 December 2014; and (iii) review the
corporate governance report. The audit committee
resolved to recommended the 2014 Consolidated Financial
Statements for the approval of the Board in the next Board
meeting.

The audit committee also resolved to recommend to the
Board the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditor for the year
ending 31 December 2015 and that the relevant resolution
shall be put forth for the shareholders’ consideration and
approval at the Company’s 2015 annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee 2)
Members of the remuneration committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu

Lun, Simon who is the chairman of the remuneration
committee, The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham and Mr. Hui

Chiu Chung, Stephen, and one executive director, namely

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas who is also the chief executive
officer of the Company. The remuneration committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee
setting out the committee’s authorities and duties, which
follow closely the requirements of the code provisions of
the CG Code, are available on the Company’s website.

The principal role of the remuneration committee is to
provide advice and recommendation to the Board on (i) the
remuneration package of directors and senior
management; (ii) on any specific remuneration package
with reference to market conditions, performance of the
Group and the individuals against preset goals and targets
as set by the Board from time to time; and (iii) if necessary,
on any compensation policy for termination of office of
directors or senior management.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2014. All committee members
attended the meeting. In the meeting, the remuneration
committee reviewed and recommended for the Board’s
approval the remuneration package of directors and senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Nomination Committee

Members of the nomination committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu
Lun, Simon who is the chairman of the nomination
committee, The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham and Mr. Hui
Chiu Chung, Stephen, and one executive director, namely
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The nomination committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee
setting out the committee’s authorities and duties, which
follow closely the requirements of the code provisions of
the CG Code, are available on the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the nomination committee are as
follows:

1. review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

2. identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

3. assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors; and

4, make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2014. All committee members
attended the meeting. In the meeting, the nomination
committee (i) reviewed the existing structure, size and
composition of the Board; (ii) confirmed independence of
independent non-executive directors; (iii) made
recommendation to the Board on the proposed re-election
of the retiring directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting; and (iv) considered the nomination of Mr. Ip Yuk
Keung as an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee of the Company.

(3)
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

and Indemnity

To indemnify directors and officers of the Company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them
in the execution of and discharge of their duties or in relation

thereto, the Company has taken out insurance cover for this

EERSABEZEERBREEE

RBEEZENAQRASHBMERNTRETRS
ZBESEEMMELZMAER KB B
K BXRER  ARRERULZBHREBIRR -

purpose.

Internal Control Framework AEBESIZE 23R4S

(1) Internal Controls (1) REBEEIE
The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a EEeNREGETHBEAEERTINLA
sound and effective system of internal control for the M2 NEREEIEHIE R - (FIREMERE &
Group to safeguard interests of the shareholders and AR E)EERE AR EEEERE -
assets of the Company at all times.
The Group'’s system of internal control which includes a AEENANBETRFOIERTERRE
defined management structure with limit of authority is MARBARIMERR - UIRBBIVEBIES £ EIZ -
designed to help the achievement of business objectives, REBEUDREREFANEE - R
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition, HENESH RS UNREY A REAEN
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for B 75 & RHR R S0 {5E AR Sk B AN BRI - W REAR
the provision of reliable financial information for internal FEMBEPMBRY - FEEEFEE
use or for external publication, and ensure compliance with BB (BEXIFBE)REFWEE KK F R
relevant legislation and regulations. The system is designed Bk WER(BIWIFETEEKR)EER
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against PR EBAEBZBIZ -
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in the operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.
Management has conducted regular reviews during the RAFE  EEETHRNTANBEZEHE
year on the effectiveness of the internal control system 2R ZHIERE BT - EiER
covering all material factors related to financial, operational AHRER REREEBIEUAREERERER
and compliance controls, various functions for risk AEREEEEZRZ o NAQ AIHNEIZERD
management and physical and information systems REZZESSZNEXZESEREW
security. The audit committee had been reported during R FERIE  BREE A Y
the audit committee meetings of key findings identified by ZEBMERINITE SRR R - HE
the Company’s external auditors and discussed findings —E-NFE+ - /F=+—HILtFEE I &
and actions or measures taken in addressing those findings BT RS EE R SE A T EALILE -
relating to the Group’s internal controls. No material issues
on the system of internal control have been identified
during the year ended 31 December 2014 which required
significant rectification works.
The Board has, working in conjunction with senior EFEeESAEEERARRRENE
management, conducted an annual review on the audit NARANIBEZBFERFERETT ZEZTE
work carried out by the internal audit team during the year ARz BETET SR EE BB R I TR S 18
as well as discussed the audit plans and monitored MetEL FEARE -
subsequent implementation of measure for improving
internal control system of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

(2) Internal Audit Function (2) RIBBZBEE
The Group’s internal audit team is responsible for AEBNHEZBLEETCHERAEE

conducting regular review of the Group’s internal control
procedures, including accounting system and operational
procedures, and will make recommendations to the
relevant department management for necessary actions.
The management considers the present work arrangement
of the internal audit functions is effective having taking
into account the current organizational structure, lines of
responsibility, authority of the management team and the
risks associated with the operations of the Group. The
management and audit committee review and monitor
closely the works of the internal audit team and are
committed to strengthening the functions of the Group’s
internal audit team. In addition to its agreed scheduled
work, the internal audit team may conduct other review
and investigative work of the Group’s business on an ad
hoc basis as and when necessary.
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Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level
of transparency through timely disclosure of relevant
information on the Group’s business and activities to the
shareholders, investors, media and investing public, through
regular press releases, analysis’s briefings, press conferences, as
well as timely updating of the Company’s website. Our executive
directors and management, who look after the business
operation, are committed to respond to enquiries from
regulators, shareholders and business partners.

Investors’ Relations and Communication
with Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential
element in building successful relationships with its
shareholders. The Company always seeks to provide relevant
information to existing and potential investors, not only to
comply with the different regulatory requirements in force but
also to enhance transparency and communications with the
shareholders and the investing public. This is part of a
continuous communication program that encompasses
meetings and relevant announcements to the market in addition
to periodic written reports in the form of preliminary results
announcement and the publication of interim and annual
reports. The annual general meeting of the Company also
provides an opportunity for constructive communication
between the Board and the shareholders. Other than Mr. Doo
Wai Hoi, William, Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu Tung, Dr. Cheng Kar Shun,
Henry, Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy and Mr. Cheng Yuet Man, Raymond
(retired from the Board at the conclusion of the AGM), all
members of the Board attended the AGM.

In addition, the Company also maintains a corporate website on
which comprehensive information about the Group is made
available on a timely basis. Regular meetings are also held with
institutional investors and research analysts to provide them
with timely updates on the Group’s latest business
developments which are not inside information (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in nature. These activities will keep the
public informed of the Group’s activities and foster effective
communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and
forums during the year in order to enhance the awareness of
the investing public of the Group’s business operations and
development strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied
with disclosure obligations stipulated in the Listing Rules and
other applicable laws and regulations, and that all shareholders
and potential investors have an equal opportunity to receive and
obtain externally available information released by the Group.

EEbXERE
EEeEERRTHFEEM  DOWEBHN &L
ERFe EARERARML mRR KE
H BEBRARKREATBERBEEAEBNES
NABBEER - UEEMERSEAE - o B
TEERAERBEFNEEEETHEETR
- RREEBRAHREL 2 SRFERDE -

REEBERERERR ZBE

ARRARRBRDEZAER S EA IR INE B F
ZEBRTER - AR -EFNARAEREEKRE
ERHEEHEEN  FAEHEMTEFTAETRAMNE
WMELERE - AR ERAE &IN5 EAER &
NBREEZBB - FENBBRANTSEER
EARBPMBFERFRVACTHTHRSE
S BEERTEERATISIEHEHEAE -
REZBREAFRETAESEE MR EHR—E
BRRE - BHEELELE  EEEHEIEL W
KL - FE2 2t MRV SR A (BRRCRIBSF
ARETEHREEFTE)I 2HEFEXNEHEA
HERFEFRE -

BE - ARBTRE QRN - BRRE/EEA
SEZ2EER - ARBIEHARBRESE R
BEDTEGE - NEHAMASEEE 2 &5
EREIFATBEE (ERR MR - ZFE8
H AR RIS MA R E EBAR - WiREFBE
I

AREERFANLFERESHENRBIE  UEEA
PREEHARERTER RRERBEZRH -

RATHOHERZEEST TR B S E A ERE
PISERFTAZ WEEE  MERBKRRREER
BEGREAES LB AEBE QM Z AFRER -

W
a

A1 Rl I e 5 R - e

HHHE |



36

710z HOday [enuuy a3 SBUIPIOH [BUOIBUISIU| DjAISIN

Corporate Governance Report (continued) H¥%&4aH & (&)

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the
Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the
Company’s head office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555
Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a
director are set out under the “Investor Relations” on the
homepage of the Company’s website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board
in writing through the company secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2831-2932
Email: info@lifestylehk.com.hk

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association.
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Profile of Directors
ES/E/N

Executive Director

Mr. LAU Luen Hung, Thomas (BA, MBA)

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lau, aged 60, joined the Company in January 2004. He is an
executive director and the chief executive officer of the
Company who leads and manages the whole Group by setting
and implementing policies and strategies, and monitoring
results and targets of the operations of the Group. Mr. Lau is a
member of each of the remuneration and nomination
committees of the Company. Mr. Lau is also the chairman and a
non-executive director of Lifestyle Properties Development
Limited, a Hong Kong listed company, as well as director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Lau is currently a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee and a member of
the board of directors of the Shanghai Jiao Tong University, the
PRC. He is the younger brother of Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy.

Mr. DOO Wai Hoi, William (UP)

Mr. Doo, aged 70, joined the Company in March 2005. He is the
vice-chairman and non-executive director of New World
Development Company Limited and an independent non-
executive director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited and Shanghai
Industrial Urban Development Group Limited, all are Hong Kong
listed companies. Mr. Doo is the chairman and director of Fung
Seng Enterprises Holdings Limited. Since 1995 he has been
serving as a governor of the Canadian Chamber of Commerce in
Hong Kong. From 2008 to January 2013, he has served as the
standing committee member as well as the convener of the
Hong Kong and Macau Members for the 11th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC) in Shanghai. In
February 2013, he is appointed as a National Committee Member
of the 12th CPPCC. Mr Doo is the Honorary Consul General of
the Kingdom of Morocco in Hong Kong and Macau. In 2008, he
was awarded the Chevalier de la Légion d’"Honneur by the French
government. Mr. Doo is the son-in-law of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu
Tung and the brother-in-law of Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry.
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Profile of Directors (continued) E=& (&)

Non-executive Director
Dato’ Dr. CHENG Yu Tung (DPMS, LLD (Hon), DBA(Hon),

DSSC(Hon), GBM)
Chairman
Dato’ Dr. Cheng, aged 89, joined the Company in March 2004.
Dato’ Dr. Cheng assumes the title of honorary chairman of Chow
Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited and emeritus chairman of New
World Development Company Limited. He is also the chairman
of Melbourne Enterprises Limited and a non-executive director
of Shun Tak Holdings Limited, all being Hong Kong listed
companies. Dato’ Dr. Cheng was awarded Grand Bauhinia Medal
by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in 2008. Dato’ Dr. Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng Kar
Shun, Henry and the father-in-law of Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William.

Dr. CHENG Kar Shun, Henry (BA, MBA, DBA(Hon),LLD(Hon), GBS)
Dr. Cheng, aged 68, joined the Company in March 2004. Dr.
Cheng is also the chairman and executive director of Chow Tai
Fook Jewellery Group Limited, New World Development
Company Limited, NWS Holdings Limited and International
Entertainment Corporation, the chairman and non-executive
director of New World Department Store China Limited and
Newton Resources Ltd, the chairman and managing director of
New World China Land Limited, an independent non-executive
director of HKR International Limited and Hang Seng Bank
Limited and a non-executive director of SJM Holdings Limited. All
the companies mentioned above are listed companies in Hong
Kong. Dr. Cheng is the chairman of the Advisory Council for The
Better Hong Kong Foundation and a standing committee
member of the Twelfth Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of The People’s Republic of China. He was awarded
the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2001. Dr. Cheng is the son of
Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu Tung and the brother-in-law of Mr. Doo Wai
Hoi, William.

Ms. LAU Yuk Wai, Amy

Ms. Lau, aged 61, joined the Company in March 2004. Ms. Lau
holds a Bachelor degree of Science and a Doctor degree of
Dental Surgery from the University of Toronto, Canada. She is a
practicing dentist registered with the Royal College of Dental
Surgeons of Ontario, Canada. She is also a non-executive director
of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company. Ms. Lau is the sister of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas.
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Profile of Directors (continued) E=E#/4 (&)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. LAM Siu Lun, Simon (BA, ACA, FTIHK)

Mr. Lam, aged 65, joined the Company in March 2004. He is the
chairman of each of the audit, nomination and remuneration
committees of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1973 with a Bachelor
degree of Arts. After graduation, he worked at KPMG Peat
Marwick and obtained his qualification as a Chartered Accountant
from The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales in 1979 and Certified Public Accountant from the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants (now known as the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in 1980. Mr. Lam was
admitted as a fellow member of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong in 1992. Mr. Lam has been a practicing accountant for over
24 years and is the proprietor of Messrs. S.L. Lam & Company, a
firm of certified public accountants. He has served as a member
of the Insider Dealing Tribunal on a number of occasions. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of each of Le
Saunda Holdings Limited, Kiu Hung International Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Kiu Hung Energy Holdings Limited)
and Lifestyle Properties Development Limited, all being Hong
Kong listed companies.

The Hon. SHEK Lai Him, Abraham (BA, DIP. ED., JP)

Mr. Shek, aged 69, joined the Company in March 2004. He is a
member of each of the audit, nomination and remuneration
committees of the Company. Mr. Shek obtained his Bachelor
degree of Arts in 1969 and has extensive experience in the
property development field. He is a member of the Legislative
Council for the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“"HKSAR") representing real estate and construction functional
constituency since 2000. Mr. Shek is a member of the Court of
The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology and Court
and Council Member of The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Shek is
a director of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited and
The Absolutely Fabulous Theatre Connected Co. Ltd (AFTEC) and
an independent non-executive director of MTR Corporation
Limited, Midas International Holdings Limited, Paliburg Holdings
Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, Chuang’s Consortium
International Limited, Chuang’s China Investments Limited (also
acts as chairman), ITC Corporation Limited, ITC Properties Group
Limited (also acts as vice chairman), Country Garden Holdings
Company Limited, Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited, SIM
Holdings Limited, Dorsett Hospitality International Limited, China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited, Lai Fung Holdings Limited
and Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited, all being Hong
Kong listed companies. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (the manager
of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust) and Regal Portfolio
Management Limited (the manager of Regal Real Estate
Investment Trust), both are Hong Kong listed. Mr. Shek was
awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and Gold Bauhinia Star (G.B.S.)
by The Government of the HKSAR in 2007 and July 2013
respectively. He had retired from Independent Police Complaints
Council with effect from 1 January 2015.
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Profile of Directors (continued) E=& (&)

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, Stephen (JP)

Mr Hui aged 67, join the Company in July 2005. He is a member
of each of the audit, nomination and remuneration committees
of the Company. Mr. Hui is the chairman and chief executive
officer of Luk Fook Financial Services Limited and has over 44
years of experience in the securities and investment industry. He
had for years been serving as a council member and vice
chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a
member of the advisory committee of the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission, a director of the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited, a member of the listing committee
of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an appointed
member of the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal, a
member of standing committee on Company Law Reform, and
an appointed member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants Investigation Panel A. He was also a member
of the committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission and a member of
Government “Appointees” (independent member) of Appeal
Panel of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui was
appointed by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the
Peace in 2004 and was also appointed a member of the Zhuhai
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in 2006. Mr. Hui also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited, Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited,
Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited, China
South City Holdings Limited, Sinopec Engineering (Group) Co.,
Ltd, Agile Property Holdings Limited and a non-executive
director of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited, whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He was an independent
non-executive director of Chun Wo Development Holdings
Limited, a Hong Kong listed company, up to his resignation with
effect from 1 February 2015.
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Profile of Directors (continued) E=E#/4 (&)

Mr. IP Yuk Keung

Mr. Ip aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 22 April 2014. He is an international
banking and real estate professional with over 30 years of
experience in the United States, Asia and Hong Kong. His
expertise are in real estate finance, corporate banking, risk
management, wealth management and transaction banking.
Previously managing director and corporate bank head of
Citigroup and managing director of investments at Merrill Lynch
(Asia Pacific), Mr. Ip currently serves as an executive director and
chief executive officer of LHIL Manager Limited and Langham
Hospitality Investments Limited and a non-executive director of
Eagle Asset Management (CP) limited (manager of Hong Kong
listed Champion Real Estate Investment Trust). He is also an
independent non-executive director of AEON Credit Service (Asia)
Company Limited, Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited, New
World China Land Limited, Power Assets Holdings Limited and
TOM Group Limited, all Hong Kong listed public companies. Mr.
Ip is at present a member of the Legal Aid Services Council and a
board of governor of the World Green Organization.

Mr. Ip is a council member and an adjunct professor of Lingnan
University, a member of International Advisory Board of College
of Business and an adjunct professor at City University of Hong
Kong, a member of the International Advisory Committee and
an adjunct scholar at University of Macau, an executive fellow in
Asia and a member of International Advisory Council Asia at
Washington University in St. Louis, a member of School Board
Advisory Committee at Victoria Shanghai Academy and an
Honorary Fellow of Vocational Training Council. He is a member
of the committee on Certification for Principalship at the
Education Bureau of the Hong Kong SAR.

Mr. Ip holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Applied Mathematics
and Computer Science at Washington University in St. Louis
(summa cum laude), a Master of Science degree in Applied
Mathematics at Cornell University and a Master of Science
degree in Accounting and Finance at Carnegie-Mellon University.
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Directors’ Report
EEERESE

The directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are the operation
of “lifestyle” department stores and other retailing format
and property holding in Hong Kong and the PRC. Particulars
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42
to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 62.

An interim dividend of HK cents 24.8 per share was paid
during the year ended 31 December 2014. The board of
directors (“Board”) has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK cents 34.3 in cash per share to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 8 May 2015. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting,
the final dividend will be distributed on or about 20 May
2015. Total cash dividend amounted to HK cents 59.1 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in notes 17 and 18 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out
in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants
or Similar Rights

Other than the share option schemes described below, the
Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights as at 31 December 2014. Save as
disclosed below, there has been no issue or exercise of any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued) E=&®{E S (&)

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William

Non-executive Directors:

Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu Tung (Chairman)

Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph
(resigned on 14 March 2014)

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond
(retired on 14 April 2014)
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, Stephen
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung
(appointed on 22 April 2014)

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the articles of association

of the Company, Mr. Ip Yuk Keung shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company

and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 87 of the articles of association of
the Company, Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William, Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu
Tung, Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung,
Stephen shall retire by rotation, all being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election, except Dato’ Dr. Cheng and Dr.
Cheng who for the reason of retirement and his other
business commitment respectively do not offer themselves
for re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive director and
independent non-executive director is appointed for a
specific term of one year and is subject to retirement and
re-election at annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association.

Each of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and Mr. Doo Wai Hoi,
William, being executive director, has a service contract with
the Company with the term from 1 April 2013 to 31 March
2016 and 2 March 2014 to 1 March 2017 respectively in
respect of their respective directorship and is subject to
renewal and extension automatically for further three years
unless terminated by either party in writing. There is no
specific clause in both service contracts providing for the
amount of compensation in case of early termination of
office.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Report (continued) E=EHESE (4)

Directors’' and Chief Executive’'s Interests
in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2014, the directors’ and the chief
executive’s interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers are set out below:

() Long positions in issued shares of the Company

§$&ﬁﬁ%ﬁm&ﬁ&mﬁﬁﬁZE
R-T—MF+-A=+—H  RIKBESRBHEHE
1) 28 352 (IR TE T 817 2 B s M A0 AT 8% - RStiR IR
LMARERETEFZHORETA - AARER
EEMARBFARDF ([HRFT) BB - &
% [ (T BURE IS G RS 2 R s LA 2 AR R B (%
(% REEEHDEXVBHAATE) 2K - HER
13 RES BN RARRIIIT -

i ALRAEBTROZFER

Approximate percentage of

Number of interest in issued share
ordinary shares capital of the Company
Name of director Nature of interest of the Company (Note 3)
ERATERITRAE
ARRZEER EReBHNEs
EEnA Bt R EE (P3E3)
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 119,928,501 7.36%
(“Mr. Thomas Lau") EREBA
it
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 154,764,000 9.50%
PRSI R B (1)
Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 540,000,000 33.14%
YRS R B (M3 2)
Notes: BIEE -
1. Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”), which is 1. M 2 & 78 % £ 2 & % B 2 Dynamic Castle

wholly-owned by Mr. Thomas Lau, holds 154,764,000
shares. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed
to be interested in the same parcel of shares in which
Dynamic Castle is interested.

United Goal Resources Limited (“United Goal”) holds
540,000,000 shares. United Goal is ultimately owned as to
80% by Mr. Thomas Lau through Asia Prime Assets
Limited (“Asia Prime”) and as to 20% by a family trust of
which Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph (“Mr. Joseph Lau”) and
certain of his family members are eligible beneficiaries.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares in which United
Goal is interested.

As at 31 December 2014, the issued share capital of the
Company was HK$8,146,925 divided into 1,629,385,000
shares of HK$0.005 each.

Limited ([ Dynamic Castle]) # & 154,764,000
FERE1D o RIBCGEF RS KRG - RIEBELE
4% & A Dynamic Castle Fr#5 A B9 #H R A% 59
Wk o

2. United Goal Resources Limited ([United
Goal J)#5 4 540,000,000 % f% 1 = United Goal
£ 2 2858 ot A 4@ i Asia Prime Assets Limited
([Asia Prime]) A 80% s Kk —EE &
WEmABREERE([REBEEED REE
FRIEK B 8K &= 7t & 42 % B 20% IR 10 4
= o IRIBKE S REE GO - 21808 55 AR
B United Goal BT A FUFE R AR D 4 %S o

3. RZFE—WOF+_A=+—H KA AZ
B & 17 IR K &8,146925% T O B
1,629,385,000 f& & % M {H0.005 8 7T 2 Bty °
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(i) Long positions in shares of associated

(i HEEEIEROZEFR

corporation
Number
of shares Approximate
in associated percentage of
Name of director Name of associated corporation Nature of interest corporation shareholding
HEEE

EEHA HEBEEER EREE REEE BOREREDE

Mr. Thomas Lau Lifestyle Properties Development Beneficial owner 3,262,500 0.78%

Bl Limited (“Lifestyle Properties”) EXBAA

FEmEERER AR ([FEE])
Lifestyle Properties Interest of controlled 3,852,175 0.92%
FfEheE corporation (Note 1)

s A wER (1)
Lifestyle Properties Interest of controlled 297,861,200 71.07%
FfEhE corporations (Note 2)

sl A wER (fEE2)

Notes: 5T -

1. These shares are held by Dynamic Castle, which is wholly- 1. %8 10 B B &8 St & & & ¥ A #yDynamic
owned by Mr. Thomas Lau. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Castleid B o IRIB(EH RAAEGH) - 218085
Thomas Lau is deemed to be interested in the same 9 4 1548 & B Dynamic Castle £7 # B K948 [F)
parcel of shares in which Dynamic Castle is interested. finiEs o

2. Of these shares, 249,611,200 shares are held by the 2. EZER DR+ 249,611,200 B0 FRAN A B3

Company, 42,500,000 shares are held by Real Reward
Limited (“Real Reward”) and 5,750,000 shares are held by
United Goal. The Company is owned as to just over 50%
by Mr. Thomas Lau directly or indirectly through
companies which he controls. Real Reward is jointly
owned by United Goal and Go Create Limited in equal
shares. United Goal is ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr.
Thomas Lau through Asia Prime and as to 20% by a family
trust with Mr. Joseph Lau and certain of his family
members as eligible beneficiaries. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to be interested in the same
parcels of shares in Lifestyle Properties in which the
Company, Real Reward and United Goal are interested.

Save for those disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014,
none of the directors or chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO.

A + 42,500,000 f% %17 B3 Real Reward Limited
([Real Reward]) & + 5 415,750,000 % % 12
i United Goal #5 - BIS8 S A BB BT
EiEHle A el MEEE AR R AE50% ©
if Real Reward ] /1 United Goal }2 Go Create
Limited LA #8 [B] &9 fi% # Lt 5] £ [7] # & ° United
Goal £ 218818 5 4 35 1@ Asia Prime # 4 80% %
BEFREGERZIHEABREHAARERT
RIEK B B RIG(S a8 A 20% R 1D as o
RIBCGEHFREIE KO - BI85 £ WR B
AZA7] - Real Reward & United Goal Fi# &
&) AR (R AR E AR 1 M 2w o

B Lt prit s M- FE—ME+-A=+—H8 &
BCEZ M B GI)E 2R EMBE 2 E LM
R BB ERRARRITHARERN R FHE
EAIHREEEE (REF R E EPDEXV A EE)
Mt - AR NEFEPEEEAERTAE

]
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders

As at

31 December 2014, the following persons (other than a

director or the chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange are set out below:

FERRES

R-Z-—mE+=A=+—A  THAL(FRES
AR AT R AR R ECGE S R 15 336
WA T 7 2 B R MR - XA R R
PRSP - AR A2 RID RAABIRS (B
B HR ) E XV ET R ) AR T R
HRABHIIMT :

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the AATBHOREEARAFZEHR
company
Approximate
percentage of interest
in issued share capital
Name Nature of interest Number of shares of the Company (Note 5)
L NN T S
BRARERE
£18 ERtE BRHEHE 2N B DL (FEES)
United Goal Beneficial owner 540,000,000 33.14%
BanHEEA
Asia Prime Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 540,000,000 33.14%
A s (1)
Dynamic Castle Beneficial owner (Note 2) 154,764,000 9.50%
BaEa A (f:2)
Qatar Investment Authority Interest of controlled corporations (Note 3) 371,122,958 22.78%
SEH AR (HFE3)
FMR LLC Investment manager (Note 4) 89,280,194 5.48%
PRGN AR (M EE4)
Notes: B -
1. Asia Prime, a company wholly owned by Mr. Thomas Lau, holds 1. Asia Prime B 2|8 £ 2 B A - H % A United

80% of the entire issued share capital of United Goal. By virtue
of the SFO, Asia Prime is deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares comprising 540,000,000 shares in which United
Goal is interested as beneficial owner.

Dynamic Castle is wholly-owned by Mr. Thomas Lau.

Bellshill Investment Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Qatar Holding LLC, which in turn is wholly-owned by Qatar
Investment Authority. By virtue of the SFO, Qatar Holding LLC
and Qatar Investment Authority are deemed to be interested in
the same parcel of shares comprising 371,122,958 shares held
by Bellshill Investment Company as beneficial owner.

These interests in shares of FMR LLC were known to the
Company based on the disclosure of dealings under Rule 22 of
The Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers filed by FMR
LLC with the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
and published on the website of the Stock Exchange on 6
January 2015.

As at 31 December 2014, the issued share capital of the
Company was HK$8,146,925 divided into 1,629,385,000 shares
of HK$0.005 each.

CoalZE B3 TIRA 2 80% ° IRIE(FEH KEAE &A1) -
Asia Prime# %8 %A M United Goal&® 25 # B
540,000,000 &% 5 o #E B MER = ©

Dynamic Castle REZIE B £ 2 E WA ©

Bellshill Investment Company % Qatar Holding LLC &9
2 &M B A A M & Bl B Qatar Investment
Authority 2 B A - IRIBECHEH R EIE A1) - Qatar
Holding LLC & Qatar Investment Authority £ i 18 4
# % Bellshill Investment Company A Bz B A 5 1)
B8 B94A[R 371,122,958 A% (D 25 -

ARA R TIRIEFMR LLCH(E B A R E & & fF<r A
BEREATEEFLPEEBERZEG2RIN—
E-RFE-ARNBEBZABHEHNRZREER
JEFFMR LLC AT 0 i {n 12

RIZB-—WF+-A=+—8B XQRZBEHTRAX
#$8,146,92578 JT » 9 /1,629,385,000 /% & i E E
0.005 7T 2 i fn ©
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6. Exemption from compliance with the disclosure of interests
requirement of the SFO by LS Finance (2017) Limited and LS
Finance (2022) Limited (including substantial shareholders,
directors and chief executives) had been granted under section
309(2) of the SFO.

7. Mr. Thomas Lau is a director of United Goal and the sole
director of Asia Prime and Dynamic Castle.

Save for those disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no
other persons had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

Share Option Schemes

(i) The 2004 Share Option Scheme
The Company’s share option scheme (2004 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing 27 March 2004 pursuant to a written
resolution of the sole shareholder as incentive or
rewards for the contribution of the eligible participants
to the Group.

Under the 2004 Share Option Scheme, the Company
may grant options to (i) any full-time employee of the
Company or of any subsidiary; (ii) directors (including
non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company or any subsidiary;
(iii) advisors and consultants to the Company or to any
subsidiary in the areas of technical, financial, legal or
corporate managerial who, at the sole determination of
the board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”),
have contributed to the Company and/or any subsidiary
(the assessment criteria of which are (a) contributions
to the development and performance of the Company
and/or subsidiary; (b) quality of work performed for the
Company and/or any subsidiary; (c) initiative and
commitment in performing his/her duties; and (d)
length of service or contribution to the Company and/
or any subsidiary).

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2004 Share Option Scheme
and any other scheme of the Company is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of the commencement of dealings in the
shares on the Stock Exchange, being 144,000,000 shares
of HK$0.005 each after the share subdivision in 2007.
Since termination of the 2004 Share Option Scheme had
been conditionally confirmed and approved in an
extraordinary general meeting held on 3 March 2009,
no further options will be offered under the 2004 Share
Option Scheme, but all options granted prior to such
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the 2004 Share Option Scheme.

6. LS Finance (2017) Limited X LS Finance (2022)
Limited(BEE EERE - TR RITHAER) BBSGFHE
7 R BRE A& )3 309(2) & T B2 B < FE 5 A B i
B B S o

7. 2 28 38 % 4 A& United Goal 2 & %= Kz Asia Prime and
Dynamic Castle Z e —#E = -

B bt i ERsh M-FE—ME+—A=+—H8 1
BGE S M HIERDI)EE 336 (KR EM AT 2B ie
e BB A TAEARR R R I R ARRE R
BIEAERAAR -

BB eSS

(i Z=ZZTNFERETS
AR AR B ME — BRCOR 2 TR A B AR A
B —ZZMEERETS ) A-FEN
FZA-t+EARRHB+F (FRABRSH
EBAKEPTFER 2 R EE -

RE-ZTOERERETS - ARARARTE
BHE T () AR B SR B A R 2 AE ) 2 (R
S (AR AHEMMBAR ZEE(BHEIE
WMITEENBEIIFRTES)  (NEARFE
=2g((BESg)2ERE  BAQR R HE
P8 A REBE B Z AN A R SR AEM B AR
W M5 OERBEFEEE S EAMBEMK
HEREMR GIEREA A @B ARA R R RAEM
MEBARZERREEZER: ORKRAA
R/ SRAEMMBARTIEFCER  ORBITHE
Bz X RAEG  RAA/ERR R ST
MR RR IR BB 2 FH) -

RIRE - TR F R SIS AR REA EA
STEIRI R T BBUERT S KM A% TS
ARTRABRNEBRZMAKESR 2 A2 #ET
B3 10% - BN — 2T EFRMDIFARES®E
{80.005 7 7T 2 144,000,000 A2 f& 17 ° R AR
RIEEN - ZEZNF=A =B BT ZRRER
AE LB EMERMIERIE - T TNFERR
EETEl - FEINBRER TS RE_ZZNFH
PR BT E A R ARKL LR RIEZ
TENFBREAZNER T 2B RS HEE
BAEBREAITE -
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(iD

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders, Independent Non-
executive Directors, or any of their respective associates
(including a trustee of a discretionary trust of which
they or any of their family interests are discretionary
objects) in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share
capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must
be also approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later
than 5 days from the date of offer), upon payment of
HKS$1 per option. Options may be exercised at any time
during a period commencing on or after the date on
which the option is accepted and deemed to be
granted and expiring on a date to be notified by the
Board to each grantee which shall not be more than 10
years from the date on which the option is accepted
and deemed to be granted. The exercise price is
determined by the Directors of the Company, and will
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s share.

The 2009 Share Option Scheme

The adoption of a new share option scheme (“2009
Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the
shareholders of the Company in an extraordinary
general meeting held on 3 March 2009 for a period of
10 years commencing from 3 March 2009 as incentive
or rewards for the contribution of the eligible
participants to the growth of the Group and to provide
to the Group with a more flexible means to reward,
remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to
the eligible participants.

Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, the Company
may grant options to (a) any full-time or part-time
employee of the Company and/or any subsidiary; (b)
any Director (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive director) of the Company
and/or any subsidiary; and (c) any consultant or adviser
(whether professional or otherwise and whether on an
employment or contractual or honorary basis or
otherwise and whether paid or unpaid), distributor,
contractor, supplier, service provider, agent, customer
and business partner of the Company and/or any
subsidiary who, at the sole determination of the Board,
have contributed or will contribute to the Company
and/or any subsidiary.

(i)

AREARRABRREBLHAE - REMN—F - 3L
EARTE B A B N r] 9% 2 BRI 2 21T
RAGETZRNEE - TSBBEARRBEET
Bin1% - R TPEEBR - BIUERTESRE
MEETEZBBEA(BRE2BEFRZETA
FERTARFZRBERSEEZDZA) BB
AR E AN 0.1% ok (B & 8 38 5,000,000 % 7T 2
BBAHE - TR AR R BRIRALE -

Rz BEEARNEZQRMAPTEERR (NS E
REX R BRES B) AR - BRRASRESH
BRI M1EBTT - BREAREARKER
ERTERSIZEREEETFNEIARAR
mE BRI ITE - REARRER
EERTRBEEE RES T SHBB104F - 17E(E
MARBESREE  BTIEROETFAHALRR
AR YT E (DB T BRI AEZ XA
BN FHUTE  R(DARFROEE=EZ
BeE o

—EENFERES
RARBRERR-_ZZNF=A=ARTZERR
FRIAE EHERATBRESZ( TN
FEEESE]) B -TTAEF=A=ZARAR
HtE (FREERZEEHAREEEFRED
BEEZ MR ERE - WRAKEE AW
SERSEERMEE W HE R HE
PHARH) o

RIE-—ZTTNFREEETE > AARAETRE
Pt T (@ AR E R, AT B A R 2 E 2
B RBES (D ARRE R AR E DT
ZEAEFE(BRRIT  ERIT B IENITE
2): ROKEFSE2EARAT  EHIHSH
RAR R/ SEFMMERREL TR Z AAF
Ko,/ SAEARTBT I 2 B 2 AE AT S 51 B P ok B RS (1
MEEREEATR TWEERER - a4k
KESHMBUEEREERE)  DHEE A&
7 R RIS R R BEPRED
B o
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There is no general requirement on the minimum
period for which an option must be held or the
performance targets which must be achieved before an
option can be exercised under the terms of the 2009
Share Option Scheme. However, the Board may offer to
grant any options subject to such terms and conditions
in relation to the minimum period of the options to be
held and/or the performance targets to be achieved
before such options can be exercised and/or any other
terms as the Board may determine in its absolute
discretion.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options which may be granted under the
2009 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 166,860,950 shares, representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 3 March 2009,
the date on which the 2009 Share Option Scheme was
approved by the shareholders of the Company, which
represented approximately 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders, the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options under the 2009 Share Option Scheme) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Where options are proposed to be granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or any of their
respective associates, and the proposed grant of
options will result in the total number of share issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the date of offer and
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HKS5 million, such grant of options must be subject to
the approval of the shareholders taken on a poll at
general meeting. The connected person involved in
such proposed grant to options and all other connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting in
such general meeting (except that any connected
person may vote against the proposed grant provided
that his intention to do so has been stated in the
relevant circular to the shareholders).

HRBRERIARE — ST N FEBRETE 2
IRFITEE AT LB A B 2 IR AR el /A =
BMeREBR  WERT —MRIERE - A
EESR T EMBRER A RZA BRI
- RREFABERER AT B AR AR
Ptz BARHIR R RBEERZRREE
K,/ REEG A BEIITEE 2 EAE AR -

RHITERE - TTNFEBRET S R AQEE
A AR A AT B T 2 T B IB AR A 1 R 3577
Z B in #88 - & 5T 11578 18 166,860,950 A %
7 BERARFAKRRR -_ZZAF=A=H
BIIZBEREFNAE LA GG E_STNF
BRI EIE BARREHITRAI0% - 188
MRARBRARE A2 EEITIRALI 0% °

BRERRSIMEESN - B A EBERSEEREM
NREARETEEERBRE(BE_ZTTAN
FREE A T OITEREARTTE 2 BAHE)
e T RGETZROEE - TSBEAR
RIEBEITHRAZA% -

WREBEREEE T BN EMN12EA AEH
MARBEERR BYFRTESTIWES
BZEMBEARTERE S ALRET
EPTA O R MR (BIEETE - &
B R i RTT 8 2 B AR ) T 2 1T RGBT 2
MBBEFBBARARTNBLHA RS HTRA
201% - MARAE(RER T ARG LS
BET &) % 5,000,0008 7T - BIZRIE R
FTARERRKRE DERSRRZRBIRER R
e B RBZIIEBRE TR ZBEALTIAR
RRABZAAEMBEEANLAE BRBRRKRE
ERERR (AT EFREEALTHRERY
ByEE  MEAEERRASHINBURR ZHE
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Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later
than 5 days from the date of offer), upon payment of
HK$1 on acceptance of the offer. Options may be
exercised at any time during a period to be notified by
the Board to each grantee which shall not be more than
10 years from the date of the offer. The exercise price
is determined by the Directors of the Company, and will
be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average

BT ZBBRAEAN B HIFEERR(TSE
REHBEH-EFS B) RER - RIRRNENRA
SNBTT - BRERT R ER GG X ARA
HIM ABER 1T - IERE 4 B B R TS 8B
10F - TEREHARFNERETE  H2LRT
H=Fhz&eEODETHHAQFRDIT
1B 5 () ZBEE T B HAT 1EE % B R F1a9K
B R ARBDEE °

closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

Details of Options Granted by the ANERTFEREZFHE
Company _ e
Details of the movement in the share options of the FA - ARRINBREZSFENT -
Company during the year are as follows:
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled as at Subscription
1 January during cduring cduring during 31 December price per
Date of grant 2014 theyear theyear the year the year 2014 Option period share
R-E-OF R-B-mF
-A-H +=ZA=+-H
=k MARTE FREF FRTE FRE®  FREH MATE  BRESHR SRABE
Director
=
Mr. Thomas Lau  31.08.2007 17,020,000 - - (17,020,000) - - 01.10.2008 - HK$18.50
el oyt 26.03.2014 18,50/ 7T
(Note 2)
(ME2)
Employees 07.10.2005 22,000 - (22,000 - - - 07.10.2006 - HK$6.16
&8 26.03.2014 6.1658 7T
(Note 1)
GEXD)
02.02.2009 2,336,000 - (2,288,000) (48,000 - - 07.02.2010- HK$6.40
26.03.2014 6.407T
(Note 3)
(H3)
Total 19,378,000 - (2,310,000) (17,068,000 - -

at
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Notes:

1. The options, granted on 7 October 2005, are exercisable from 7
October 2006 to 26 March 2014 (both days inclusive) in the
following manner:

(i) up to 40% of the total number of options granted under
the Scheme commencing 7 October 2006;

(i) up to 70% of the total number of options granted under
the Scheme commencing 7 October 2007; and

(il up to 100% of the total number of options granted
under the Scheme commencing 7 October 2008.

2. The options, granted on 31 August 2007, are exercisable from 1
October 2008 to 26 March 2014 (both days inclusive) in the
following manner:

(i) up to 40% of the total number of options granted under
the Scheme commencing 1 October 2008;

(i) up to 70% of the total number of options granted under
the Scheme commencing 1 October 2009; and

(i)~ up to 100% of the total number of options granted
under the Scheme commencing 1 October 2010.

3. On 3 March 2009, the outstanding options previously granted
to employees of the Group on 31 August 2007 (which entitled
such employees to subscribe for an aggregate of 20,400,000
shares) were cancelled and replaced by new options granted by
the Company entitling them to subscribe for the same number
of shares at an exercise price of HK$6.40 per share (the “2009
Employee Options”). The 2009 Employee Options are exercisable
from 7 February 2010 to 26 March 2014 (both days inclusive) in
the following manner:

(i) up to 40% of the total number of options granted under
the Scheme commencing 7 February 2010;

(i) up to 70% of the total number of options granted under
the Scheme commencing 7 February 2011; and

(il up to 100% of the total number of options granted
under the Scheme commencing 7 February 2012.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than as disclosed under the section “Details of Options
Granted by the Company”, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

Other than as disclosed under the section “Continuing
Connected Transactions”, no contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

B2 -

1. ZER_ZEERF+ALARTZEBREAIR _ZF
RETRERE-ZT-WNF=ZA -+ AHH(EE
BEMB)ZATHATE

0) B-ZZRF+ALRERSZHZERETS
PR H B 48 802 40%

(i BE-ZTHF+ AL RRRSHZELESE
P AR 2 70% - &

(i BZZZNF+ALHERSHZBRESE
PR H B AR RE 4R 2R 2 100% ©

2. ZER_ZEELFNA=T—BHETFZBRETR
ZEN\FE+A-RE_ZT-WF=A -+ EHHEE
FEEMB) AT IAITE

0] BE-ZZN\F+A-BRREHZELESE
s B A b 48 B2 40%

(i B-ZZNF+A-BERZHZERETS
P HB AR B2 70% &

(in  B=Z—ZF+ /5 —RAEKRZHAERETS
P H B AR i 48 B2 100% ©

3. R-ZBBEANF=ZA=ZA" AR _ZFZTLtFEN\A
=T —BERTAKEREE Z M AITEBRE(CRET
%% g BT AR B A #£ 20,400,000 f% AR 15 ) B T
SHI AR B PTR T 2B AR 5% S B A A
T 1% S AR AT R B 1% 6.40 B T 2 1T1E GEHEIE
BB ([ ZZZNFREEBRE] - —TZTNFE
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions of the Group constituted non-
exempt continuing connected transactions (“Continuing
Connected Transactions”) for the Company during the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”).

(1) Shanghai Jiuguang Department Store’s Tenancy

Agreement
0On 26 November 2004, the Group’s 65% owned

Shanghai Ongoing Department Store Limited (“Shanghai
Ongoing”) entered into a tenancy agreement with the

Group’s 50% owned /&N BT ES AR A A
(“CityPlaza Co") in respect of the lease of the entire
building of Shanghai Joinbuy CityPlaza (“Joinbuy
CityPlaza”) of approximately 92,000 square metres

("sg.m.”), for a period of 20 years commencing from 1
October 2004 (“Tenancy Agreement”), at a basic annual
rental of RMB125 million, with adjustment for additional

rental at the rate of 3.5% on the amount over and
above the annual turnover of RMB1,500 million
generated from the sales at the whole Joinbuy

CityPlaza. Management fee was on a cost incurred basis.

The Tenancy Agreement was arranged for the leasing of
the retailing space as necessary for the operation of the

Group’s Shanghai Jiuguang Department Store.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a total of

RMB178.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$224.8

million) rental and management fee was paid by

Shanghai Ongoing to Cityplaza Co. under the Tenancy

Agreement.

The Group’s 65% owned Shanghai Ongoing is owned as
to 5% by B8N A (£E) AR AR (“Joinbuy Group”) and

30% by B/ NLERMHGAERAF (“Joinbuy Co”). The

Group’s 50% owned Cityplaza Co is owned as to 12% by
Joinbuy Group and 38% by Joinbuy Co. Joinbuy Group is

the controlling shareholder of Joinbuy Co. Thus,
Joinbuy Group and Joinbuy Co, being substantial
shareholders of Shanghai Ongoing, are connected

persons of the Company. In view of Joinbuy Group and
Joinbuy Co have substantial equity interest in Cityplaza
Co, Cityplaza Co is an associate of Joinbuy Group and a

connected person of the Company. Thus, the

transaction under the Tenancy Agreement constituted
a continuing connected transaction for the Company.
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(2)

Leasing of Premises for Sogo TST Store

On 24 February 2005, the Group’s wholly-owned
subsidiary Sogo Hong Kong Company Limited (“Sogo
HK") entered into a lease agreement as tenant with
Hong Kong Island Development Limited (“HK Island”) as
landlord for the leasing of portion of ground floor,
portion of podium 1 and the entire podium 2 of The
Amazon at No. 12 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
to Sogo HK for a term of 15 years commencing from 30
September 2005 (“Lease”), at a turnover rent based on
sales generating within the leasing premises at a rate of
6% for the 1st to the 10th year and 7% for the 11th to
the 15th year.

The Lease was negotiated at an arm’s length with
general commercial terms. This leased premises was
occupied by the Group for its operation of the
Tsimshatsui lifestyle department store in Kowloon side.

On 31 July 2012, Sogo HK and HK Island entered into a
supplemental deed (“Supplemental Deed”) to the Lease,
pursuant to which (i) part of the premises with a gross
floor area of approximately 750 square feet would be
surrendered and delivered up to HK Island on or before
1 December 2012 and the remaining part of the
premises would be surrendered and delivered up to HK
Island on or before 15 February 2014; and (ii) the Lease
was terminated on 15 February 2014.

During the period from 1 January 2014 to 15 February
2014, a total of HK$14.4 million rental, management fee
and other charges was paid by Sogo HK to HK Island
under the Lease (as amended by the Supplemental
Deed).

HK Island was an associate of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited ("CTF Enterprises”) who has 50% indirect interest
in Real Reward, the then controlling shareholder of the
Company, and was therefore a connected person of the
Company. Hence, the transaction under the Lease (as
amended by the Supplemental Deed) constituted a
continuing connected transaction for the Company.

(2)
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(3)

Framework Agreement — Chow Tai Fook (3)
Jewellery Group

0On 29 November 2011, the Company entered into a
framework agreement which took effect on 15
December 2011 for continuing connected transactions
entered into between the Company and Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Limited (“CTF Jewellery Group”)
("“Framework Agreement”) for the purpose of
consolidating and governing all the transactions
between members of the CGroup and members of CTF
Jewellery Group and its subsidiaries (collectively “CTFJ
Group”) arising from the following:

(a) concessionaire arrangements in respect of retailing
counters for the sale of jewellery and watches by
CTFJ Group at properties in Hong Kong and the
PRC owned by, or leased to, the Group or at which
the Group operates its business; and

(b) leasing or sub-leasing of premises to members of
CTFJ Group at properties in Hong Kong and the
PRC which are owned by, or leased to, the Group

(collectively the “Transactions”).

For the year ended 31 December 2014, a total of
HKS$47.3 million was received/receivable pursuant to the
Framework Agreement.

The directors consider that the inclusion of jewellery
and watches at “Chow Tai Fook” branded retailing
counters in the stores operated by the Group provides
a well mix of products for the Group’s customers. In
view of the strong brand equity of “Chow Tai Fook”, the
directors consider that it is beneficial to the Group to
continue to enter into the Transactions as the
Transactions have facilitated, and will continue to
facilitate, the operation and growth of the Group’s
business. The directors are of the view that the
Transactions are and will be entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group and are and
will be on normal commercial terms.

CTF Jewellery Group is an associate of CTF Enterprises
who has 50% indirect interest in Real Reward, a
substantial shareholder of Lifestyle Properties (a listed
subsidiary of the Company), and is therefore a
connected person of the Company. The Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company.
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Services Framework Agreement — Lifestyle
Properties Group

On 26 August 2013, the Company entered into a
services framework agreement (“Services Framework
Agreement”) with Lifestyle Properties which took effect
upon the listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange on
12 September 2013 up to and including 31 December
2015. This agreement regulates, inter alia, all future
transactions between members of the Lifestyle
Properties and its subsidiaries (collectively “Lifestyle
Properties Group”) and members of the Group
excluding members of Lifestyle Properties Group
("Remaining Group”), arising from provision by the
Lifestyle Properties Croup of non-exclusive property
project related services in respect of property
development, including but without limitation feasibility
study, design, project co-ordination and supervision,
for the relevant properties owned by or leased to the
Remaining Group and situated in the PRC and Hong
Kong (“Services”). The Services do not cover the
provision of routine property management services by
Lifestyle Properties Group for existing properties of the
Remaining Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a total of
HKS7 million service fee and other was paid/payable
under the Services Framework Agreement.

Lifestyle Properties is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Thomas Lau, an executive director
and the controlling shareholder of the Company, has
directly and indirectly through companies which he
controls owned more than 10% of the issued shares of
Lifestyle Properties. As such, Lifestyle Properties is a
connected subsidiary of the Company and thus, the
Services Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company.

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company who have confirmed that for
the year ended 31 December 2014 the Continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into (i) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company’s shareholders as a whole.

4)
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Notice 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the Continuing
Connected Transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

Regarding the related party transactions as set out in
notes 24 and 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, the transactions as shown in note 40()(i),
(iv) and (v) are continuing connected transactions
subject to reporting, annual review, announcement and
requirement but exempt from independent
shareholder’s approval requirement; the entrusted loan
and its interest accrued as shown in note 24 and the
transactions as shown in note 40(a)ii) and (iii) are
continuing connected transactions exempt from
reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholder’s approval requirement. Save
as disclosed, there is no other connected or continued
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in note 24. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of these connected
transactions.

Remuneration Policy
The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of
the employees’ merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments package of the directors of the Company

are reviewed and concluded by the remuneration committee,

with consideration to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out under the section headed “Share Option
Schemes” above.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business EZSNSEIEBIERS

The following directors are considered to have interest in a RIEETRA - U TEEHRRBHEREEZ EAEH
business which competes or is likely to compete, either B EEEEGE  ES PR R

directly or indirectly, with any business of the Group pursuant

to the Listing Rules:

Businesses which are considered to compete or likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group
BRAEAEEERERRF R TEBERINEL

Nature of Interest
of the director

Name of director Name of entity Description of business in the entity
EENZEREN
=3 BREE EBEN My
Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry New World Development  Equity interest in New World Department Store Director
BIRAEE Company Limited China Limited, which operates department -
FHREREGRAF] stores in the PRC

REETEZLERERAILZ
FERBEREERARMNELS

New World Department Operations of department stores in the PRC Director
Store China Limited EHBEERERT BH
it RAEPEAR AR
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William ~ New World Development  Equity interest in New World Department Store Director
HRSEE Company Limited China Limited, which operates department -
FHERERERAF] stores in the PRC

REETEZLERERAILZ
FERBETREERARMELS

As the Board of the Company is independent of the boards AARESSNBEYN EAERENEES  BMEL
of the above-mentioned entities and none of the above MEBFAEHRATESE  WAKBERENE i
directors is in control the Board of the Company, the Group RN TEEETHER -

is therefore capable of carrying on its businesses

independently of, and at arm’s length, from the businesses

of these entities.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Ccompany’s Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
repurchased 23,266,000 ordinary shares on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HKS$352 million (excluding expenses) for enhancing its per
share net asset value and earnings. All the repurchased
shares were subsequently cancelled. Details of the
repurchase of shares are summarized as follows:

Total number
of ordinary shares

Highest price
paid per share

BE - HERBEEA QTR SF

REBEZE-Z-—MF+-_A=+—HIFE AQ7HE
B8t 22 P LA 48R {B 49 352,000,000 8 T (T BIEER) 18
[B123,266,000 B A AR s H B R B EFE M E
e zEFEBROERDHENE - BEBERND 2
BEEIINT

Aggregate
Lowest price consideration
paid per share (excluding expenses)

Month of the repurchase repurchased HKS HKS HKS
HwRE
iIERESE it B R&IEE (TBEEH)
BE A% BEZERAY BT BT B
February 2014
20142 A 1,271,500 15.54 15.24 19,462,450
March 2014
201443 A 11,258,500 15.48 14.48 168,438,110
April 2014
201494 A 5,216,500 16.06 14.94 81,206,700
May 2014
201445 A 3,278,500 15.26 14.66 49,133,370
June 2014
201446 A 2,241,000 15.12 14.78 33,466,520
23,266,000 351,707,150
Saved as those disclosed above, neither the Company nor B EXFIEN  BE_FT—WNF+=-_A=+—H1t

any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association although there are no
restrictions against such rights under the laws in the Cayman
Islands.

Employees

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed a total of
approximately 810 employees in Hong Kong and 1,990
employees in the PRC. Staff costs (excluding directors’
emoluments), amounted to HK$424.3 million (2013: HK$414.1
million) for the year. The Group ensures that the pay levels of
its employees are competitive and in line with market trend
and its employees are rewarded on a performance related
basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary and
bonus system.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group is principally involved in retail business. The five
largest customers and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s turnover and
purchases respectively during the year.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public
as of the date of this report.

Charitable Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable and other

donations amounting to HK$0.5 million (2013: HKS$1.2 million).

Management Contract

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). A
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to reappoint Deloitte as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

16 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRBEIRE S

Deloitte.
=Z)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LIFESTYLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 62 to 167, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’' Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

H:AEEEREEERATENMRR
(MFASFSEMAINARAF)

FITE TR BRENE62E167 AFERIBREEEGR
RATERA D REAMBAR AT SMEE5E ]
WM BHE  WEGEAVBRREER 21
FT_A=1+—"BNBREMBEINKREREZALF
ENGFeEakEMEARER  SaRaEHRE
meaBReRER  ARTEFHBRHMEREMHE
AREE -

ESRGRaMBRRARKENEE

S NFIEERAAERBEEESMASREMHEEY
BHEEAREERA RGP Z BRERERELEEM
RNPWETNZEHEAH BT RABEFETAE
BN EREEHE - LAGEAR & B S R TR R el sl
ARG E AR FERR R o

g

\

BB EE
RITWEERRBEATHEZHZEREE B MRE
HER - AATHERERRBRBERBGNR SR
(ER—EMEER) M@ E AT REMEFMBH « A17
WA AR E 2 AREEREAM A AR EB R
BEZEMER - ATERBEEESTMASRMNE
BEEAETER - ZFEAREANTETEER
& WREIRATER  AABETHESVBRERE
BRFAEAEARERRL -



Independent Auditor's Report (continued) 3Bz #% B Efsk & & (&)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 March 2015
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g COnsolldated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
<
oy = 2 S Z
z EEREBREMEZEKRER
% for the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—Z—NF+_A=+—HILFE
g
3
3 2014 2013
S —E-NF | ZET—=F
Q NOTES HKS$'000 HK$ 000
5 M T8t Fi#T
& Turnover ¥ 1 7 5,969,740 5,955,335
z Cost of sales HHE AR 7 (2,385,930) (2,394,809
3
S Gross profit E3 3,583,810 3,560,526
Lo Other income, gains and losses HALWA ~ s R g8 9 187,380 308,767
S Selling and distribution costs $HE ko HHEK AR (1,192,362) (1,130,078)
8 Administrative expenses TR (264,112) (310,207)
N Investment income B WA 10 413,849 414,201
Fair value changes on investment properties - VEYNSZ L 17 (3,053) 6,491
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AW E 36 - 157,160
Share of profit of a joint venture FE(E—RAEBDEDH 21 26,463 31,870
Share of profits of associates JE A B N Bk A 20 347,157 349,554
Finance costs =YD ®N 11 (267,267) (237,807)
Profit before taxation B A AR A 2,831,865 3,150,477
Taxation MIE 12 (466,395) (480,248)
Profit for the year REERF) 13 2,365,470 2,670,229
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hipzm () WA
Items that may be reclassified subsequentlyto FEEAIfEEF DA EIER
profit or loss: ZIEH
Exchange differences arising on translation MBI NETGREEL
of foreign operation ZIEN =5 (220,095) 209,303
Share of exchange differences of associates FE(EEt = A TIE N =58 (47,019) 42,593
Share of exchange difference of B —REELHER Z5E
ajoint venture (7,087) 6,850
(274,201) 258,746
Reclassification of exchange difference HE—EHIE R BB ER
upon disposal of a subsidiary DIANE W =58 36 - (50,819
Other comprehensive (expense) income AEFEFEAMZE () WA
for the year (274,201) 207,927
Total comprehensive income for the year KREE2EWALLZR 2,091,269 2,878,156
Profit for the year attributable to: AREZRMGEF
Oowners of the Company ViN/N ﬂ%‘ﬁ/\ 2,143,994 2,448,247
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR S 221,476 221,982
2,365,470 2,670,229
Total comprehensive income attributable to: R 2R REE
Oowners of the Company IN/NETE ¥ DN 1,914,900 2,624,498
Non-controlling interests eI i 176,369 253,658
2,091,269 2,878,156
Earnings per share FREAF 16
— basic — EAK HK$1.3112 HKS$1.4783
— diluted — ¥ HK$1.3111 HK$1.4759




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MERR R

At 31 December 2014 A=—ZE—F+—-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—mFE | —_ET—=F
NOTES HKS$’000 HKS$'000
B 5 FE&ET FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment properties KEME 17 700,403 716,753
Property, plant and equipment M -~ BB MR 18 5,600,456 5,211,461
Prepaid lease payments B HEERE 19 4,250,922 4,497,222
Deposits paid for acquisition of EEME  BEME&E
property, plant and equipment 2iEe 24,931 27,852
Interests in associates FABSE & N B 2 20 2,926,323 2,682,188
Interest in a joint venture N—FREEBELERER 21 556,835 486,231
Club debentures CHTES 15,637 15,637
14,075,507 13,637,344
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 22 86,419 80,339
Prepaid lease payments B HERIE 19 94,504 95,052
Trade and other receivables JE UK BR X N L A R IR 23 367,766 657,713
Amount due from a joint venture B —REEDERTE 24 11,638 230,570
Financial assets at fair value BAFERAB®Z
through profit or loss SRVEE 25 3,899,564 3,345,920
Bank balances and cash WITHEFER e 26 8,312,497 8,669,060
12,772,388 13,078,654
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables JE AT BR X M2 EL A B A5 30IE 27 2,608,405 2,690,620
Amount due to a joint venture B —REEDERE 24 - 156,391
Tax payable e TR IR 343,756 358,620
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITIEE — —F A2 H 28 2,004,388 1,857,774
Derivative financial liabilities THEERmAaE 29 7,307 12,580
4,963,856 5,075,985
Net current assets mEEEFE 7,808,532 8,002,669
Total assets less current liabilities WEERREAE 21,884,039 21,640,013
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= Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) %4 B#iknx (&)
g, At 31 December 2014 R —F—4&+—F=—+—H
53
5
3
3
g.
3
g 2014 2013
(Cgl' —E-—NEFE | —T-=4F
s NOTES HKS'000 HKS$'000
3 B 5E F#ET TATT
(0]
= Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
’g’ Bank borrowings — due after one year RITfEE — —F& I H 28 2,350,024 2,818,433
s Bonds CEo 30 6,169,468 6,165,476
» Deferred tax liabilities EETIEEE 31 237,969 211,441
3 Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder  ERTHIE A &l — & IEIEA%
N of subsidiaries PI&ER 2 FRIA 32 137,665 180,893
o
= 8,895,126 9,376,243
12,988,913 12,263,770
Capital and reserves B K
Share capital [N 33 8,147 8,252
Reserves i 11,094,220 10,456,313
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  ZAAA SIS AJE(L#EZ 11,102,367 10,464,565
Non-controlling interests e AR A 1,886,546 1,799,205
12,988,913 12,263,770
The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 167 FE2RN67 BB HREEEEGN T —AF =
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of A+BE#EREETNE WHTIHESRRER

Directors on 16 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas 2|88 Doo Wai Hoi, William #XEis
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND HITEFEKL EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR #7i7#& %
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER BHENTE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
LEREREER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE —Z—NE+-F=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREEAREHS
Share-
Capital Asset based Non-
Share Share redemption revaluation Exchange payment Retained controlling
capital premium  Reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total interests Total
BABE BEER BRBHR FER
BA  BRGEE e e e EXRE e REEAN @c i &t
HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FiEn FiEn FiEn Fign Fign Fin FiEn FiEn Fin FiEn Fign
(Note 35)
(W3£35)
At 1 January 2013 R-F-ZF-f-A 8325 5157 77,642 349 123,641 689253 151424 8,492,760 9,548,551 933,474 10,482,025
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - - - 2448247 2448247 221982 2,670,229
QOther comprehensive income AEEEMZERA

for the year - - - - - 17625 - - 176251 31676 207,927
Total comprehensive income REEZEMNESR

for the year - - - - - 176251 - 2048247 2624498 253658 2878156
Share repurchase [RIAEE

— repurchase of shares —BERR (88) - - - - - - - (88) - (88)

— premium on repurchase of —BERR 2 EE

shares - (14,743) - - - - - (276,904)  (291,647) - (291,647

— transfer —#z - - - 88 - - - (88) - - -
Exercise of share options BRREE 15 21,661 - - - - (3,060) - 18,616 - 18,616
Dividend paid to non-controling BIRAFHEREERS

shareholders - - - - - - - - - (9624 (96242
Dividends paid (Note 15) BIRARE (B 15) - - - - - - - (894,498 (894,498 - (894,498
Transfer of asset revaluation reserve &~ BAREREE

to retained profits upon disposal of /5 EERRE R

a subsidiary (Note 36(a)) (Hi3E360) - - - - (119,91 - - 11991 - - -
Distribution in specie ENHR(H1 - 15R%42)

(Notes 1,15and 42) - - - - - (6,946) - (386,863) (393,809) 393,809 -
Deemed disposal of partial interest in B/ E—-EHEAR

a subsidiary without losing control, — 5% E%E

net of transaction costs IR (R FHA)

(Notes 1 and 42) (k1 R42) - - - - - (4,353) - (142,705) (147,058 314506 167,448
Transfer of reserves EHEE - - (20552 - - - - 20,552 - - -
At 31 December 2013 WZZ-=%+-R=+-H 8,252 12,075 57,090 437 3680 854205 148364 9,380,462 10,464,565 1,799,205 12,263,770
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - - - 2143994 2143994 221476 2365470
Other comprehensive expense AEEEMREL N

for the year - - - - - (229,094) - - (229,094)  (4507) (274,201
Total comprehensive income REEZEMAER

for the year - - - - - (229,094) - 2143994 1914900 176,369 2,091,269
Share repurchase RIAEE

— repurchase of shares —BERHA (116) - - - - - - - (116) - (116)

— premium on repurchase of —BERG 2 EE

shares - (29,110) - - - - - (323,387) (352,497 - (352,497

— transfer —g3 - - - 116 - - - (116) - - -
Exercise and lapse of share options & fkigE (¢ " 17,035 - - - - (1483640 146,09 14,778 - 14,778
Dividend paid to non-controlling BRAFHERERRS

shareholders - - - - - - - - - (89,028 (89,028
Dividends paid (Note 15) BIRARS (HE15) - - - - - - - (939,263 (939,263) - (939,263)
Transfer of reserves HEEE - - 19,031 - - - - (19,031 - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-ME+-A=+-H 8147 - 76,121 553 3680 62511 - 10,388,755 11,102,367 1,886,546 12,988,913
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meRERER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z= —Z—E+ -/ =+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-F —F—=
NOTE HK$'000 HKS'000
P FHExT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES S
Profit before taxation B A% A A 2,831,865 3,150,477
Adjustments for: SR AT A
Interest income on bank deposits IRITIFERZ FI B A (201,768) (169,463)
Imputed interest income (HEFBUA 1,622) (12,976)
Other interest income H b F B A (5,617) (4,686)
Finance costs e Rk A 267,267 237,807
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BEMEREITE 253,198 226,555
Release of prepaid lease payments FENEEREE T 24,370 13,762
Dividend income from financial assets BATEFAERZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRV EEZIRBIA (29,615) (31,189)
Interest income from financial assets BRAFEFABRZCREE
at fair value through profit or loss ZFBUA (46,380) (52,670)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BELEE
plant and equipment g} 741 136
Fair value changes in respect of financial assets BAFEFGABRZZ
at fair value through profit or loss EREECANFESR (128,847) (143,217
Changes in fair value of investment properties EME L N EEE) 3,053 (6,491)
Share of profit of a joint venture EE—REBEDERF (26,463) (31,870)
Share of profits of associates FEAEBEZ N REF (347,157 (349,554)
Write-down (reversal) of obsolete inventories TS E MO (B B)) 444 (353)
(Reversal of) impairment and written-off of JRE S BR 3 R EAth JE U RIE
trade and other receivables (B E]) BB Mt tH (926) 1,331
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKE AR 36 - (157,160)
Operating cash flows before movements in LEECEHHILEES
working capital mE 2,592,543 2,670,439
Increase in inventories FEE (7,550) (340)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables [ s BE 3k f2 £ b fE U 5008
(3 hn) w2 (22,888) 34,904
(Increase) decrease in amount due from B —RAEEBENDERE
ajoint venture (3Zhn) R (35,769) 18,734
Increase in trade and other payables JIE A<} BR 3% B EL b JIE 15 FRIE A N 86,366 56,743
Cash generated from operations KEZTEFTEIRS 2,613,202 2,780,480
Interest received BUF & 204,479 169,463
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BHBEBNEH (367,774) (349,648
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BEPBE SR (66,187) (120,939)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BEEFETER 458 5,368
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEBFSR S FE 2,384,178 2,484,724




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) #&H&RE R (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

2014 2013
—E-F —FT—=
NOTE HK$'000 HKS'000
5T FHET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REIEE
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERATFEAEBZR
at fair value through profit or loss ZEMEEMBR 1,685,283 2,207,186
Interest received from financial assets BAFERGABRZZ
at fair value through profit or loss EMEEZBEWFE 46,380 52,670
Investment income received from HemiTETEMSEZ
derivative financial instruments & W= 1177 952
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties  tH& & & WZEFTSR - 864
Dividend received from an associate H—REE AR 2 EWEE 22,818 24,839
Dividend received from financial assets MR FEFAEB=®m
at fair value through profit or loss ERMEEZBEWIEE 29,615 31,189
Interest received from a joint venture —RAEBBEZERFIE 3,559 3,576
Repayment from a joint venture H—REELEMBER 12,460 -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEF AR
through profit or loss LEREE (2,110,272) (2,741,374)
Acquisition of prepaid lease payments WEETE N ERR - (39,558)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE - BEME#E (603,770) (435,023)
Investment expenses paid for ENTESBMTAE Y
derivative financial instruments WELZH (6,258) (4,106)
Additions to investment properties EEREYE (3,350) (7,396)
Purchase of club debentures BEeMES - (2,900)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEKB QRS HIE 36 342,526 340,344
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE MKEE
plant and equipment FTiS sk 439 621
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES WEEEMAR S FR (579,393) (568,116)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Advance from a joint venture —REBTHEMENR 32,682 61,488
New bank borrowings raised HERITEE 2,458,741 2,105,341
Exercise of share options 1TERE R 14,778 18,616
Repayment of bank borrowings EERTEE (2,760,385) (2,233,115)
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders BB IEITIRARER (38,377) -
Dividends paid 2R E (939,263) (894,498)
Finance costs paid B R E A (426,323) (413,514)
Repurchase of ordinary shares of the Company B 0] 3 A% (352,613) (291,735)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders BIRAT 45 FEIEAR AR AR B (89,028) (96,242)
Issue of shares of a subsidiary NG A= /NN
upon initial public offer BEBRITRGD - 172,089
Expenses in connection with issue of —[EIM B R R BT (D
shares of a subsidiary FEXsEBER - (4,641)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEEATRIR® F5E (2,099,788) (1,576,211)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND ReEMREEFEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS CRA) B hnFEE (295,003) 340,397
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCE [BEXRZEZR 7 2 (61,560) 32,864
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING FYRENREEEY
OF THE YEAR 8,669,060 8,295,799
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR F#438 ¢ NIREEEY 8,312,497 8,669,060
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRREEEBM 2T
Bank balances and cash RITHEF MRS 8,312,497 8,669,060
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General

The Company is a public listed company incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law in the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

At 31 December 2013 and prior to 22 December 2014,
the Company’s ultimate holding and immediate holding
company was Real Reward Limited (“Real Reward”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. As a
result of completion of “Sale and Purchase Agreements”
(as defined in the composite offer document of the
Company dated 9 January 2015) in respect of the sales
of the Company’s shares by Real Reward on 22
December 2014, Real Reward is no longer the
Company’s ultimate holding and immediate holding
company. The new ultimate holding and immediate
holding company is Asia Prime Assets Limited and
United Goal Resources Limited respectively. Both
companies are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The Company’s ultimate controlling party is Mr. Thomas
Lau, who is also the Executive Director of the Company.

Following the completion of Sale and Purchase
Agreements on 22 December 2014, the number of
shares held by the Lau Family Group (Mr. Thomas Lau,
his close relatives, related trusts and companies
controlled by him, his close relatives or related trusts)
increased to just over 50% of the total issued share
capital of the Company. The Lau Family Group was
required to make a mandatory unconditional general
cash offer (“the Offer”) for all the issued shares of the
Company (other than those shares already owned by or
agreed to be acquired by Synergy Smart Investments
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Thomas Lau,
United Goal Limited, Mr. Thomas Lau and parties acting
in concert or presumed to be acting in concert with any
of them) pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers Code.
Upon the close of the Offer on 30 January 2015,
approximately 26.24% of the total issued share capital
of the Company was held by the public (as defined in
the Listing Rules). Accordingly, the Company complied
with the minimum public float requirements under Rule
8.08 of the Listing Rules.

The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are the
operation of “lifestyle” department stores and other
retailing format and property development and
property investment.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRERMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z= —Z—E+ -/ =+—HIFE

—REIH
ARARR—HARHASHEREHASFERARE
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£
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #& B3 3R & MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

1. General (continued) 1. —RFHE(E)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group Hz2—_ZT—=F+-_A=1+—HItFE K&
had completed a separate spin-off of its property EEZR BB BAANARBREAEYH IR
investment and development business by way of AN EMERERBERERB LD KAE
distribution in specie to the Company’s shareholders WEXEAR A ([FEHE]) REMEB AT
and listing of the shares of Lifestyle Properties (ZiBA [FEbEER]) MM REEZET ([ 5
Development Limited (“Lifestyle Properties”) and its WEMDERET - EVMDIREBBDIRKAR
subsidiaries (together with Lifestyle Properties FEANFEERG ([FIEmER®D ) R
collectively reference to as the “Lifestyle Properties B2 A R A% B8 5 45 20 A& 335 ] 95 1 A% Il 4@ b 22 A%
Group”) on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the 7 WEEDIRENEETF R ERAN 2
“Spin-off Listing”). The distribution in specie was 24.86% (EAFAZE R EEHETKE TG
through distribution of the shares of Lifestyle HE 7 2EE TR 19.70% + BENanF)42 Hy
Properties (the “Lifestyle Properties Share(s)”) held by E-_Z—Z=ZFNA_BHENRBRE(THRK
the Company in proportion of one Lifestyle Properties EDREIAEERE) ([DIK]) o N 1EBDIFLE
Share for every 20 shares held by all shareholders of the T —E5 - FliEtERBAMRE RIRET
Company, representing approximately 24.86% of the =, 77 86,914,000 A% B% 17 (B2 45 1R ¥5 A8 58 Bd A%
issued share capital of Lifestyle Properties at the time of HEMEITHARGD) - B FIEHE D HF LT 5T
the distribution (or 19.70% of the entire issued share g2 EE BEITIRAR 2 20.74% » MIARE BT
capital of Lifestyle Properties after completion of the WMERPEIELE—BHBRARBOESMEE
Public Offer and Placing, as defined in the prospectus LEEHEARR - FIEBMER -"ZT—=FNA
of Lifestyle Properties dated 2 September 2013 (the TZARER LT RO F EWTEKE - K
“Prospectus”)) (the “Distribution”). In addition, as part of NEFHAFIEHESI.56% s - ENARA
the Spin-off Listing, Lifestyle Properties issued EIPA NG

86,914,000 shares (including shares issued in connection
with the over allotment option) by way of Public Offer
and Placing, representing approximately 20.74% of the
entire issued share capital of Lifestyle Properties after
completion of the Spin-off Listing and accounted for as
deemed disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary
without losing control in the consolidated financial
statements. Lifestyle Properties was listed on the Stock
Exchange on 12 September 2013. Upon completion of
the Spin-off Listing, the Company holds 59.56% interest
in Lifestyle Properties and remained as a subsidiary of
the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in AR ERUARNQA T NEEE B ITYIE -
Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSS”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new interpretation, amendments to
HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting Standard ("HKAS")
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “new and
revised HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and

2.

BRI REETEBYBREE
RI(T&EEMBREEA D

MAFE  AEEFRER NI BEL G
NE PR E BB REEL 2 BAE
AIRBERGER(TEESFTER D) UA T4
2 [ER] RERT BB IS E LR )

i
R

-
!

0[E

B BMELFE105 - KA
F125 R E 275 (BRTA)
BRGHEANFER(BTA) SREELSR

\

financial liabilities BENERER
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures ERGTEREIH(ETA) FEepmEERE
for non-financial assets SENEE
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and ERGEREIR(BITA) TETEEER
continuation of hedge HihgrhE 2 EE
accounting
HK(IFRIC)-INT 21 Levies 578 (BB B TR KR 28 BE

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments: Hedge
accounting and impairment®

Regulatory deferral accounts’

Revenue from contracts with
customers?

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations?

Disclosure initiative!

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer plants?

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions®

Equity method in separate
financial statements?

Investment entities: Applying
the consolidation exception’

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture?

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle*
1 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements

beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier

application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017, with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2014, with earlier application permitted.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier application is

permitted.

6 The Group has early applied HKFRS 9 issued in November
2009 and revised in October 2010 regarding classification

and measurement of financial assets and disclosure
requirements. The Group has not yet early applied a
revised version of HKFRS 9 issued in September 2014

which deals with classification and measurement, general

hedge accounting and impairment which is mandatory
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with earlier application permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 was amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. A revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”)
measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o Certain financial assets held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
should be measured at FVTOCI (unless designated
at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL") to
eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement
mismatch). This applies to assets passing the
contractual cash flow characteristics assessment
(which is the same test used to determine whether
financial assets are measured at amortised cost).
Interest revenue, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment gains and losses shall be
recognised in profit or loss with all other gains or
losses (i.e. the difference between those items and
the total change in fair value) being recognised in
other comprehensive income. Any cumulative gain
or loss recorded in other comprehensive income
would be reclassified to profit and loss on
derecognition, or potentially earlier if the asset is
reclassified because of a change in business
model. Interest income and impairment gains and
losses would be recognised and measured in the
same manner as for assets measured at amortised
cost such that the amounts in other
comprehensive income represents the difference
between the amortised cost value and fair value.
This results in the same information in profit or
loss as if the asset was measured at amortised
cost, yet the consolidated statement of financial
position would reflect the instrument’s fair value.

. In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

° The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced to
the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company is in the process of
making an assessment of the potential impact of the
application of HKFRS 9 and it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9
until the Group performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principles of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:
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Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer F—F: BAEZEPIIVMAELY

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the F-F: BIEHPHNEHEML
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price E= BEXHE

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each £tk BRGEAREEHNTHROET
performance obligation in the contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity FRHF: REBTHKELEER (3
satisfies a performance obligation mR =
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customers. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with special scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company is in the process of
making an assessment of the potential impact of the
application of HKFRS 15 and it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate the application
of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’'s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in an
existing subsidiary through distribution of shares in the
subsidiary to the shareholders of the Company where
the subsidiary is ultimately controlled by the same party
both before and after the distribution, the carrying
amount of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in its relative
interest in the subsidiary. The Group measures the
distribution and the liability to distribute non-cash
assets as a dividend to its owners at the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the subsidiary’s net
assets and transfer to non-controlling interests.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
ajoint venture.

Investments in associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss on the statement of financial
position of the Company.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and
other similar allowances.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies FESTEGR (&)
(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued) W= mER (|

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has been passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Income from concessionaire sales is recognised upon
sales of goods by the relevant shops based on certain
percentage of turnover in accordance with the terms of
contracts. When the concessionaires fail to meet the
minimum guarantee income in accordance with the
terms of contracts, the minimum guarantee amount is
recognised as income.

Service income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Dividend income from investment is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subseguent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or 10ss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the
amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided during
the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for
capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies TESTTHEE (E)
(continued)
Investment properties (continued) BEWE(E)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Club debentures
Club debentures are measured at cost less any
impairment losses.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an income in the
period in which they are incurred.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as
a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the
entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
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Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through
sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using
weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies TESTTHEE (E)
(continued)
Financial instruments E@MTHR

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently
measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost less
impairment loss (except for debt investments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition):

. the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Income is recognised on an effective interest method
for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is recognised in profit
or loss and is included in “investment income” line item.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at
FVTPL, unless the Group designates an investment that
is not held for trading as at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The Group
has not designated investments in unlisted equity
securities as at FVTOCI.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost
criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition,
debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria
but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.
A debt instrument may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases.

Debt instruments are reclassified from amortised cost
to FVTPL when the business model is changed such that
the amortised cost criteria are no longer met.
Reclassification of debt instruments that are designated
as FVTPL on initial recognition is not allowed.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or 10ss is
included in the “investment income” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned
on these financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #& B3 3R & MsE (&)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies FESTEGR (&)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SRIT A (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) SWMEERME(E)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 30 days, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subseguent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subseguent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with to the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. FESIBER(E)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SR T R (&)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments cHMEBERBRATA (&)

(continued)

Equity instruments RANT A

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a BATHARBBEASEEELNBRMAERER
residual interest in the assets of the Group after HRTHEERZ(EMNELD  AASEEEITHRAT
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued BB WATS R IBHI B B BRI A B IR -
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,

net of direct issue costs.

710z HOday [enuuy  Pe3Wr SBUIPIOH [BUOIIBUISIU| DjAISHT

BB A A B IR AS BB A O] BB o R S HABR o
BE L& BOREHEARFNERAL TG
EREFAREKBRNFERS -

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating

the amortised cost of a financial liability and of

allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the

effective interest rate, transaction costs and other

BRM %
BERMNEFEE - BAEREAEASRARZ
B AR D BRI B WA 2 T50E - BEFIE
e-RESREBEZRNFHR(WER) EE
HIM M S AE R RE IR TRAT R RIR S R (B Y&
BFEXNRWRAL BERAE - ZHRARE
by BT RAR Y 2 BB BEIR Z N 1) PR
R 2 BREDFEZ & -

premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

MBS ERMTEMER

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL.

BN TFEFABRZEHEE
EHABEERFEERERIBEE /R A FER
ANEBERHY B A FES ABENZRAE -

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: HHEHBETEER SRaBERolEasEIEs

=1

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of . EHKENEZEENEREEHRNEEE -
repurchasing it in the near term; or i

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of o RYIPHER ERASERAREERMNA]
identified financial instruments that the Group BREMIEMAEN—2o BEAEKEA
manages together and has a recent actual pattern ERCHEN R ER 5
of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a o ER-—EBATARE BTES EHKG
financial guarantee contract or a designated and ERERKIETAAEIRERT AN
effective hedging instrument. HTH-

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement AEFTEEENRSNEEEEREREZZN
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in FEEN « FREEET ABREEFRN[E
which they arise. The net gain or loss is included in the Bzl eREAREsBREaENF B -
“investment income” line item in profit or loss and

includes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

BAFEAANERZEHABRATENE
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank borrowings,
bonds, trade and other payables, concessionaire sales
payable, amount due to a joint venture and amount
due to a non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of employee services received in an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction is
determined by reference to the fair value of share
options at the grant date. The fair value of employee
services is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share-based payment reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share based payment
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets
(continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Other government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates

are recognised in the period in which the estimates are

revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the

period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgement, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that has
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolio and concluded that none of the
Group’s investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, the directors of the Company
have determined that the sale presumption that the
carrying amounts of the investment properties are
presumed to be recovered by sale is not rebutted. The
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on
changes in fair value of the investment properties
situated in Hong Kong, as it is expected that the Group
will not subject to any income taxes on disposal of its
investment properties situated in Hong Kong. On the
other hand, the Group has recognised deferred taxes
on changes in fair value of the investment properties
situated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") as
those properties are subject to land appreciation taxes
and enterprise income taxes upon disposal. The
deferred tax liabilities in respect of land appreciation
taxes in the PRC are determined based on valuations of
the investment properties performed by independent
professional valuers and on the assumption that the
values are the actual proceeds to be received from the
sale of these properties.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The Group has a portfolio of investments in which the
directors of the Company confirm that the business
model of holding these investments is not just to
collect the contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Accordingly, they are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 and
revised in October 2010. At 31 December 2014, the
Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value
through profit or loss which are approximately
HK$3,899,564,000 (2013: HK$3,345,920,000).
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Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Income taxes

At 31 December 2014, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of approximately HK$650.6
million (2013: HKS$493.9 million) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future assessable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where
the estimated future assessable profits or taxable
temporary difference are more than previously
estimated, a material recognition of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss
for the period in which the revised estimate takes place.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
As described in note 25, the Group has investment in an
unlisted equity investment (representing the 10% equity
interest in an entity in the PRC, Shenyang Jiajian
Property Development Limited (“Shenyang Jiajian”)) with
carrying amount of HK$50.7 million (2013: HK$50.7
million) in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2014. The management
estimated its fair value taking into account primarily the
fair value of underlying property held by the investee
after adjusting for lack of marketability of the equity
investment. Favourable or unfavourable change to the
estimation could affect the fair value of the investment
measured at fair value through profit or loss. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, there is no
significant change in the fair value of the Group’s
unlisted equity investment during the year.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Investment properties situated in the PRC

As described in note 17, investment properties that are
situated in the PRC are stated at fair value at 31
December 2014 which are determined by the directors
of the Company with reference to a valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer
carried out at 30 November 2014 and recent property
market data of similar properties in the relevant
locations. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the fair value of these properties at 31
December 2014 approximates the fair value at 30
November 2014. The fair value of the Group’s
investment properties situated in Hong Kong and the
PRC at 30 November 2014 was arrived at based on the
direct comparison approach assuming sale of each of
the property interests in their existing state and making
references to comparable sales transactions as available
in the relevant markets. The fair value of the Group’s
investment properties situated in the PRC at 31
December 2013 were determined based on the income
method — direct capitalisation approach by capitalising
future rental income derived from the property interest
at an appropriate market yield for the remaining term
of the land use rights of the properties. The directors of
the Company considered that the change in valuation
technique with respect to those properties in the PRC
at 31 December 2014 is appropriate as the valuation
technique used in the current year is based on market
price of similar properties and locations, and shall
equally reflect the property value as compare to income
approach used in the prior year which was based on
adjusted market rentals and capitalisation rate. At 31
December 2014, the carrying amount of those
properties are of approximately HK$661,003,000 (2013:
HKS$678,353,000). In relying on the valuation reports of
the independent professional valuers, the management
has exercised its judgment and is satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the market
conditions prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Any changes in the market conditions will affect
the fair value of the investment properties of the
Group.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The board
of directors of the Company has a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

4.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to
the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s
investment properties. At the end of each reporting
period, the management of the Group works closely
with the qualified external valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.
The Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs
where inputs can be derived observable quoted prices
in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not
available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that
include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change
in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the board of directors
of the Company. Information about the valuation
techniques and inputs used in determining the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties are disclosed
in note 17.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s financial
assets at FVTPL, the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group will assess the
valuation of financial instruments based on quoted bid
prices of the previous trading day in the over-the-
counter markets or quoted market prices provided by
brokers at the end of each reporting period. For the fair
value of the Group’s unlisted equity investment
(representing the 10% equity interest in Shenyang
Jiajian), the management of the Group will assess its fair
value taking into account primarily the fair value of
underlying property held by the investee after adjusting
for lack of marketability of the equity investment at the
end of the reporting period. In estimating the fair value
of the Group’s financial liabilities at FVTPL (representing
the Group’s derivative financial liabilities as disclosed in
note 29), the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group will assess the
valuation of the derivative financial liabilities based on
discounted cash flow method at the end of the
reporting period. The management of the Group will
exercise their judgements based on their experience to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the valuation model. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets/
liabilities, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported
to the board of directors of the Company. Note 6
provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of the Group’s financial
assets/liabilities at FVTPL.

4.
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policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, derivative
financial liabilities, amount due from/to a joint venture,
concessionaire sales payable, bank borrowings, bonds
and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#RKM F (&)
g for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE
(2
3
g.
3
z Capital Risk Management 5. EXEKRER
= The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AEBEEREERN  UBRASE BB
S the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BIRFEKE  RSBBELCESRBRALR
5 while maximising the return to stakeholders through BRERERERR - NEE 2 BRI E A
5 the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The FEHER -
= Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
z year.
5
® The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, REEZERNRBRIEED (BIEMH 287130
3 which includes the bank borrowings and bonds WEZEERES) MBRReRESEEDNA
N disclosed in notes 28 and 30, respectively, net of cash RARRRHE AR (BREEEITRA - &
§ and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners HBRIRZEEF) -
of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained profits.
The directors of the Company review the capital ANRIES TR ERERE - EAZRNZ
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the —#n  EELEEREANAKANEZIEE AIER
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital ZRER - BEEEZER  A5ERBERRM
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based &8~ BT R IRM B E A REITHESNE
on recommendations of the directors of the Company, BIR A BB FE LS R -
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.
Financial Instruments 6. £€@MITA
Categories of financial instruments LR T EER
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL (note 25) BAFEFAERZEREE
(Bg3E25) 3,899,564 3,345,920
Financial assets measured at amortised cost IR AGTEZ S RVEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BFERERIRESEEY) 8,595,005 9,410,693
Financial liabilities SRAE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost — iR# KA E - SR AE 12,545,515 13,270,282
Derivative financial liabilities PTEEmasE 7,307 12,580
Financial risk management objectives and AR EE R N RBUER

REEZZZeRIARBRITAFLRSE
BAFEAANBRZEREE  BERIEME
WoRIa - B R EMENRIE - STESRE
&5 B N —REECERE  EBAFTSE
EHEE - RITEE - BFRENHERR
—EIFERBRRZHIA - ELSRMT AERE
EEMERE - BitEFeR TAMERZ AR R
BEBRERZBERHEN T - EREESEE
REEZERRE - AR R RA B REIUE
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Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is HKS in which most of the
transactions are denominated. The functional currency
of subsidiaries operating in the PRC is Renminbi ("RMB”)
in which most of its transactions are denominated.
Certain subsidiaries of the Group which provides
financing function for the Group, their functional
currency is United States Dollars (“USS”).

The Group has certain bank balances which are
denominated in USS and RMB (being currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group
entity) amounting to approximately HK$1,711,606,000
(2013: HK$2,486,354,000) and HKS$1,345,337,000 (2013:
HKS$1,234,161,000), respectively. Furthermore, the
Group has certain bank borrowings which are
denominated in US$ and RMB and Euro (“EUR”) (being
currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entity) amounting to approximately
HKS$968,600,000 (2013: HK$407,929,000), nil (2013:
HKS$371,490,000) and HK$209,798,000 (2013:
HK$346,973,000), respectively.

In addition, certain financial assets at FVTPL are
denominated in USS, RMB and EUR (being currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective
group entity) amounting to approximately
HKS$2,180,209,000 (2013: HKS2,257,212,000),
HKS$1,023,734,000 (2013: HK$396,970,000) and
HKS$258,716,000 (2013: HK$164,025,000), respectively.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors

foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.

Under the pegged exchange rate system in Hong Kong,
HKS is effectively pegged against USS and therefore the
Group is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk of RMB
and EUR, hence the sensitivity of USS$ against HKS is not
presented below. In addition, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, other foreign currency risks
are not significant to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 3.0% (2013: 3.0%) in
exchange rate of RMB and EUR against HKS, while all
other variables are held constant. 3% (2013: 3%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to the key management personnel and
represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for a
3.0% (2013: 3.0%) change in foreign currency rate. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit
for the year where HKS weakens against the relevant
foreign currency. Where HKS strengthens against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year and the
balances below would be negative.

ERTIA (&)
B R EE B B RBEK (&)

N LB ()
T%E¥§‘J$E.EA}\E’§§&@\?§E}%%ZET
BEHIR3.0% (=T — =4 :3.0%) FEE
51251@J; i AT A EAth BT T - 3.0%
ZE—=F:3.0%)2RERAFTEERABR
HABRERFZINERBGFURE - IIMREKRER
B8N E RGN T c MRELSTEER
MEMRUIINESZEENEREIEER - WLA3.0%
ZE—=F :3.0%) BEETHRE - THIIEE
KRBT & INEBE R OF 55 - F F E i A1
o BT S SN TE IR 0R 0 - HFEE AR
HeAREMARNTE  FTIE®RY AR

2 o

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t—HLEE

2014 2013

—E-{F —E—=F

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FAET

RMB AR 71,072 37,789
EUR BR 7 1,468 (5,488)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank deposits, fixed coupon rate
bonds and fixed-rate balances with a joint venture
(2013: fixed-rate bank deposits and bank borrowings,
fixed coupon rate bonds and fixed-rate balances with a
joint venture). The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk relating to the Group’s variable-rate
bank borrowings (2013: variable-rate bank borrowings).
The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has
been determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for bank borrowings (excluding the specific bank
borrowings for construction purpose) at the end of the
reporting period and the reasonably possible change
taking place at the beginning of each year and held
constant throughout the year. A 100 basis points (2013:
100 basis points) increase or decrease is used for
variable-rate balances when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. The Group’s sensitivity to
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period
while all other variables were held constant after taking
into account the impact of the tax and finance costs
capitalised in construction in progress is as follows:

RIA (&)
B EMER B KR EE (8)

Fl 2= m B ()

AREFHBRESRMNERER 2 BRE - HRER
WEMRBERRITER (TREREZRITE
BEERERR) ARREFFEVA BRI EHER
ZBYMNEFRIFTIEET - 100EEE (=
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fEER - BRI EEIRA B A EDE SR = [
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HMERBERENT

Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=+—HLEFE

2014 2013
—E—MF —ET—=F
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHBT FET
(Decrease) increase in post-tax profit for the year 4 AR 118 5 F O 2> ) 140
— as a result of increase in interest rate — BERFER A (36,359) (35,801)
— as a result of decrease in interest rate — BRFIETBE 36,359 35,801

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 December 2014 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has
formulated a defined fixed credit policy and delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade receivable
regularly at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced. Retail sales are mainly on cash
basis, either in cash, debit card or credit card payments.
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Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies or
government authorities.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
in relation to trade and other receivables, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of
amount due from a joint venture. However, the
management considers the risk associated with amount
due from a joint venture is minimal.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
|locations is mainly in Hong Kong, which accounted for
approximately 50% (2013: 50%) of the total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2014.

Price risk

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL and derivative
financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to price risk. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. Details of the financial assets at
FVTPL and derivative financial liabilities are set out in
notes 25 and 29, respectively.

The Group’s sensitivity to price risk on the financial
assets at FVTPL and derivative financial liabilities at the
end of the reporting period while all other variables
were held constant is as follows:

ST A (E)
B R EE B B RBEK (&)
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T2 RITRBFRE  BRBESZEERR
AR -
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BEFRIAZRABRIE -
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ERERE
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ity AREEmSERRR - EREABERFR
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Eif \BEmzeBEERITESRAGBZHE
7 RIE M RE 25 12 29 ©

EHMBBERTET  AEERRE S
BREEAFEFABREZ EMEERTES
BEEZERERBRENT

HKS$'000
FAET
2014 —ZET—mE
Reasonably possible change in price B2 0] LpCE)| 5%
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit for the year FERR I ERN I CR )
— as a result of increase in price — BB IE I 190,999
— as a result of decrease in price — HRERBD (190,999)
2013 —E—=%5
Reasonably possible change in price B 7 A& IR s 5%
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit for the year FBRBLE R8O 2>)
— as a result of increase in price — BIMERIE N 162,497
— as a result of decrease in price — BERERRE D (162,497)
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Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings and bonds as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2014,
the Group has available unutilised borrowing facilities of
approximately HKS5,875.6 million (2013: HK$2,662.1
million). Details of bank borrowings are set out in note
28.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments.
The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted gross (inflows) and outflows on those
derivatives that require gross settlement. When the
amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has
been determined by reference to the projected interest
rates/exchange rates as illustrated by the interest rate/
exchange rate existing at the end of the reporting
period. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative
financial instruments are prepared based on the
contractual maturities as the management consider
that the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of
derivatives.
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Financial Instruments (continued) 6. SRITHA(HE)
Financial risk management objectives and B R EE B A R BUR ()
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRAR (&)
. PP : : N P2 2N
Liquidity and interest risk tables HEBE R R BER R
Weighted
average  Ondemand/ Total
effective less than undiscounted
interest rate 1month 13 3 months 15 Over  cashflows Carrying
METH BER/ months to1year years 5years BERR amount
ERAE —-fAR -EZfff ZM@AE-% -ERE RELE RehE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn FiEn TEx TiEn TFEn TiEn TiEn
31 December 2014 —E-ME+ZA=1-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 £mEE
Trade and other payables [ REMERFE - 1811,672 51,395 20,903 - - 1,883,970 1,883,970
Amount due toanon-controlling ~ ERHBAF -2
shareholder of subsidiaries FERREZER - - - - 137,665 - 137,665 137,665
Bank borrowings — variablerate  S4T{EE - FEME
(note 1) (Bst1) 1.95% 1,274,360 312,384 485,846 2,257,981 192,824 4,523,395 4354412
Bonds E% 4.90% 101,119 - 200,531 4,575,406 2,621,837 7,499,093 6,169,468
3,187,751 363,779 707,280 6,971,052 2,814,261 14,044123 12,545,515
Derivative — gross settlement TETA—ARLE
Interest rate swap lES L
— Inflow N - (37 m (1,308) (935) (2,391)
— Qutflow — il - - 761 3,046 1139 4,946
- 37 650 1738 204 2,55 1,857
Derivative — gross settlement TETA—BBLE
Cross currency swap TNERES
— Inflow —RA - (1,232) - - - (1,232
— Qutflow - fmﬁ - 3,367 4,525 - - 7892
- 2135 4,525 - - 6,660 5,450
Derivative — gross settlement TETA—BBLE
Written put options REHE
— Outflow (note 2 — ik () 152,731 113,054 - - - 265,785 2978




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #& B3 3R & MsE (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

6. Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)
Notes:

1 Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans
amounted to HK$1,268.0 million and HK$942.4 million
respectively. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that
such bank loans will be repaid within one year from the
end of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$1,269.0 million
(2013: HKS$943.1 million).

(2)  The amount included above for written put options is the
maximum amount the Group is obliged to settle under
the written put option arrangements if the underlying
index or ETF go to zero upon the exercise or expiry of
the written put options. Certain written put options
amounted to HK$77,475,000 (2013: nil) are included in
the “on demand or less than 1 month” time band in the
above maturity analysis as those options could be
exercised at any time before the Expiration Date (as
defined in note 25). The remaining written put options
are included in the respective time bands according to
the Expiration Dates of the options (as detailed in note
25) since the options could only be exercised on those
dates. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is very unlikely that
such an amount will be payable under the written put
option arrangements as the chance that the index or ETF
would drop to zero is remote. However, this estimate is
subject to change depending on the market volatility of
underlying index and ETF of the written put options and
final settlement price of the options along with other
factors.

6.

R IT A (&)
B RBREE R M REBCE ()

REBE R ()
RBESRF|CERE ()

5L -

‘N

M A5 12 2SR IR IRTT B B1E L5 R4
FEBRERE—EAZANEE R
FT+_A=+—"BERRZ=ZFT—=F+=A4
=+—B ' ZEEGBRNBITERESHRE
$£1,268,000,000 7% 7T & 942,400,000 7T ° &
RREIAREENP BRI - EREERITTET
FRIEEERARER FMAEE - EFNR
B ENEESRHBREHPRE—FRIZR
BERpEaERBEER BERANASHE
F B IR & m H # 41,269,000,000%8 (==
— =% : 943,100,000/ 7T) °

BT R I S RRUA R H - anARRE fE Bisk
ROMEBEESHKET PO HEERA
SERRBEPEGNTTEEZIZAEE - B
877,475,000 8 TG I (— T — =4 : )
BHERRFBRRIR —E A ZBRREHER
REEIRAITTE CER& RITFE25) - ARG
HERZZIH B D AR R SR BEAER
FIHA B R ITEE (RMIFE25) « IRBRIREHIHIR
BHE NEHERRRSIMESESERE
TORGRI AEERABERLMESH
FBEXNZ RO EMERIE - A - EMh&T
TERENRARERNRGMEEESZM
KB E - HEsKEEEERAEBER
A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

Financial Instruments (continued) 6. SRITHA(HE)
Financial risk management objectives and BEEREERNREE (E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESEE ()
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) TEVE 2 LT B (E)
Weighted
average On demand/ Total
effective less than undiscounted
Interest rate 'month 13 3 months 15 Over cash flows Carrying
EFS BER/ months t0 1 year years 5 years B3R amount
BRI —-f8AR -2=ff Z@ERE-£ —ERF RENE Bejig REE
% HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEL THL TEL TET TEL TEL Tar
31 December 2013 —E-ZE+ZA=1-F
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - 1,7%,776 265,312 29227 - - 2,091,315 2,091,315
Amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries - - - - 180,893 - 180,893 180,893
Amount due to ajoint venture 0.50% - - 156,783 - - 156,783 156,391
Bank borrowing — fixed rate 3.50% - 3,206 379,576 - - 382,782 311490
Bank borrowings — variable rate 1.69% 948,506 5173 359,626 2,911,286 - 4,464,591 4,304,717
Bonds &5 4.94% 101,719 - 200,531 4,778,844 2,720,250 7,801,344 6,165,476
2,847,001 513,691 1,125,743 7,871,023 2,720,250 15,077,708 13,270,282
Derivative — gross settlement ETE—BELEE
Interest rate swap gkt
— Inflow —RA - (34) (103) (1,060) (1416) (2,613)
— Qutflow — i - - 761 3,046 1,900 5,707
- (34) 658 1,986 484 3,09 1172
Derivative — gross settlement (TETE—BBLE
(ross currency swap INEREH
— Inflow —RA = (237) (888) (397) - (1522)
— Qutflow — i - - 5918 12,188 - 18,106
- (237) 5,030 1,791 - 16,584 11,408

The amounts included above for variable interest rate

instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is

subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined

at the end of the reporting period.

EXHTASRABEZIBINETAREZ
TR FRFPDANNEEBH AN RSHEEE
HPrEEmETmEaE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #& B3 3R & MsE (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the
valuation technigue(s) and inputs used).

I A (&)
SEMIAZATEE

AEBEBEERSBABECH LR
A FE

AEEETHEMEENTMBEEESERSE
HIRFIR AT EAE - TRIEHBBOAREE
GUEMEEMNERBEENATFECERME
JEMEE R ARE) -

Relationship of
Significant unobservable
Financial assets/financial Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable inputs to fair
liabilities DTER hierarchy and key input(s) input value
31.12.2014 31.12.2013 EEREN
—E-lNEF —E-=F NFE HEREM BAELEREN WAHEE
SREE /SREE +=A=+-H +=ZA=+-H ERFE FERANHE BARE ATEMEEF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL
RAFEFAEEZZEREE
1. Listed equity 495,721 575,643 Level1 Quoted bid prices in active markets. N/A N/A
securities
EFARE EH— RERTSRNEANE - TER TER
2. Listed debt 830,745 1,087,027 Level 2 Quoted bid prices in over-the-counter  N/A N/A
securities markets.
FiES EHh= BN S TIEEANE TER TEA
3. Listed investment 1,224,957 643,673 Level 2 Quoted market prices provided by N/A N/A
funds brokers which are financial
institutions. (note 1)
IREES EH= {ERE RS REERMRY TEA TEA
miHER (HE1)
4 Unlisted certificates 779,075 393,878 Level 2 Quoted bid prices in the over-the- N/A N/A
of deposit counter markets.
FEMFHE EHh- BN ETHENE TEA TEA
5. Unlisted hedge 160,937 396,419 Level 2 Quoted market prices provided by N/A N/A
funds brokers which are financial
institutions. (note 1)
FEMERES EHh- {ERE R & REERMRY TEA TEA

5 ER (1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. TRMIA(E)
Fair value measurements of financial SRIAEZAFENE (&)
instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group's financial assets and AEFECHEERSREEREEHELENE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value B A F{E (&)

on a recurring basis (continued)

Relationship of

710z HOday [enuuy  Pe3Wr SBUIPIOH [BUOIIBUISIU| DjAISHT

Significant unobservable
Financial assets/financial Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable inputs to fair
liabilities ALER hierarchy and key input(s) input value
31.12.2014 31.12.2013 ELEEN
—Z-mE —E-=F ATE HEFEN BAELEEN BAHER
SREE/SRER +ZA=+-H +ZRA=+-H SHREE TEBRANEE (PN ¢ NFENEE
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets at FVTPL
BRATFEGABEZEREE
6. Unlisted investment 322,118 169,753 Level 2 Quoted market prices provided by N/A N/A
portfolios brokers which are financial
institutions. (note 1)
FEmREES = {ERISRE & BRI BRI TEA TEA
minER (1)
7. Unlisted debt 30,675 28,867 Level 2 Quoted bid prices in the over-the- N/A N/A
securities counter markets.
FEMEH = SR S MIGHEAE TiEm NER
8. Unlisted equity 10 per cent 10 per cent Level 3 Reference to the fair value of the The fair value of ~ The higher the
investment equity interest equity interest underlying property and after the underlying fair value of
in Shenyang in Shenyang adjustment for lack of marketability. property based the underlying
Jiajian which Jiajian which on valuation property,
major asset is major asset is model. (note 3) the higher
a commercial a commercial the fair value.
property held property held
for sale for sale
FEMBRARE 10% &G EE 10% &5 EE EH= SEZEAMEN A TERERS ERffEEN BEEEMEZ
(EE—& (EmE—& TS A - ETARRE AEERRE
FIEHERE FIEHERE MENNTFE BEATE
VEILC M) iE (FiE3) i o
50,660 (note 2) 50,660
(B
9. Written put options 4,676 - Level 2 Quoted prices in the over-the- N/A N/A
counter markets
R R EH= LS T 0-UN TEA TER
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
BRATEFABRZEREE
10. Interest rate swap 1,857 1172 Level 2 Discounted cash flow: Future cash N/A N/A
flows are estimated based on
forward interest rates (from
observable yield curves at the end
of the reporting period) and
contract interest rates, discounted
at a rate that reflects the credit risk
of various counterparties.
FlRH £k BRRERE  ERNEREHE TEm NER

(E 3R & HIRES AT B R e oK )
MEHNE - ERREZZEFH
EERBMERR - BitAKRE

e
JLE °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #& B3 3R & MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

Financial Instruments (continued) 6.
Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and

financial liabilities that are measured at fair value

on a recurring basis (continued)

RI A (&)
SEMITAZATFEE(H)

AEESREERSHABEREEMHEENS
H 2 E ()

Relationship of

Significant unobservable
Financial assets/financial Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable inputs to fair
liabilities DEER hierarchy and key input(s) input value
31.12.2014 31.12.2013 BEBEN
—E-MmF —E-=f ATE HEREN BAELEEN WAHEHR
SWMEE SRAE +ZA=+-H +ZA=+-H SHEE FERANEE [ZPN ¢ ATEMEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
11. Foreign currency 5,450 11,408 Level 2 Discounted cash flow: Future cash N/A N/A
forward contracts flows are estimated based on
difference between predetermined
forward exchange rates and spot
exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period discounted at
a rate that reflects the credit risk of
various counterparties.
SNERHIE K i BRBRERE BN REERHN NERA TER
WEBREABEROER - &R
BEXFHHFOEERRFEER -
B RRRENE »
Notes: ftsE -

(1) Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are
financial institutions represent the net asset value of the
respective funds, based on the quoted prices of the
underlying investments, reported to the trustee by the
administrators.

(2)  There was no significant change in fair value during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

(3) If the fair value of the underlying property is 5% higher/
lower while all other variables were held constant, the
carrying amount of the unlisted equity investment would
increase/decrease by HK$7,769,000 (31 December 2013:
HKS4,301,000).

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during
both years.

m ERRENSBEBIRHNTISER IR
HERAEREIFEA  BEBEBERERE
EEZRESEEFE -

2 RZZE—WF+-—A=+—HILFE AFE
REBENEL -

(3 ENEEREMEZ AFEN LR TES% M
FreaEma]EREHFTE  FLTRAKE
) B T & #6385 hn Rk 407,769,000 T (= F
—=%+=ZA=+—H 4,301,000/ L) °

F—W F_FNE=R2RBESFREFH
i) I AR AT RS o

-
o
N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

Financial Instruments (continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at

6. M IAE)

AFEFERGERRE
RIZBHER AV RN EREENS
EEEAENTFEES -

amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values:

fra MR
BAENE

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
“E-mE+ZA=+—-A | T =FFt-A=1—H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE AFE BRMAEE AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FAT FAET
Financial liabilities SREE
Bonds B 6,169,468 6,432,655 6,165,476 6,250,422
Amount due to a non-controlling  FEfHI B A T2 —17
shareholder of subsidiary Sz A% A% 3R A R IE 137,665 134,469 180,893 176,920
Fair value hierarchy DNFEEERERE
31 December 2014
—E-NMFE+=-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& E& E=4 st
HKS$’'000 HK$'000 HKS’'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FHERT FHERT
Financial assets at FVTPL: AT EFTABR
TREE -
— Listed equity securities — FHRE 495,721 - - 495,721
— Listed debt securities — tmEH - 830,745 - 830,745
— Listed investment funds — EMREES - 1,224,957 - 1,224,957
— Unlisted certificates of — IEFTESE
deposit - 779,075 - 779,075
— Unlisted hedge funds — JELERES - 160,937 - 160,937
— Unlisted investment —ELEMEEHRE
portfolios - 322,118 - 322118
— Unlisted debt securities — EETES - 30,675 - 30,675
— Unlisted equity investment — JE LRI E
(note) Q=) - - 50,660 50,660
— Written put options — Roh HAsE - 4,676 - 4,676
Total FGH 495,721 3,353,183 50,660 3,899,564
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: BAFEFABZZ
ERBE -
Derivative financial liabilities PTETREE - 7,307 - 7,307
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #R4& & ##H 3& M & () ll
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R
%
=
A
6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. £@TA(E) Bi
Fair value hierarchy (continued) N ESRERS(E) B
31 December 2013 =
—E—=F+=-A=1+—8H =
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total m
F—R B BE=M 15 F
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 F
T THT THT THT #
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEGFABREZ
SENEE
— Listed equity securities — FTRE 575,643 - - 575,643
— Listed debt securities — EWmESH - 1,087,027 - 1,087,027
— Listed investment funds — EMEEES - 643,673 - 643,673
— Unlisted certificates of — EEMFHE
deposit - 393,878 - 393,878
— Unlisted hedge funds — JELETRERES - 396,419 - 396,419
— Unlisted investment —3ELmIREASG
portfolios - 169,753 - 169,753
— Unlisted debt securities — I LTES - 28,867 - 28,867
— Unlisted equity investment  — JE R A
(note) & (MisE) - - 50,660 50,660
Total et 575,643 2,719,617 50,660 3,345,920
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: BAFESABREZ
SEBEE
Derivative financial liabilities fTESmaE - 12,580 - 12,580
Note: The unlisted equity investment at 31 December 2014 and Wi R=ZZT—mFEF+_A=+—AR=-_ZFT—=F
31 December 2013, represents the retained 10% equity T A=+ —HZIELTRARERRESE
interest in Shenyang Jiajian. There was no significant BIRB 0% e - EMEFENATELRE

change in fair value during both years. mENEL -
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g for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

53

5

g

3

g.

3

£ 7. Turnover 7. EXE

g Turnover represents the amount received and EEBEARBERAFERMIREFELER

g receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside Z B R e WO IE R T 0 M S S AR R I -

5 customers, net of discounts and sales related taxes, HFEEEERA C REWAURBESWA - 2%

g income from concessionaire sales, service income and DT -

= rental income during the year, and is analysed as

z follows:

5

» 2014 2013

8 —E—mE —T—=4

g HK$'000 HK$"000

= FET BT
Sales of goods — direct sales EmiEE —EHEHEE 3,254,212 3,268,622
Income from concessionaire sales FRTEMEHE A 2,473,805 2,442,305
Service income RRFS WA 114,307 123,728
Rental income Ha2lA 127,416 120,680

5,969,740 5,955,335
The cost of sales are analysed as follows: HEKRATT -
Cost of goods sold EmEERAR 2,316,401 2,313,926
Other cost of sales HA S 69,529 80,883
2,385,930 2,394,809

The Group has no customers that contributed over 10% MNAEREE  AEBVETSSEBABAE

of the total revenue of the Group for both years. B4l 5> 10% o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #& B3 3R & MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

8. Segment Information 8. oHEER
Information reported to the chief executive officer of ERERGIEATEEEARANEFNTE
the Company, being the chief operating decision maker, CTEMTIEEFREANETE Y A RE RLLH P
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment i@ BERFE - FERS Bk HERIES
of segment performance focusing on two reportable FE e AEBIZEEEERARAZEHDLIKR L
and operating segments geographically, Hong Kong and EFERDEERRBEFHEZABHREETELE
the PRC which are managed separately. The Group S EB o

determines its operating segments based on the
internal reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker that are used to allocate resources and
assess performance.

Segment revenues and results DI EE R A
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AEBIZAREDHE D 2 Wam RELE DT
results by reportable and operating segment: N
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
5B L HEBE
HKS’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
For the year ended HE—-Z—-—HWE+=A
31 December 2014 =+—HBLEE
Segment revenue SR e
External sales HONHE 4,689,905 1,279,835 5,969,740
Result E
Segment result DEBELE 2,079,520 235,196 2,314,716
Investment income BERA 413,849
Fair value changes on investment WEMENTFEED
properties (3,053)
Share of profit of a joint venture FEE—REBERT 26,463
Share of profits of associates JE(EE & N R)E 347,157
Finance costs &R (267,267)
Profit before taxation [ 5 A1 a1 2,831,865

-
-
-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

Segment Information (continued) 8. HEER (&)
Segment revenues and results (continued) DEBU R e A (4])
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
a5 s A BEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FH T FET FET
For the year ended BE-—Z=—=%+=A
31 December 2013 =+—HILEE
Segment revenue oS
External sales HHNHE 4,725,027 1,230,308 5,955,335
Result A
Segment result DERELE 2,113,268 315,740 2,429,008
Investment income "EWA 414,201
Fair value changes on investment EMENFEEZS
properties 6,491
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & BB A R R 157,160
Share of profit of a joint venture BliE—REEERT 31,870
Share of profits of associates FEAG B 2 2 B K 349,554
Finance costs B E AR (237,807)
Profit before taxation B F54 BT s ) 3,150,477

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 3. Segment profit represents
the profit earned by each segment without share of
profits of associates and a joint venture, fair value
changes on investment properties, investment income,
gain on disposal of subsidiaries and finance costs. This is
the measure reported to the chief executive officer of
the Company for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment.

A ERE D AR BATBUR AN R BN I T 3 A
FARFIREER - 2 FR N ES D BRI 28
Mo ERABIEBERATAR-—REELER
MoREWMEIFEZLS  KERA - HEKH
BRI REE A o WIEIRTIREAR AT
BENTERERD B RRBEN G ZRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #& B3 3R & MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

8. Segment Information (continued) 8.
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

2ERE R ()

DWEERKME

RNEEIZ A HRED B E

InzE&EERAEDTN

liabilities by reportable and operating segment: T
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
5E e REHE
HKS’'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHBT FET FHET
As at 31 December 2014 R-Z—NmFE+=A
=+—8
Assets EE
Segment assets D EREEE 8,097,790 11,307,214 19,405,004
Financial assets at FVTPL BATFEFAEBRE
SREE 3,899,564
Interest in a joint venture R—REBELEER 556,835
Amount due from a joint venture B —REEDENRIE 11,638
Interests in associates REEE R A= 2,926,323
Unallocated assets ROBEE 48,531
Consolidated total assets LEEERAE 26,847,895
Liabilities BE&E
Segment liabilities DERBE 1,218,265 1,390,140 2,608,405
Bank borrowings RITEE 4,354,412
Bonds &% 6,169,468
Unallocated liabilities FoBEE 726,697
Consolidated total liabilities e BaEBE 13,858,982
consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
&5E e REHE
HKS’'000 HK$'000 HKS$’'000
FHET FET FET
Other segment information HittpHER
Amounts included in the measure of  stE P EEZR D LEE
segment profit or loss or BIEZ EEE -
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets IERBEERNE 214,944 522,015 736,959
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMELREZITE
equipment 88,336 164,862 253,198
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BE &&E
plant and equipment 28 k) (339) 1,080 71
(Reversal of) impairment and JE L BE 2% K% E b e W 2R TR
written-off of trade and (BEE) B E K& 58
other receivables 116 (1,042) (926)
Write-down of obsolete inventories S TE R B 17 427 444
Release of prepaid lease payments EAERIEE S - 24,370 24,370

113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

8. Segment Information (continued) 8. HEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PWEERAE (H)
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
BE H A EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FHT
As at 31 December 2013 R=-ZB—=F+=#
=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEVEE 8,713,169 11,242,283 19,955,452
Financial assets at FVTPL BN EFTAERZ
TREE 3,345,920
Interest in a joint venture N—FKEBEERER 486,231
Amount due from a joint venture e — R & B DR 230,570
Interests in associates R &N RS 2,682,188
Unallocated assets ROMEE 15,637
Consolidated total assets LAEBEME 26,715,998
Liabilities BE
Segment liabilities DEAEE 1,207,063 1,483,557 2,690,620
Amount due to a joint venture B —REEDERIEA 156,391
Bank borrowings RITEE 4,676,207
Bonds &% 6,165,476
Unallocated liabilities RAOMEE 763,534
Consolidated total liabilities meaErE 14,452,228
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
B e 4RAHAEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET
Other segment information Hith o I&E R

Amounts included in the measure of &9 EfiB sk H A E
segment profit or loss or BIEZ EEE -
segment assets:

Addition to non-current assets EREBEERE 31,911 1,138,238 1,170,149
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEEEEZITE

equipment 95,964 130,591 226,555
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - WE K&K

and equipment ZE1E 44 92 136
Impairment and written-off of JFE S B X K7 H At JiE U

trade and other receivables RIERE N T 1,099 232 1,331
(Reversal of) write-down of obsolete  #i57F & (B E]) MU B &

inventories (603) 250 (353)
Release of prepaid lease payments FENEERIEE L - 13,762 13,762
At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the RZE—OMF+_A=+—HNZ=ZZ—=4%F
unallocated segment assets represent club debentures +ZA=+—8 ' KoM IBEERKAE
held by the Group and dividend receivable from an FiFcegmEsrRER—BEE R T ZR
associate and unallocated segment liabilities mainly B EARPEMNDHEEEISRENTIE B
represent tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, amount EREEE  BNWBAR 2 — (I IEERARE
due to a non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries and HERTESmARE -

derivative financial liabilities.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #& B3 3R & MsE (&)
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Segment Information (continued) 8.

Geographical information

Analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by

HhEE R

72 ERE R ()

REEMAEMRID 2 NRESERBEEDNT

geographical location of the assets are detailed below: m
2014 2013
—E-mEF —F—=
Hong Kong PRC Hong Kong PRC
] 23] BB M
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT FAT
Non-current assets ERENEE 1,863,688 8,728,661 1,739,111 8,729,814

Note: Non-current assets excluded interests in associates and a

joint venture.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

9. HWA WBEREE

M ERBEETEENBERARR—REEDLE

2014 2013
—ZE—mF —E—=F
HKS$'000 HK$’000
F#ET FAT
Management fee income BEIBEBUA 104,180 97,666
Project income 5 B WA 9,492 9,271
Government subsidies (note a) BFAE) (FfsEa) 10,929 21,441
Net exchange (I0ss) gain SFIE R (E1E) A (80,695) 36,331
Others (note b) HAh (Fi=EDb) 143,474 144,058
187,380 308,767
Notes: B 5
(@  The amount represents the government subsidies (@ ZEEEPHHMSERRRE TOBIT/EE
received from the PRC local authorities for subsidising its 1?2%?1»‘5'&@%&%?53%?%%%}3&5%%&%%@ o
operational activities and promotional activities FFr 75 ## B iz 488 ] 55 B B 0GR AF o
conducted by the Group. All of them had no specific
conditions attached.
(b)  Others mainly represent bank credit card recharge and (b)  HbEBERKRBITEARERDNRMEUA -

commission income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 ===

10.

11.

—E+—A=+—HILEFE

Investment Income 10. REWA
2014 2013
—F-mEF —T=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income on bank deposits RITFRZFBWA 201,768 169,463
Imputed interest income (note) HEF SWA (M) 1,622 12,976
Dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL iz /A TF{EEI AIB%E 2 S REEN
R B A 29,615 31,189
Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL 2 A F{Et ABR 2 S REEM
FLBUA 46,380 52,670
Change in fair value of financial instruments: SREEQNFEZE)
Financial assets at FVTPL other than derivative PTTES BT BAUIMRATFE
financial instruments FFABRZ EMEE 128,654 147,734
Derivative financial instruments PTESmTA 193 (4,517)
Other interest income HAaF B WA 5,617 4,686
413,849 414,201

Note: Imputed interest income represents unwinding of
imputed interest arising on amortisation of fair value

adjustment of deferred consideration receivable in

respect of disposal of a subsidiary.

Hi5E - FE.#?W@Hﬁl)\%a%éﬁﬁlﬁ&iéﬁ’éllﬁll‘ﬁ%*%ﬁf%‘fé
AR HYEE R E R T EFRREAEL R FLE

Finance Costs 1. MERAK
2014 2013
—F-mE —T=F
HKS$’'000 HKS$'000
FET FAET
Interest on: ATIEEZHE :
Bank borrowings: IRITEE -
— wholly repayable within five years — AR AFREBEEER 100,187 76,935
— wholly repayable after five years — BRAFEEHREE 29 -
Bonds: &% :
— wholly repayable within five years — AR AFARBEEER 204,560 204,506
— wholly repayable after five years — AR AFBBEER 101,813 101,708
Others Hb 22,492 30,735
429,081 413,884
Less: Amounts capitalised in construction W ERIREZENMEERE
in progress (161,814) (176,077)
267,267 237,807
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 HE_ZT—NF  BEXNEz@EKRATIFEE
December 2014 arose from the Group’s certain RMB éﬁ’f%ﬁ? REDRAZ2ERRARIBITIZE
denominated borrowings at variable interest rate of The BERRZZHAREI10% 2 ARBEE - BE
People’s Bank of China Standard Loan Rate minus 10% MEABSWEZELESF HE_T—=F -
and USS denominated bonds at fixed interest rate of BEERNZREKETDIGEEEREE  FED

5.25% per annum on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs
capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2013
arose from the Group’s certain HKS denominated

borrowings at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate &% o
("HIBOR") plus 1.43% to 1.50% per annum, certain RMB

denominated borrowings at fixed interest rate of 3.5%

per annum and US$ denominated bonds at fixed

interest rate 5.25% per annum on qualifying assets.

PRBERBRITAEFREMETASLNTF
143 =150 2B TEE - BEMEXRIS
Bz A AREEEUARBEENER5255EZET
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12. Taxation 12. BIE
2014 2013
—T—MF —E-=4F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
The tax charge comprises: HEXHBETHEE -

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH 334,389 344,802
PRC Tax (Note) PRI RS R (M) 112,151 216,578
446,540 561,380

(Over)underprovision in prior years: BAEFE GEZ) T E#E:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFIEH (838) 6,440
PRC Tax PR ERTSRL (10,475) 2,835
(11,313) 9,275
435,227 570,655
Deferred tax charge (credit) (note 31) IRFERIASE (303K (FF3E31) 31,168 (90,407)
466,395 480,248

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

According to the requirements of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT")
effective from 1 January 1994 and amended on 8
January 2011, and the Implementation Rules on the
Provisional Regulations of the PRC on Land Appreciation
Tax effective from 27 January 1995 (collectively referred
to the “"LAT Regulations”), all gains arising from the sale
or transfer of real estate in the PRC with effect from 1
January 1994 are subject to LAT at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds from the sale of properties
less deductible expenditures including payments made
for acquisition of land use rights, costs and expenses
for the development of the land or for construction of
new buildings and supporting facilities, or the assessed
value for old buildings and structures, tax payable
relating to transfer of the real estate and other
deductible items prescribed by the Ministry of Finance.
Apart from the aforementioned deductions, property
developers enjoy an additional deduction, which is equal
to 20% of the payment made for acquisition of land use
rights and the costs of land development and
construction of new buildings or related facilities.

FRMEH TIRIE M EFE 2 Gt ERTHE A
2 16.5% =& °

R EARKMBEEMSVE(REMS
BOE D RIEEFRISBOEEMEIED - PRME L
RE-ZENFE A —RARZHER25% -

BE-—AAEFEF—A-—AREHRNPEARHK
ANEY + B (E R 1T R ([ LB (ETR ) R
—E-—F-ANAER M—ANAE—H
T ERRA R B G E TR 1T RO E i
MAMER(BI L EEBGEN D - 7
—NANAEF—-A—BREMETEEMENLE
SR T A A MR R i SR (E 2 3R (B
MEHENAEFRREATHRS - 83X
MR TR ¥R MERERRE
REERONAMER - HEFREYFERE
BORT S (E - G B 8 5 3 22 A JE A T BB AN B 7%
B EMHEAMMERIAR ) B RER RN 30% =
60% N EFH) L HIRETR « BT AR - St
EREHFAENME  BERINRKEL
HosE PR N -t B B AN SR T R S R R
b IEE) 20% ©

-
-
N
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= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
g for the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —ZT—NF+_HA=+—HIEFE
@
5
@
3
=3
o
2
z  12. Taxation (continued) 12. BiE (&)
o Note: B5E -
2
— 2014 2013
2 —2-—mF —F—=
a HK$'000 HK$'000
. FHExT FET
>
§ The PRC Tax charge for the year comprises: AEEPRBEH L HBIE
§ Tax arising from disposal of a subsidiary that owns HE—REFHBRKREMEN
3 an investment property in the PRC B B8 A A EE A 2 B I8 - 100,930
N PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PR EMEH 112,151 115,648
= 112,151 216,578

Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

REEBRAX HEESER
FRRER IR A 2 SRR T

8 M EAL 2R ER

follows:
2014 2013
—E-—mEF —T=5F
HKS$’'000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Profit before taxation [ A5 A A 2,831,865 3,150,477
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEBFEBREFHEZHIA 467,258 519,829
Tax effect of share of profit of a joint venture EE—REBDERTNZ
IR (4,366) (5,259)
Tax effect of share of profits of associates PR ARl a2 BIEE 2 (57,281) (57,677)
Tax effect of income not taxable for /Au%muﬁz)\zwa%%
tax purpose (60,086) (83,668)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for A HIRAS 2 RIETE
tax purpose 41,316 35,915
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses AT R ARERRIEEEZ
previously not recognised FHTE B A& (11,676) (7,016)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRR IBER Y MBS E 31,978 27,581
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FEHAD RERE R AL & ZWJ*'
operating in other jurisdictions TR R B 36,785 34,035
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFEGE y)?iﬁ*% 11,313) 9,275
Withholding tax B 21,879 20,621
LAT T b IB (AT - 5,445
Tax effect of LAT THIIE(ER 2 IR R - (899)
Others Hiy 11,901 (17,934)
Tax charge for the year ANEEHRIEBEL B 466,395 480,248
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #R4& & ##H 3& M & () ll
for the year ended 31 December 2014 HE=F—MF+=A=+—HILFE f
G
B
%
E]
A
. - =
13. Profit for the Year 13. REEREF 2
B
2014 2013
—2-ImF —T—=F -
HK$'000 HKS$'000 =
FET FHET =
Profit for the year has been arrived at AELMNEHBETHIER - .
after charging: z
Directors’ remuneration: (note 14) EEHME - (FI5E14) i
Fees e 1,616 1,535
Other emoluments H th N 7,200 7,200
Bonus TEAT 17,500 20,000
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRRBRIFT B 17 15
26,333 28,750
Other staff costs, excluding retirement BrRREAET BN
benefits scheme contributions Hfh 8 TAAS 405,059 392,844
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, RIRTE M ET B FURE U 3k
net of forfeited contributions for staffs 19,242 21,266
Total staff costs 8 TR AR 450,634 442,860
Release of prepaid lease payments FENHEEREE 121,589 127,554
Less: Amount capitalised in construction in B ERTIRENMEeRE
progress (note 18) (F45E18) (97,219) (113,792)
24,370 13,762
Auditor’s remuneration B A BN 5,079 4,654
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥% - \ELREZITE 253,198 226,555
Impairment and written-off of trade and JE LK BE 20 K% A i U =R B R E
other receivables S EESS - 1,331
Write-down of obsolete inventories 5 SH T E U 444 250
Rental payments paid under operating lease in ~ FE&ETHL THEE + i RiEF
respect of leasehold land and buildings to RMATATEZ 2 HES KB
— ajoint venture ——REELE 172,081 198,122
— other parties — Hi AL 62,370 80,071
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BENEREZEE
plant and equipment 741 136
Cost of inventories recognised as expense HRAIT B ZHFERA 2,316,401 2,313,926
and crediting: AKRETATSIEE :
Gross rental income from investment properties $#%& ¥ & 4% - 4,490
Less: Direct operating expenses from B AFEEAHSRAZ
investment properties that generated KEMENEZRLSERY
rental income during the year - (4,573)
Less: Direct operating expenses from B AFETEERSAZ
investment properties that did not BEYENERLERS
generated rental income during the year (2,152) (2,066)
(2152) (2,149)
Gross rental income from sub-letting of BRE—XREELELERNT 2
commercial properties under an operating BREYESMHE S B
lease entered into with a joint venture 127,416 116,190
Less: Direct operating expenses in respect of B RIE—REBELELE
sub-letting of commercial properties ATz EEBYER
under an operating lease entered into BEERERZ
with a joint venture (76,786) (86,966)
50,630 29,224
Reversal of impairment and written-off of JRE U B 30 K L b E L SR A R E
trade and other receivables K sH e 926 -
Reversal of write-down of obsolete inventories #5415 & s & [ - 603
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

14. Directors’, Chief Executive’'s and

Employees’ Remuneration
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11

14. €%  THRARREEMS

MEMEB(ZE-—=F:108)EFEE

(2013: 10) directors were as follows: RZENSmT -
2014 —E—E
LauLluen  Doo Wai ChengKar  lauluen  lauYuk  LamSiu  Cheung  ShekLlai  HuiChiu
Hung, Hoi, ChengYu Shun, Hung, Wai, Lun,  Yuet Man, Him,  Chung, Ip Yuk
Thomas  William Tung Henry  Joseph Amy Simon Raymond  Abraham  Stephen Keung Total
RO HEE B8y B34 e FES B EhX hiER Bt £ &t
HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FiEn TiEn TiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn TiEn TiEn
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
(Hta) (Hh) (We)
Fees He 200 200 100 100 20 100 300 57 200 200 139 1616
Other emoluments Efpfe
Salaries and other benefits FeRABERN 7,200 - - - - - - - - - - 7,200
Bonus* A 17,500 - - - - - - - - - - 17,500
Contributions to retirement RINEFE AR
benefits schemes 17 - - - - - - - - - - 17
Total emoluments Hess .97 200 100 100 2 100 300 57 200 200 139 26,633
2013 —E—=F
Lau Luen Doo Wai ChengKar  Lauluen Lau Yuk LamSiu Cheung Shek Lai Hui Chiu
Hung, Hoi,  ChengYu Shun, Hung, Wai, Lun,  YuetMan, Him, Chung,
Thomas William Tung Henry Joseph Amy Smon  Raymond  Abraham Stephen Total
Eo tEE Bkl 954 0 EES kB FHX higs SRS @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T T TEL AL TAL T T T T
Fees e 135 200 100 100 100 100 200 200 200 200 15%5
Other emoluments e
Salaries and other benefits FeREMERN 7,200 - - - - - - - - - 7,200
Bonus* AT 20,000 - - - - - - - - - 20,000
Contributions to retirement RIVEIE B
benefits schemes 15 - - - - - - - - - 15
Total emoluments Wews 27350 200 100 100 100 100 200 200 200 200 28,750
* The bonus is determined having regard to the * TEABURAN B EE RTIHBE -

performance and market trends.
No directors waived any emoluments for both years.

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, is also the Chief Executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those of services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

Notes:

(@) Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph has resigned as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 14
March 2014.

(b)  Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond has retired as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 14 April 2014.

(c) Mr. Ip Yuk Keung has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of the Company with effect from 22 April
2014.

BEENAF REFHREWREAME -

BIZIBE AR RRINITHRAES - M Lt st pr
WENHUC 2EM0ERTRARMRHRSG

2 SREN
!
(@ WZT—NF=AF+HEARL - PI%H

FEBEARBIENITES -

MR-ZF—MFEA+EHAEE KIHEX
FTEFHERRBINE L IFHITES -

N-E—mWEMA - +-H#  Z&H
BAEEETTAARAINBIIIENITE
ENEREEGCERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #& B3 3R & MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

14. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Remuneration (continued)
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014, one of them (2013: one)
was a director of the Company whose remuneration is
disclosed above. The remaining four (2013: four) are

14. E TRERREEMS ()

HE-Z-NOF+T-A=+t—-HILEFE A&
ERE&eHFALH  —B(Z
ZIRARRESE  WZMER EXXHE - SIh
mE(—F—=F: IR MA/AEEEER @

T —=F: —

employees of the Group, details of whose remuneration E2MeFBEINOT
were as follows:
2014 2013
—2-mE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
Employees: EE :
Salaries, allowances and other benefits &~ 2R R E AR F 6,633 5,933
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRTEFIFTE 67 60
Performance related incentive payments HRIFERES 1,644 5,304
8,344 11,297
The emolument of the remaining four were within the EfNEmaem AT Z2HMN A THRE -

following bands:

2014 2013

—ZE—E =4

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A AEX

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T = 1,500,000 75 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7t = 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7t & 2,500,000 7% 7T 1 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7t & 3,000,000 % 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7t = 3,500,000 7% 7T 1 -

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

3,500,001 /% 7T = 4,000,000 7% 7T
4,000,001 # 7T % 4,500,000 % 7T
4,500,001 # 7T % 5,000,000% 7T
5,000,001 % 7t % 5,500,000 7% 7T

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
no remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors
of the Company or the four highest paid employees as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

REBZRER

BERLAH(E

BHE—_Z—mMER-_ET—=F+-_A=+—H
HFE  AEEVERESSNEESHEE
SZHAEE - ARSI REEMAREBR K IERIA

-
N
-
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= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
g for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE
5]
=1
g
3
&
(o]
3
z  15. Dividends 15. B2
e
Q 2014 2013
5 —E-mE | —T=F
g HK$'000 HKS$'000
N FHERT FAT
>
§ Dividends recognised as distributions FRERBED KIS -
(% during the year:
o
(o]
i Final dividend in cash paid for year ended HE-_Z—=%+-A=1+—H
Q 31 December 2013 — HK cents 32.7 per share IFFE IR SR 2 RE S
= (2013: HK cents 27.6 per share paid —BR32.7BIN(—E—=F:
for year ended 31 December 2012) ENBE—T——F+—A
=+—RHIEFEER27.681) 535,176 458,430
Interim dividend in cash paid for six months HE_ZT—MNFEA=1+H
ended 30 June 2014 — HK cents 24.8 per share 17~ A LAIR &R 15 2 A EARR &
(2013: HK cents 26.4 per share paid — R8BI (=ZE—=5F:
for six months ended 30 June 2013) EKNBZE—_T—=FA=+H
1F7NE A &% 26.4 781D 404,087 436,068
Special interim dividend by way of EM» IR EERDES
a distribution in specie of shares of Rl A BARS S (BT E)
Lifestyle Properties (note) - 393,809
939,263 1,288,307
Note: On 29 July 2013, the Company declared a conditional e RZZE—=ZF+tA-_1+NB ARAFZ=H5
special interim dividend in respect of the Distribution (see DR (R — BB GG SRR ERE -
note 1), subject to the approval from the Stock Exchange JHEE T FTHCE LB R TR AR RIS 15TH FE A 3R
for the assured entitlement to Lifestyle Properties Shares 3| AR BIAS IR T T 4A T A% 5 F 4@ 2= AR (D
to be given by the Company to the shareholders by way AoREiE  REROHEESHESKAERMYT - Mt
of distribution in compliance with the requirements of ZE—=FNAA+—BEIFZitE - R=ZF
Practice Note 15 of the Listing Rules and when the share —=FNhA+=8  &82,588,800/% Flt&
offer of Lifestyle Properties becomes unconditional, HEE AR 5 IR T AN A RIARER ©
which the approval from the Stock Exchange was
obtained on 11 September 2013. On 12 September 2013,
a total of 82,588,800 Lifestyle Properties Shares were
distributed to the shareholders of the Company.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final REREAERE  EFEBRNRERES
dividend of HK cents 34.3 (2013: HK cents 32.7) per B 3438 (=T —=4F : 32.7811) - AR
share has been proposed by the directors of the IR A EE RSB F RS HE A -

Company which is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #& B3 3R & MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

16.

17.

Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the

Company is based on the following data:

16. BREF

ARARERRBRREEERERNREFRNT)
BTHEEAESE

2014 2013
—E—-F —ET—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Earnings EF
Profit for the year attributable to owners of Mt EBRERREERF
the Company for the purposes of basic and MEZARBHEAE AEhL
diluted earnings per share AN E T 2,143,994 2,448,247
2014 2013
—T—F —E—=F
'000 ‘000
TR T
Number of shares BHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AT EESREAREFMS 2
for the purpose of basic earnings per share 3 E A hAE S 1S 81 1,635,103 1,656,084
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares AAEIEIRERTEIIE T A 7317
issuable under the Company’s CBEHETBER I ZE
share option scheme 173 2,718
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HEATEEREERNMS 2
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share I E AS hAE S 1S 8 1,635,276 1,658,802
Investment Properties 17. BREWZE
Completed
investment
properties
ExEMZ
REWME
HKS$'000
TET
FAIR VALUE NS
At 1 January 2013 W-_ZE—=%—HF—H 684,397
Additions during the year FRRNE 7.396
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss MBS RERZ N AL
— Realised gain on disposal — HEB A EFHzE 4
— Unrealised gain — RERWE 6,487
Disposals He (864)
Exchange adjustments bEE H % 19,333
At 31 December 2013 NZEBE—=%F+_-A=+—H 716,753
Additions during the year FRARNE 5,202
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss PERRERZ AFEEED
— Unrealised loss — REIREE (3,053)
Exchange adjustments b H % (18,499)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NFE+=—A=+—H 700,403

123

Rl e = R e

HEHHDE W



-
N
B

710z HOday [enuuy  Pe3Wr SBUIPIOH [BUOIIBUISIU| DjAISHT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

17. Investment Properties (continued)

17. REW=E (&)

The carrying amount of investment properties shown A EEEYENERSERE
above comprises:
2014 2013
=F-—mF ZT=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FA&T
Land in Hong Kong held under REBRIBEFEELYFE 2L
medium-term lease 39,400 38,400
Land in the PRC held under medium-term lease AR BB #5R EAFAZ045 5 ~ T 1 661,003 678,353
700,403 716,753

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties situated in Harbin
with carrying value of RMB277,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$345,765,000) (2013: RMB277,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$354,837,000)) has not
yet obtained the legal document in respect of the real
estate title certificate. Management of the Group
considers there is no material legal impediment for the
Group to obtain the real estate title certificate.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong and the PRC at 31 December
2014 was determined by directors of the Company with
reference to a valuation carried out by DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limited ("DTZ"), an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group whose
address is 16/F., Jardine House, Central, Hong Kong, at
30 November 2014. DTZ is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong at 31 December 2013 had been
arrived at based on a valuation carried out on that date
by Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), an
independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group whose address is 4/F., Shui On
Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Knight
Frank is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors.

ANEE ANHRE & WA AR AIBE R B B
REHE N RENMEERERAAFET G
B UHBERARBKREME -

SERRBENREVMEDNREZIFEZENE
EX M BOFER AR 277,500,000 7T (HEE
R 49345,765,000870) (ZF—=F : AR
277,000,000 7T (#8& 7 4354,837,0007%7T) ) °
SEEREERAREEEREFEE T HREE
AHPERARE -

REBUREBEPEANRENER T
Ftr+ A=+ —HORAFEDSZEAEEL
BUHEZBYIAERFEGHEMBRBRRITAR
ANR(TEERT]) It RFEFIRETNARE
16BN _T—NFE+— A=t RETZMHEE
E o BERTREENEMSBG 2SS -

AEBEEEBNERENER -_"T—=F1+_A
=+ —ANRAFEHERNEELEEEZ BT
ABEREZRMGEEMAIDAFMITAERAF (3
TORZABAEENEEMER HEER
& It SEBBFEEBE6-8RInLTLAF
2o O RFEITTERAR AT EAEMES
ZRE e
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17. Investment Properties (continued) 17. REWE (&) Bi

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties AEBURFEORENER T —=F+= =
situated in the PRC at 31 December 2013 had been A=+ —HMAFETIEREARE B ERE

arrived at based on a valuation carried out on that date ZEIYAERBEGHEM SN ERREILE =

by Shanghai BDGH Chartered Valuation Surveyors Co., THEERR AR ([JERKE] - it a+ R - 7

Ltd. (“BDGH"), an independent qualified professional ST O & R RO B 70198 (K OA A8 ) A407 -

valuer not connected to the Group whose address is = - B4R 200080) N E BET 2 MERETE - /\ A

Unit A407, Changzhi Building, No. 701 Dongchangzhi ERREABNERFTISMEEEE - ¥

Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai, 200080, the PRC. g

BDGH is a member of The Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong and the PRC at 31 December
2014 was determined by directors of the Company with
reference to a valuation carried out by DTZ at 30
November 2014 and recent property market data of
similar properties in the relevant locations. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
of these properties at 31 December 2014 approximates
the fair value at 30 November 2014. The fair value of
the Group’s investment properties at 30 November
2014 was arrived at based on direct comparison method
assuming sales of each property interests in their
existing state and making references to comparable
market observable transactions of similar properties in
the same locations and conditions as available in the
relevant market.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong at 31 December 2013 carried out
by Knight Frank was determined based on direct
comparison method assuming sales of each property
interests in their existing state and making references
to comparable market observable transactions of similar
properties in the same locations and conditions as
available in the relevant market.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
situated in the PRC at 31 December 2013 carried out by
BDGH were determined based on income method

— direct capitalisation approach by capitalising future
rental income derived from the property interest at an
appropriate market yield for the remaining term of the
land use rights of the properties.

The directors of the Company considered that the
change in valuation technigue with respect to those
properties in the PRC at 31 December 2014 is
appropriate as the valuation technique used in the
current year is based on market price of similar
properties and locations, and shall equally reflect the
property value as compare to income approach used in
the prior year which was based on adjusted market
rentals and capitalisation rate. As 31 December 2014,
the carrying amounts of those properties are
approximately HKS$661,003,000 (2013: HK$678,353,000).

AREEBUREBERPENREDERN T
FTZA=+T AR FEIHARRAEES
EHERRTR T —OF+—A=TH#ETT
ZHEERRAEREMER —FT—HNF+ A
=+ —HANMISORBBEMEE - ARFES
RRZEPER_T-—HFE+-_A=1+—HAK
AFEER-Z-—MOF+—A=1tHHNAFE
BE - AEENREVER _ZE—NF+—A
= THENAFEIAEERLEERRTEYDSE
EaAERREER2EGRMS 2 A E M
BZMENALLIHE R 5 RETE -

REBUNEENREVENR T —=F+=
A=+—HRHhHEGHENRFERAEBELR
FERREEMERZERREERZEEEM
G2 RRE R EEMENALLHE RS RE

TF o

REBFBURPREZEENER T —=F+=
A=+—Bl/CEERGEEN QX FERZEA
E T BREMNMUE  sMEEWEN TR
ZRBFHAZEE TS WEE - Y EEs
BIARRBEWATETERNMETE o

RARAPEERRABUNTENYER_-F
—MHEFE+ZA=+—HBNRAFENGBETES
BHEM - AARAFEEANMGETEZER
RO ENTISERETE - LEAKHE
MHSEERENMELEREARNBERE R
E o EREERRZNENEE - R-FE 1

661,003,000/ 7t ( — = — = £ : 678,353,000
BT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

17. Investment Properties (continued)
The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these investment properties are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements is observable.

17. REWZE (R

TRMIIZEREMED FENSE L (LR
REETEARFEASH) ARATESA R
BATER  ATEHEEARTEH BEH
WATBERRES A—E =M -

Carrying value of investment Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
properties held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unohservable input(s) inputs to fair value
GEMBRRARA ATE ERE EXREE EEBENAAYE
AEBFRRENEZREE SHER NEERANEE BENBARE HATENBE
At 31 December 2014
—E-mE+=A=1+-H
Commercial property in Qingdao Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using market The higher the price per square
EEHEENE Er assuming sale in its existing direct comparables and taking into metre, the higher the fair value.
HK$315,238,000 state and by reference to account location and other FEFKERES  ATEES -
315,238,000/ T comparable sales evidences individual factors such as environment,
as available in the relevant building facilities, levels, etc.,
market. which is ranging from RMB9,203/5.m.
NRREERSZE to RMB13,876./5q.m.
Hmis 2 LiEE RETHREREREETSLE A ATL
RHMEELERE AL E RERERIRE - MERE
BASEEREZ  RETAK
The key inputs are: ARIE9203TE ARKENZ8767T ©
FE2YA:
Level adjustment on individual floors of The higher the level adjustment,
(1) Price per square metre; and the property range from 45% to 70% the lower the fair value.
SEFKER R on specific levels. FRABES  ATEME -
(2) Level adjustment MEESEENRHAZR
RRlHE R B HRE45% ZE70% °
Commercial property in Harbin Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using market The higher the price per square
RRARENE =/ assuming sale in its existing state  direct comparables and taking into metre, the higher the fair value.
HK$345,765,000 and by reference to comparable  account location and other individual BYHKERYS  ATEES
345,765,000 7T sales evidences as available in factors such as environment,
the relevant market. building facilities, levels, etc.,
DEREER2ES of RMB27,500/sg.m.
Lk ordlsd -1 BT HKERERERTSLERETE
RHMEELEE SARLE RERERWIRE - MR
BRERERZ - ABFHK
The key inputs are: ARE275007
TE28A:
Level adjustment on individual floors of The higher the level adjustment,
(1) Price per square metre; and the property range from 45% to 70% the lower the fair value.
BEHKER K on specific levels. BAARMS  ATEBE -
(2) Level adjustment NESRENRRAER
RAIFR ERIE R 45% Z70% °
Commercial properties in Hong Kong Level 2 Direct comparison method N/A N/A
BREENE F-R assuming sale in its existing state 7 A
HK$39,400,000 and by reference to comparable
39,400,000 7% T sales evidences as available in

the relevant market.
HEMRILERSEE

WS ALHE

R EELEE
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17. Investment Properties (continued) 17. REYE (\)

-
N
N

Carrying value of investment
properties held by the Group

FAEEFBRENEZREE

Valuation techniquels)
and key input(s)
EERE
AEEHANEE

Significant unobservable input(s)
EAES
BENBARE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
EERENBARE
BATENEE

At 31 December 2013
—¥-=H+t-A=t-H

Commercial property in Qingdao
HK$323,516,000
323,516,000 1t

Commercial property in Harbin
HK$354,837,000
B £ Y% 354,837,000 T

Commercial properties in Hong Kong

HK$38,400,000
EBREY 38,400,000 7T

Income method —
Direct Capitalisation Approach
WNE—BERERME A

The key inputs are:

TE2HA:

(1) Capitalisation rate;
BARE

(2) Daily unit rent; and
BiAM: &

(3) Level adjustment
BAIFEE

Income method —
Direct Capitalisation Approach
WAL —EBRERLAE

The key inputs are:
228

(1) Capitalisation rate;
B E

(2) Daily unit rent; and
EfBH R

(3) Level adjustment
RAIAE

Direct comparison method based
on market observable
transactions of similar
properties and adjust to reflect
the conditions and locations of
the subject property.

ERAENETSIERRHH
REZHMEERRAEOHE
BB EE -

Capitalisation rate, taking into account of
the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of the property,
prevailing market condition, of 11%.

BHAAERCHSBNED - MERER
AR - BAMELLERM% -

Daily unit rent, based on gross floor area
using direct market comparables and
taking into account time, location and
individual factors such as road frontage,
size of property and facilities,
of RMB13.17/50.m/day.

RHEAERNENRBEREENS
LB AL ST NS ~ (LB RERR R
MERETEH  MERRERESREAR
BEEARARBZAT T

Level adjustment on individual floors
of the property range from
65% to 95% on specific levels.
NELEENHRAAZLAMER
EBREI65%Z95% ¢

Capitalisation rate, taking into account of
the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of the property,
prevailing market condition, of 12%.

BANERCESBWNES
WEEERERTR - BR
bt EA12%

Daily unit rent, based on gross floor area
using direct market comparables and

taking into account of time, location and

individual factors such as road frontage,

size of property and facilities,

of RMB15.48/50.m/day.
ReEAERNENRBEREETS

LB AL ST NS ~ (LB RERER

MERETER  MERRERRERE -
BETRRARE548T

Level adjustment on individual floors
of the property range from
50% to 95% on specific levels.
NEEZRENRFAEAEE
[B44950% Z 95% °

N/A
TER

The higher the capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair value.
XM ERE - ATEME -

The higher the daily unit rent,
the higher the fair value.
B RHES  ATEES -

The higher the level adjustment,
the lower the fair value.
BAARES - DTEME -

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value.
BRELEWE - ATEME -

The higher the daily unit rent,
the higher the fair value.
B RHES  ATEES -

The higher the level adjustment,
the lower the fair value.
RAARES - DTEME

N/A
TER

Rl e = R e
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z  18. Property, Plant and Equipment 18. W% - BMERRME

=

a Leasehold Furniture,

5‘ land and Leasehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor  Construction

g buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total

N RELH RENE BER & EE

3 REF %5 e RERRE RE HRIR -y

5 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ZU,P T Fir Tk ThR TET Th Thx

% cosT A

Q At 1 January 2013 R-Z-Z£-A-R 4,397,19% 846,272 239,718 178819 14,100 792,120 6,468,225

= Exchange adjustment EHBE 34126 12,942 8,928 2,928 797 20943 80,664
Additions NE 7523 1,940 22,256 12128 2,948 1,068,749 1,115,544
Disposals e - (56) - (552) (1,640) - (2,248)
Transfer Eeb 1,341,544 50,960 111,636 - - (1,504,140) -
At 31 December 2013 WZE-=E+-F=+-8 5,780,389 912,058 382,538 193,303 16,205 377,672 7,662,185
Exchange adjustment EHBE (86,042) (13,642) (5,561) (1,746) 177) (4,861) (112,029)
Additions E - 124,030 45531 72575 6,996 482,625 731,757
Disposals e - (110461) (27,917) (11,092) (2,359) - (151,829)
Transfer B - 17,270 - - - (17,270) -
At 31 December 2014 WZE-MF¥+-A=+-H 5,694,347 929,255 394,591 253,060 20,665 838,166 8,130,084
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2013 R-E-Z£-A-R 1,217,531 671,155 190,157 111,450 9,578 - 2,199,871
Exchange adjustment Ei#AE 9571 10,433 2,098 3,59 9 - 25,789
Provided for the year ERHE 109,999 76,849 19,352 18,762 1,593 - 226,555
Eliminated on disposals HEBYE - (14) - (428) (1,049) - (1,491)
At 31 December 2013 WZE-=E+-F=+-8 1,337,101 758423 211,607 133,380 10213 - 2,450,724
Exchange adjustment ExBE (9,202) (10,867) (1,964) (1,518 (94) - (23,645)
Provided for the year ERFE 136,238 71478 24010 19,354 2,118 - 253,198
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - (110,461) (26,988) (10,841) (2,359) - 150,649)
At 31 December 2014 WZZ-ME+ZA=F-8 1,464,137 708573 206,665 140375 9,878 - 2,529,628
Net book values RERE
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-EE+=A=1+-H 4,230,210 220,682 187,926 112,685 10,787 838,166 5,600,456
At 31 December 2013 RZF-ZF+-A=1+-H 4,443,288 153,635 170,931 59,943 5,992 377,672 5,211,461
Included in construction in progress is borrowing costs TFEIRVEFRNEEMEZEERARERN
and prepaid lease payments capitalised during the year, HERE - 5515161,814,0008 T (=T —=
amounting to HK$161,814,000 (2013: HK$176,077,000) 4 176,077,000 7t ) % 97,219,000 7t ( =

and HK$97,219,000 (2013: HKS$113,792,000), respectively. T — =% : 113,792,000 7T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #& B3 3R & MsE (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

18.

19.

Property, Plant and Equipment

(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are depreciated

18. #3 - BB KN&RE (F)

BRAEETEI btz B RREEBT
kT HMEETRER - LMEHREE T IIFRG

after taking into account their estimated residual value, EE
using straight-line method over the following useful
lives:
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of lease HELHREFT RHEOFEKU+F
buildings terms or 40 years (AEEE A%E)
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease HEMERE BT AT
terms or 5 years (ARG H BZ%E)
Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years Bk Mt B AFE+F
Furniture, fixtures and 5 years R~ BEE HAF
equipment B
Motor vehicles 5 years B HE
2014 2013
—E—MF —ET—=F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FET
The carrying amount of leasehold land and HELHEREFREDERE
buildings comprises land and buildings: PATR £ g
— long lease in Hong Kong —URBEXERPHEYNES 441,025 449,895
— medium-term lease in Hong Kong — MR BEEZHEBOEE 1,053,843 1,091,893
1,494,868 1,541,788
— medium-term lease in the PRC — AP EZPEEOEE 2,735,342 2,901,500
4,230,210 4,443,288

Please refer to note 39 for the details of pledge of
assets.

Prepaid Lease Payments

AR EREE 2 s AR 2 BT EE39

19. BNAERER

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: REEZFENBEZIERIE :
2014 2013
—ZE-mEF —E—=F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Leasehold land in the PRC MRFBEZHEE T
Medium-term lease FRERFR 4V 4,345,426 4,592,274
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERMEMDTE :
Current portion B HR SR 1% 94,504 95,052
Non-current portion JEBNERER1S 4,250,922 4,497,222
4,345,426 4,592,274

Please refer to note 39 for the details of pledge of
assets.

AR EREE 2 A2 FE39 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

20. Interests in Associates

20. REE QR FER

2014 2013

—E-mEF —E-=F

HKS$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FAET

Unlisted, at cost JEET - IERACR 1,514,131 1,514,131
Discount arising on acquisition of additional PiBEFERE —KEE A

interest in an associate in prior years FEOMEREA 2T 114,556 114,556

Share of post-acquisition profits and other FE(L UGBS 12 2 5% 7
comprehensive income, net of dividends REMZEmBA - RS 1,297,636 1,053,501
2,926,323 2,682,188

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had interests

in the following associates: AREBP T E AR A ER
Place/ Proportion of nominal
Form of country of Principal value of issued capital/ Proportion
business establishment/  place of registered capital held of voting
Name of entity structure incorporation operation by the Group power held Principal activities
MR/ AEERBECRTRE
ERER EBLEES BRUEEVAEES TELEHY A IR A A L A PR REL A TEEK
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-ME | ZT-=F | ZB-MF | ZF-=F
ARHLBAGEE Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Investment holding of
BREARH i FE B a group of companies
(“Beiren Group”) engaging in the operation
(note 1) of department stores,
(MEAEE]) supermarkets and
GiE) property leasing
HEREE  BIRIE
HEXB EBRAYL
REZR
AL LB EX T RS Incorporation PRC PRC 48% 48% 48% 48% Retailing business in the PRC
BREARR AL FE B EPERETELK
(“Future Mall") (note 2)
([£XTES])
GEX)
Dragon Sign Limited Incorporation Hong Kong PRC 50% 50% 50% 50% Investment holding of
BEERAR AL B F acompany engaging in
operation of restaurants
in the PRC
EPERERBEE 2
NEZEEER
Notes: B E
(1) The Group’s 60% owned subsidiary holds equity interest M AEEBB0%ERZHMBARBAEILAEE
of 49% (2013: 49%) in Beiren Group. 49% (ZT—=4F : 49%) PR A HERS -
(2) At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s 60% owned (2) RZE—WFF+_A=+—BRZZE—=F

subsidiary, Ample Sun Group Limited, held equity interest
of 48% in Future Mall. In addition, 51% equity interest of
Future Mall is being indirectly held by a non-wholly

owned subsidiary of Beiren Group.

TZA=T—R  KNEERE60%Eam 2 B
RAEREBARRRIFELRT ESH48% K

AHELE o BEIN

51% B e R T ES AR R IEA

SEEEERGZMBARMERES -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #& B3 3R & MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

20. Interests in Associates (continued) 20. RAEtE A TRIRER ()
The financial information in respect of the Group’s BEAAEEBE AR ZPHBEERMT ¢
associates is set out below:
2014 2013
—E-NEF —F=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Total assets BELRR 13,328,133 12,663,618
Total liabilities BEB5E 8,585,409 8,422,550
Net assets BEFE 4,742,724 4,241,068
Group’s share of associates’ net assets AEEELBE N EEFE 2,926,323 2,682,188
Revenue W 18,009,301 17,887,103
Profit for the year IR JE S ) 436,484 441,643
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hizam () WA (72,597) 67,950
Group's share of profit of associates for the year 7~ & fE{5 B < N 5] AN F E % T 347157 349,554
Group’s share of other comprehensive RNEEEREBES N R ARFEE
(expense) income of associates for the year Hibzm (X E) A (47,019) 42,593
summarised financial information of material BERBEQATZHBERBRE
associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material associate is set out below. The

BHEAREBEERBERR ZHBEERBEHT
WS - AT ERMEL25I RS R F 28

summarised financial information below represents MKz 28 - ERBEBIEHREERIRS] o

amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

Beiren Group is the only material associate to the Group tASBEEREAREBEE —SRAOBEQR - %
and it is accounted for using the equity method in AR A IERRALR -

these consolidated financial statements.

Beiren Group I AEE
2014 2013
—E-NE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
Current assets MBNEE 7,593,760 7,434,613
Non-current assets SERBEE 5,534,084 5,012,687
Current liabilities mEAE 8,289,761 7,841,471
Non-current liabilities SERBEE 102,439 373,161
Non-controlling interests eIy g 861,596 723,828

-
(4
-

Rl e = R e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 ===

20.

—E+—A=+—HILEFE

Interests in Associates (continued) 20. RAEE A TRIRER (F)
Beiren Group (continued) EAEE (&)
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Revenue W= 17,896,887 17,767,637
Profit for the year REEm F 437,804 439,699
Other comprehensive (expense) income
for the year AFEFEHMAZ2E(ZH) WA (72,597) 67,950
Total comprehensive income for the year NEEZ2ERALLRE 365,207 507,649
Dividends received from the associate R W?ﬁé%%ﬂﬁ%%’& A
during the year 2 BWRE S 56,003 24,839
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial BEIL ASKBER LA B TS Rk P R 2 A 7
information to the carrying amount of the interest in MEan 7 BRI (B R _F il B 75 & RH i 49 BR -
the associate in respect of Beiren Group recognised in
the consolidated financial statements:
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=%F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET
Net assets of Beiren Group HEAELIAEEZEEFE
attributable to owners 3,874,048 3,508,840
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REERIEASEEIZLH)
interest in Beiren Group EE R 49% 49%
1,898,284 1,719,332
Add: Interest in Beiren Group through N: BEAEEEMHEAR
other subsidiaries of the Group RILASEHE 2 #x 1,024,499 958,656
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBERIEAEE#EE
interest in Beiren Group 2 REE 2,922,783 2,677,988
Aggregate information of associates that are FEBERZHE ATGZEER
not individually material
2014 2013
—E—F —E—=F
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET
The Group’s share of (loss) profit and A& B E(L (B8 ) &= 7
total comprehensive (expense) income a2m () WAL (660) 972
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REB P E N BIfERS
interests in these associates ZHERETEE 3,540 4,200




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 Btk KM aE (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #= =%

21.

—mOFE+=—A=t+—HIEFE

Interest in a Joint Venture
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had interest
in the following joint venture:

21754\%
R=

BEh¥ERER

—HER—FE-=ZFF+-A=1+—8"

NE EIE(‘T@J/\Q XA ED

Proportion of
nominal value

of issued
Form of Place of capital Proportion
business establishment/ held by the of voting Principal
Name of entity structure operation Group power held activities
TEBFTE
BRITRA FERER
ENREE EBREBER FRAL Rt B EE LA tpl  EEER
EEABHTES Sino-foreign equity PRC 50% 50%  Property holding
BRAT joint venture s and leasing
(Shanghai Joinbuy FINEEREDE MERBELEE
City Plaza Co., Ltd.)
The joint venture is accounted for using the equity BEDCERERGHEAAR
method of accounting:
2014 2013
—ZE—mF —E—=F
HKS$'000 HK$’000
F#ET FAT
Cost of unlisted investment in a joint venture —RAEBELEIIELFMIREZHAR 433,104 433,104
Share of post-acquisition profits and other DU EE1Z 2 % F N EoAh
comprehensive income, net of dividends 2HEUEA - RS 36,511 53,127
469,615 486,231
Amount due from a joint venture B —REEERIA 87,220 -
556,835 486,231
The amount due from a joint venture represents an fEM—=RE ﬁf%?ﬂ@i?jfﬁ%éﬁﬁi B
entrusted loan to a joint venture of HK$87,220,000 .i¢1@3 5% 2 2 R 87,220,000 87 -
which carries fixed interest rate of 3.5% per annum. The ALEEEERMAE R T FRHE *:EW
B8 ARG _ZT—NUF+_A=+—

management of the Group does not anticipate the
repayment within one year from the end of the
reporting period and hence the balance is classified as a
non-current asset as at 31 December 2014.

ADERIFRBEE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

21. Interest in a Joint Venture (continued) 21.
The summarised financial information related to the
Group’s interest in the joint venture is set out below:

R—RE&ELHEER ()
BRAEBERNA AR WS BB AR
mT

2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FA&T
Non-current assets B EE 1,228,167 1,322,422
Current assets mENAE 26,848 170,903
Current liabilities mEAE 315,785 520,863
Cash and cash equivalents e RIBSEEY 26,530 13,841
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and & Bt B & (TNEEEMNER
other payables and provisions) Ko HAth A< RRIE R A ) 457,360 493,407
Income A 235,516 248,748
Expenses HX 182,590 185,008
Profit for the year REEZ @A 52,926 63,740
Other comprehensive (expense) income HEipam () WA (14174) 13,700
Total comprehensive income for the year AREE I ALLETE 38,752 77,440
Dividend income recognised by the Group FRREEDERZRBEWA
during the year 35,992 35,601
Group’s share of profit of the joint venture AREEEREEDEGT 26,463 31,870
Group’s share of other comprehensive (expense) Z~&E fE(F & & E b
income of the joint venture 2m| () WA (7,087) 6,850

The above profit for the year includes the following:

A ERFZHENBIEATIER

2014 2013

—F—mF —T=5F

HKS$'000 HKS$'000

FET FET

Depreciation and amortisation Pres S sH - -
Interest income FLBUA 110 238
Interest expense F B H 14,437 15,989
Income tax expense FTiS iz i 28,910 26,333
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21. Interest in a Joint Venture (continued)

22.

23.

21. R—REELFERED (F)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial Lt ERBR MG E M BHREFREED
information to the carrying amount of the interest in St s BREESER -
the joint venture recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:
2014 2013
—E—-mF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Net assets of the joint venture AEGEZEEFE 939,230 972,462
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest INEE BB RERR L 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest REBFBREETLEERS
in the joint venture ZERHEE 469,615 486,231
Inventories 22. 78
2014 2013
—ZE—-mF —E-=
HKS$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Merchandise held for resale HFEFEEEM 86,419 80,339
Trade and Other Receivables 23. EWERM KR HAEWRIE
2014 2013
—E—-F —E—=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables JE U AR 3R 84,640 88,841
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o REREE (2,209) (3,135)
82,431 85,706
Prepayments FERTER R 47,073 52,357
Deposits paid Bftike 43,105 26,131
Value added tax ("VAT") receivable FEWIE(E TS 93,938 68,162
Consideration receivable for disposal of HE—RWBRRIEKIER
a subsidiary (note 36(a)) (Mt 36() - 349,964
Dividend receivable from an associate JEUNEE & A F) 2 BR B 32,894 -
Others Hi 68,325 75,393
Total trade and other receivables FEUS BRI N2 Eo At FE UK R I 48 %A 367,766 657,713

135

Rl e = R e

HEHHDE W



1

(]

6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

23. Trade and Other Receivables 23. EWERMRKRHMmEWRIE(E)

(continued)

The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly made in AEBERNBEREINTEHEETEUNRS &
cash, through debit card or credit card payments BEERKERRNK  WEMEEEEECE -
without a defined credit policy. Its major trade AEBETZRKEFREEAREERATR
receivables arise from credit card sales and the =+ HAAKEEEEFTLEEFRARRK . AT
receivables from concessionaire income are normally BRMEEEE B ERERR (R RIEREE)
settled 30 days in arrears. The following is an aged RIBEZEZHEZRERDHT ©

analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date,
which approximates the respective revenue recognition

710z HOday [enuuy  Pe3Wr SBUIPIOH [BUOIIBUISIU| DjAISHT

dates:
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET BT
0-30 days 0H=30H 76,021 79,822
31-60 days 31H=60H 4,342 4,783
61-90 days 61H=90H 628 517
Over 90 days #3890 H 1,440 584
82,431 85,706
Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are 7N £ 5 fE Uk BR SR04 £ B 5 BR T 42 (82,068,000
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of BT (ZZE—=4F : 1,101,000 7T) Z FEW K -
HKS$2,068,000 (2013: HK$1,101,000) which are past due ZERW A IRE B H R AR E - AR
at the end of the reporting period for which the Group BIRSELREEREERE AEBEWERLZE
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does EHRBEEAERR - ZERWFIEZ FHER
not hold any collateral over these balances. The average BA0B(ZZE—=4:90H) -
age of these receivables is 90 days (2013: 90 days).
Aging of trade receivables which are past due BHERBREZERRRNVRRNT
but not impaired
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E—=F
HKS$'000 HKS$’'000
FET FET
61-90 days 61HZ=Z90H 628 517
Over 90 days @90 H 1,440 584
2,068 1,101
The Group has not provided fully for all receivables over AREBEIARFEFTA B0 B 7 FEIGRIER 88
90 days because historical experience is such that B RAABBREBALR SEAKEBEES
receivables are recoverable from the relevant debtors. AW B2 SRR -
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FEWRRRIRREEE
on trade receivables
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HKS$’'000 HKS$000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of the reporting period wE A4S RR 3135 2,091
Impairment loss recognised ERER 2 BIEEE 116 1,044
Reversal of impairment loss recognised B MR Z IR (B 1B O (1,042) -
Balance at the end of the reporting period TR B AR aE A 2,209 3,135
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24. Amount due from (to) a Joint Venture 24. FEEW (FE(T) —REELERIE
At 31 December 2014, the amount due from a joint R-ZE—NE+-A=+—H EH—KEE
venture represents prepaid rental and management fee Y CHEAEENASRAEL X EE
to a joint venture. The amount is unsecured, non- B o LRI AEIKIR - 2 B RENERKFEE -
interest bearing and repayable on demand.
At 31 December 2013, the amount due from a joint RZE—=F+-_A=+—H8 EEK—FKEE
venture included an entrusted loan to a joint venture of TEIFEREET —REELEZEZTEN
HKS$102,480,000 which carried fixed interest rate of 3.5% 102,480,000/ 7T + EEEFHEAE35% @ &
per annum, and repayable within one year. The R — F R K o 82 T 45 £2128,090,000% 7T -
remaining balance of HK$128,090,000 was unsecured, BEER - 28 RANREREEE -
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
At 31 December 2013, the amount due to a joint R-EBE—=F+"A=+—H EN—XKEE
venture represented an entrusted loan from a joint CEIHIERER —FREELEEHN LS
venture which carried at fixed interest rate of 0.5% per o EEFEFFR0S5% MR —FREE -
annum and repayable within one year.
25. Financial Assets at Fair Value through 25. BAFEFABGZZEMEE
Profit or Loss
2014 2013
—ZE—E —E =4
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEFAEBERZEMEE
— listed equity securities in Hong Kong —REBLTMERE 263,290 345,235
— listed equity securities in Singapore — RTINS AR E 10,096 22,375
— listed equity securities in London — RARBELEMIRE - 3,015
— listed equity securities in New York — P4 ETARE 129,033 109,521
— listed equity securities in Tokyo —REREMEE 93,302 95,497
— listed debt securities (note a) — EmESH (FfiEa) 830,745 1,087,027
— listed investment funds — TR EES 1,224,957 643,673
— unlisted securities (note b) — 3k LERESH (MEED) 1,292,805 988,917
— unlisted equity investment (note ¢) — IEEMRARE (FsEc) 50,660 50,660
— written put options (note d) — RUhHARE (FYFEd) 4,676 -
3,899,564 3,345,920
Notes: B &E -
(@  The listed debt securities mainly represent investment in (@ T ESEBEEEELTME EH2 A

corporate bonds which are mainly listed in Hong Kong HILE -

and Singapore.

FLEMESFEZBIERMAEAT79,075,0007#
TLAF (=% — =4 : 393,878,000/ 7T) -
AR {8 & 160,937,0008 T HE e (=T —=
£ : 396,419,000/ 7T) © & B E S IR IRE
E5322,118,000/8 TR EME (=T — =4«
169,753,0007% 7T.) K & i {& 4 30,675,000 7% 7T
(ZZ—=%:28,867,000/87T) &%

(b)  The unlisted securities mainly include certificates of (b)
deposit with carrying amount of HK$779,075,000 (2013:
HK$393,878,000), hedge funds with carrying amount of
HKS$160,937,000 (2013: HK$396,419,000), investment
portfolios managed by financial institutions with carrying
amount of HK$322,118,000 (2013: HK$169,753,000) and
debt securities with carrying amount of HK$30,675,000
(2013: HKS$28,867,000).



1

[¢]

710z HOday [enuuy  Pe3Wr SBUIPIOH [BUOIIBUISIU| DjAISHT

8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

25. Financial Assets at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(© At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
unlisted equity investment in the PRC represents the
Group’s 10% equity interest in Shenyang Jiajian. The fair
value is determined by reference to the fair value of the
underlying property assessed by the management of the
Group and after adjusting for lack of marketability of the
investment.

(d)  The written put options are derivative financial
instruments. The Group acts as the writer of the put
option and is obligated to settle the difference between
a predetermined level (“Strike”) and the final settlement
price of the underlying assets on or before a specific
future date (“"Expiration Date”) based on the level of
underlying assets, which are EURO STOXX 50 Index and
S&P 500 ETF Trust. The amount of written put options
represents investment portfolios comprises (i) an amount
of approximately HK$7,654,000 represents the premium
received for the written put option; net of (ii) obligation
payables measured at fair value for the outstanding
written put options amounted to approximately
HK$2,978,000. The obligation payables for the
outstanding written put options represent the quoted
prices in the over-the-counter markets, after considering
the market volatility as at 31 December 2014. The details
of the written put options are as follows:

25. BAFEFABEZTHMEE (F)

M ()

(© R-_E—NWF+_A=+—BR_ZT—=F
+ZA=+—8 " EPEFLETRAESLEE
PSR MR 2 10% e o EQAFEIURNES
ERBEBNREMEZ A TFERAMEABIRER
RS M MIEL 2 A o

(d) RAHEBSRITETIAR - AEEERBUME
FE32 5035 82 0 HitE RARAEE I 500 e B
BINGREMENE ) - BEEEREORNK
BEI (I A ) sz AR 15 A B & 2 7K F (BDRK
MHTFE S S0FE 8 M R M SO0 8L &)
EIRTRERF (TTRE) BRREREBEZRNE
o RN SHERAKXRIREEERE O
oh IR B BOR B /407,654,000 7T ¢ LD
RATRRG IR 2 RSB (AR T EEE)
73#92,978,00078 7T © AR 17 5804 HiHE 2 FEAY
EHEREERN _E—HNF+-_A=+—HZ
TG RERISINZ 5 2 RIE - BOE RN FIE
LU

Underlying assets Strike Quantities Expiration Date
HmEE TEE BE  IEA
EURO STOXX 50 Index 2,750 to 681 16 January 2015 to 20 March 2015
BN ETFE 55 50 38 8 3,000 points —E-—hF—A+HE

2,750 Bh 2= 3,000 B —E-RAF=A=+H
S&P 500 ETF Trust US$180 to 51,500 16 January 2015 to 20 March 2015
BAELRS00 5 HE S US$200 —E-RF—A+AHE

180 %L E 2003 T —E-hAF=A=+H

At 31 December 2014, financial assets at FVTPL with
carrying amount of HK$1,790,881,000 (2013:
HK$1,393,922,000) have been pledged as security for
short-term loan facilities granted to the Group.

RZE-—NE+-_A=+—B FHEAR
1,790,881,0007% 7T (== — =4 : 1,393,922,000
BIL) ZRATE ARG 2 S REENERE
RERETAEERPREFE
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26.

27.

Bank Balances and Cash

At the end of the reporting period, bank balances and
cash comprised mainly short-term deposits with original
maturity within three months which carry interests at
prevailing market rates ranging from 0.01% to 4.9% per
annum (2013: 0.01% to 3.3% per annum).

26.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currency other than

RITEEREAESE
RBEMEEEE - ROBERASEERRE
BRITTSFIEEH B (FRENFO01EELI
B) (Z2—=%: FHENFOVBEI3E)
KR = (8 A MBI 2 AR o

RITAEFRRESBIE T AERERERDE
BEAINER T E RO

functional currencies of the relevant group entities:

2014 2013

—T—MF —E-=4F

HKS$'000 HK$’000

FHBT FHT

uss ET 1,711,606 2,486,354

RMB AR B 1,345,337 1,234,161
Trade and Other Payables 27. BARIRREAENFKIR

2014 2013

—E-ImF —EF-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHE T FHET

Trade payables FET R 287,361 286,140

Construction payables e T2 275,361 407,476

Concessionaire sales payable FE S SRS E A 1,180,877 1,235,160

Deferred income PRI = 289,483 224,530

Rental deposits received BWHEZS 67,842 65,304

Accrued expenses FEEF S H 248,770 186,946

VAT payable FETIBER 20,720 32,342

Interest payables JER 7B 109,323 110,620

Others Hi 128,668 142,102

2,608,405 2,690,620

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

IATRNIMEHHEE A RNEFIREESR

HZ iR

AN
< 77

7 -

2014 2013

—ZE—-mF —ET—=F

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

0-30 days OHZ=Z30H 225,924 238,868
31-60 days 31HZ60H 54,415 41,351
61-90 days 61HZ=90H 2,298 3,728
Over 90 days #B3%90 H 4,724 2,193
287,361 286,140

The average credit period of trade payables and
concessionaire sales payable is within 45 days from
invoice date. All concessionaire sales payable are aged
within 45 days from invoice date. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

MR RN EBEERIB . FIEER
MBI E T A5 A LAR » A ERFRT
HEHERIAZ RIS AHERH 45 B
AR REERE MR ERIE - R
BRMNFENMEERRAA -
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z  28. Bank Borrowings 28. RITIEE
Q
=
g 2014 2013
5 —'-pmE | T —F
g HK$'000 HK$'000
N FET FAT
>
g Bank borrowings comprised bank loans and IRITBEERIRTTERAERK
- analysed as: WA T2 H7
§ Secured B 4,354,412 4,304,717
3 Unsecured gt - 371,490
o
= 4,354,412 4,676,207
Carrying amount repayable based on BeEHrEERR EZ
contractual repayment dates: FEEEREE :
Within one year* —FRNER* 2,004,388 1,857,774
More than one year, but not exceeding —F 1B BB
two years 1,980,413 720,621
More than two years, but not exceeding MERBREBTBB=F
three years 166,513 1,956,031
More than three years, but not exceeding ZFBEBTBIBIUE
four years 12,460 141,781
More than four years, but not exceeding POFZETBBRF
five years 12,460 -
After five years BB RF 178,178 -
4,354,412 4,676,207
Less: Amount due within one year shown WA AER —E RN E
under current liabilities ZFIE (2,004,388) (1,857,774)
Amount due after one year —F1& 5 H 2 k08 2,350,024 2,818,433
* Bank borrowings amounted to approximately HK$1,268.0 * SRITIE R 4AEE £ 491,268,000,000 0 (=2 —=
million (2013: HK$942.4 million) contain repayment on £ : 942,400,000 7T) ' B BRIEAR BRKEE

demand clause. BIGK -
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28. Bank Borrowings (continued)

—mOFE+=—A=t+—HIEFE

28. $RITfEE (zfé)

Fixed/variable rate borrowings comprise: BEEME, 1ZEEERKE
Carrying amount
REE
2014 2013
—ZT—NmF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
HKS bank loans at HIBOR + 1.22% per annum ABILIRTTER  IREBBRITRERE
(2013: HIBOR +1.22% per annum)™ MEEBI22EFB (T —=%F:
BEBIRITRIZEFRBINFE
122B5F8)® 2,401,920 2,868,960
USS bank loans at London Interbank Offered ELIRITENR - BmBERTTRIZERE
Rate ("LIBOR") + 0.5% per annum to bui S 05EZ0.65E:TE
LIBOR + 0.65% per annum T — = F  WRBERITRIE
(2013: LIBOR + 0.5% per annum)@ ﬁ%ﬂu@%o.sﬂ#@)w 968,600 407,929
Euro bank loans at Euro Interbank Offered BARRITER - REBERITRIZERE
Rate + 0.65% per annum MFEL06SEFFE (=T — =4 :
(2013: LIBOR + 0.5% per annum)? RMBUERTTRIZEIF B INF B
0.5 @‘?rg )‘2' 209,798 346,973
Great Britain Pound bank loans at LIBOR + 0.65% #H4EiR{ITE N « i iRITRIE T A
per annum (2013: LIBOR + 0.5% per annum)? IneE & 0. 651_ R (D2 —=%:
MR ITRIZER EINFE B
05FEFTE)? 4,919 66,669
Singapore Dollar bank loans at Singapore I TIRITE R - I I dRTT
Interbank Offered Rate + 0.65% per annum RIZEFBIMNFEB0.65ETE
(2013: LIBOR + 0.5% per annum)? (ZF—=F LI IRITR 2
WEIMFEBOS5EE)? 12,071 28,493
Japanese Yen bank loans at LIBOR + 0.65% HITIRITER - LMmBURTTRIZE
per annum (2013: LIBOR + 0.5% per annum)® FZEFENMFB0.65ETE
(Z2—=F : ERBIRT
REFENFBEOSEFE)? 72,591 92,320
Other RMB bank loans® HEARKIRITER® 684,513 864,863
Total bank borrowings IRITIEEBE 4,354,412 4,676,207
(1) Repayable in one to two years (2013: one to three years) (‘1 ER—FE2_F(ZT—=F: —FE2=F)R
and interest rates will be repriced every one month to B MAESR—Z=@MAENTE -

three months.

BR—EPEE - MHREE—

EH -

—1{&A

(2)  Repayable in one year and interest rates will be repriced 2)
every week, one month or three months.
(3) Included in RMB bank loans were amounts of

HK$684,513,000 (2013: HK$493,373,000) which were
repayable within three to ten years (2013: four years) and
the loans carried interest with reference to The People’s
Bank of China Standard Loan Rate. The remaining RMB
bank loans at 31 December 2013 carried at fixed interest
rate of 3.5% per annum and repayable within one year.

R=(AREMEE -

ARBRITERE815684,513,0008T(—
T — =4 :493,373,000/87C) 2 EF - AR
7i+ﬁ£(7i7:ﬁ£ PUE) NEE - AR
R FBIASZRBEARRITHE Z & RH
7%%\%%??&?'JT7%%§ R-ZE—=%F+=-A
=+t—8  HHBEMARBRITERAERRF
B35EZEEMERAN—FREE -

-
B
-

Rl e = R e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —ZT—NF+_HA=+—HIEFE

28. Bank Borrowings (continued) 28. HRITEE (H&)
The ranges of effective interest rates of the borrowings EEERMNERENTFEIREE198E(Z
are also equal to contracted interest rates ranging from T—=4F :195FEE2.01E) - JREFTHFEE
1.92% to 1.98% (2013: 1.95% to 2.01%) per annum. @ o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has RIEHEEER  ASEEZ RIEEIRITHRE
undrawn borrowing facilities as follows: FEEWNT :
2014 2013
=F-—mF ZT=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FA&T
Floating rate ZE
— expiring beyond one year —F 155 5,875,598 2,662,143
29. Derivative Financial Liabilities 9. fTESRMER
2014 2013
—E—mF —ET—=F
HKS$'000 HKS$’'000
FHET FAT
Other derivatives (not under hedge accounting): E 474 T A
(TIRIEE HREET) -
Interest rate swaps F) = HA 1,857 1,172
Foreign currency forward contracts SNERHAES X 5,450 11,408
7.307 12,580
Major terms of the interest rate swaps are as follows: TSR BAE F BERT -
Notional amount Maturity Pay fixed Receiving floating
BEDHE ZHA X HREEFEZRE WEGZ BRI 2 2 F &
At 31 December 2013 and 2014
R-B-MER-Z-—=F+=-A=+—H
US$3,000,000 20 May 2021 3.23% LIBOR
3,000,000 % T —E-_—FRA=+H 323 WBERTTRIZEI S

Note: The Group will pay fixed interest on the notional amount
semi-annually and receive floating interest on the
notional amount quarterly based on the interest rate
swaps contracts.

fist - ARBESNEFFREZSEINEEFNEM

BRI AN B RS REEFEEBFE -
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29.

30.

Derivative Financial Liabilities

(continued)
Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts
are as follows:

29. fTEE@AE (F)

SMEEIIG MR

Receiving
Notional amount Maturity Pay fixed floating Exchange rates
FHEEFE W EGF B B
EESH B R =] ZF| = ZFIZ & =&
At 31 December 2014
RZZE—mNF+=ZA=1+—H
Buy US$50,040,617 13 May 2015 1.50% LIBOR US$1: RMB6.155
550,040,617 =T —ET—RF 15E MBERTTRIZER L 13704 6.155 AR
AA+=H
Buy US$49,842,302 6 March 2015 1.20% LIBOR USS$1: RMB6.1193
549,842,302 % T “ET-RF=ZANA 12E WBIBITRERSE  1ETH 61193 AR
At 31 December 2013
RZE—=%+=—A=+—H
Buy US$50,040,617 13 May 2015 1.50% LIBOR US$1: RMB6.155
£ 50,040,617 & 7T —“FT—RHF 15F BBERTTRIZERE 13704 6155 AR
AA+=H

Note: The Group will pay fixed interest on the notional amount
annually and receive floating interest on the notional
amount quarterly based on the foreign currency forward
contracts.

These interest rate swaps contracts and foreign
currency forward contracts can be terminated by the
Group at any time before the maturity date.

Mt AEBERBINEEPAOMBFINEEDE
ZEENSXFFEWMEZSHFBFE -

ANER [ A] AT 21 H
HEAAH -

H A& 1E % 18 i & Z9 A1 sk

Bonds 30. &3
2014 2013
—E—-mEF —F—=
HKS$'000 HK$’000
FHBT FHT
Carrying amount repayable: JEEERMEE -
More than two years, but not more than FBETNBBRT
five years 3,872,528 3,871,494
After five years Bim A F 2,296,940 2,293,982
6,169,468 6,165,476
US$500,000,000 bond carries fixed coupon rate 500,000,000 £ &% - EFE
of 5.25% per annum, payable semi-annually EEFEMEAES25% B¥F
with maturity up until January 2017 IREBE—K HE T —+HF
—AEE AL 3,872,528 3,871,494
US$300,000,000 bond carries fixed coupon rate 300,000,000 E &% - @EFE
of 4.25% per annum, payable semi-annually EEMENMEREL25%  FHF
with maturity up until October 2022 RBE—K  HE-_TZ -
+AREAL 2,296,940 2,293,982
6,169,468 6,165,476

143

Rl e = R e

HEHHDE W



-]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

710z HOday [enuuy  Pe3Wr SBUIPIOH [BUOIIBUISIU| DjAISHT

In January and March 2012, LS Finance (2017) Limited,
the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
concluded public offering of the bonds of
US$350,000,000 and US$150,000,000 respectively
(equivalent to approximately HKS$3,875,000,000 in
aggregate). The bonds carry fixed coupon rate of 5.25%
per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The first
tranche bond, issued at discount, carries effective
interest rate of 5.54% per annum, whereas the second
tranche, issued at premium, carries effective interest
rate of 4.70% per annum. The principal amount of the
bonds issued under the first and second tranche are
repayable 5 years from the date of issue of the first
tranche of the bonds, i.e. January 2017 and
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the
Company.

In October 2012, LS Finance (2022) Limited, another
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, concluded
public offering of the bonds of US$300,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HKS$2,325,000,000). The
bonds carry fixed coupon rate of 4.25% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears. The bond, issued at
discount, carries effective interest rate of 4.43% per
annum. The principal amount of the bonds is repayable
10 years from the date of issue of the bonds, i.e.
October 2022 and unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by the Company.

The purpose of the bonds is to satisfy funding
requirements for the capital expenditures relating to
new department store projects in the PRC. The bonds
are subject to redemption, in whole but not in part, at
their principal amounts, together with interest accrued
to the date of redemption, at the option of LS Finance
(2017) Limited and LS Finance (2022) Limited at any time
in the event of certain changes affecting taxes of the
British Virgin Islands and the Cayman Islands. The Bonds
also contain a provision for redemption at the option of
the bondholders at 101% of the principal amount of
each bond, together with interest accrued to the date
for redemption, upon a change of controlling
shareholder with respect to LS Finance (2017) Limited or
LS Finance (2022) Limited.

30. Bonds (continued) 30.

&% (&)
R-TE——F— A= AEENZ2EWE
A ALS Finance (2017) Limited 2 3 17 9 B &
350,000,000 7T, }2.150,000,0003 T 2 &5 (42
£ (H#)/53,875,000,000#% 7T ) - &5 2 EF
ZEMFEFEKES25%  BEFIF—KF—
HEHAITEERT BERFHEAE554%
ME—PEHANEERET BEREHNERE
470% - F—HEE_MEHFNRSESIUE
—PEFZEITRH RN AFRER  BI=
T—+F—f WARHANEEEEG AR
S i EHEAR o

RZZE——F+A rxEENZENBAFLS
Finance (2022) Limited & ## 77 300,000,000 3
T2 &% (5{E#/52,325,000,0007T) ° &5
ZEFEEmMENMRBL25%  BEEIN—K -
BHEUNEERIT BERFEMNEXEL4L3% - &
FHASKEENES 2 BITAHFTENTF
®BEE - ZT-—F+H WERHAER
AR R AR VEPER o

BTEBNEZENERAETRHEETEE
NAIEEMBRZEARINEST R - BF
AEMHEREMYE2EBHRARHENAS
B ERBUES - LS Finance (2017) Limited #1 LS
Finance (2022) Limited A % 208 @ & 50 M 3F
WHOMBEHZASERAZELD A K EF
B o 34N LS Finance (2017) Limited F1LS
Finance (2022) Limited &91% B% 3% 58 5 (b A9 B
& EEEEATERENGEEZ AR ERBS
fEE AW EMFIEMNI101% ERES o
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A
31. Deferred Tax Liabilities 31. EEHIBEARE Bi
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities NTAAEEBERZFEEEHBEEEUARR B
recognised and movements thereon during the current REFEMBEFENES
and prior years: =
=z
Distributable -
profits of e
PRC i
EIT on fair subsidiaries, f&
Property, value change associates :
plantand of investment and joint
equipment properties LAT venture Total
RRENE FEBAR -
NE BER DAY EE BENRAR
R/ BE FESH BEL¥
ME LEMEH THIEER USRS Fo
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FAT FAEL FAL FAL FAL
(note) (note) (note)
(B 3E) (P3E) (PH3E)
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—A—H 18,198 56,774 204,035 22,841 301,848
(Credit) charge to profitor (1) 31k 51825
loss (note 12) (FF3E12) (1,710) 4,547 (95,485) 20,621 (72,027)
Released upon dividends SRR BB
declared (note 12) (Mz£12) - - - (18,380) (18,380)
At 31 December 2013 RN-—FB—=F+-f
=t+—H 16,488 61,321 108,550 25,082 211,441
Exchange adjustments [ERFE - (1,676) (2,964) - (4,640)
Charge to profit or loss Nk EEzR
(note 12) (B5E12) 25,994 - - 21,879 47873
Released upon dividends BRI E LR
declared (note 12) (BF3E12) - - - (16,705) (16,705)
At 31 December 2014 RZT—F
+=-A=+—*H 42,482 59,645 105,586 30,256 237,969
Note: The amounts represent deferred tax liabilities recognised feE : e RBRRME - WE KRB Z MR E
in relation to accelerated tax depreciation of property, RIIARE 2 EEYHEN AT EZE) 2 BT
plant and equipment, LAT and EIT on fair value changes IR E R S D EFR S 2 FERIEETR I A & -

of investment properties located in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
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31. Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued)
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation of HK$21,879,000 (2013: HK$20,621,000) in
respect of distributable profit of PRC entities
amounting of HK$235,370,000 (2013: HK$206,214,000)
have been provided during the year ended 31
December 2014. At the end of the reporting period, the
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was
HKS$213,628,000 (2013: HK$168,105,000). No liability has
been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$650.6 million
(2013: HK$493.9 million) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of tax losses for both years due
to unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax
losses in Hong Kong may be carried forward indefinitely.
The unrecognised tax losses arising from subsidiaries
operated in the PRC will expire as follows:

31

EEH RS E (&)

RIBREMETE - NF-—A—HE
B 46 A o [ B B8 < ) P R EX 9 1) R 2 AR R AR
BB - R-F—WOF+-—A=+—HILF
£ B E 88 A R AR 21,879,000 T (=
T —=4F : 20,621,000 7T) ATHER Z IEIETH 1A
#%235,370,000/8 7t (—F— =4 : 206,214,000
BT RIEHR - BB R RARD K2 FE
EEAMRFAERUEZRWLERAR/ELA
f& - /213,628,000 jt( — T — = F:
168,105,000;/8 7T) °» sLIA EERIRAEMAE
BN ARNEBEGRIEHERTEER
BEMER caEZRAFETEENERY
5 AR -

REEHRBEER AEBEARPAHIA
& 18 #7650,600,000% jt( = & — = % :
493,900,00078 7T.) Al M IEHE 35 A& 5 H) o R
H &8 M AORBEA TR - St 2 F RS FIHI1
Bt IABEERRERIBEE - FENM
ERIBEEBEGREREE - MAEPELEX
MEARELZ RERTAEBRGEN TIF
D EE

2014 2013

—E-mE —E=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

Tax losses expiring in BEEEIHZE 0 T THT
2014 —T-mEF - 33,653
2015 —E-RF 21,556 30,952
2016 i S 20,951 80,355
2017 —T—tF 23,096 23,096
2018 —T-)\#F 76,161 76,161
2019 —T-NEF 181,498 —
323,262 244,217

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
approximately HK$32.9 million (2013: HK$35.1 million)
tax losses expired.

BHE—ZT-—NF+-A=+—HIEFE &
32,900,000/ 7t ( == — = % : 35,100,000 #
TU) ZBURB R B -
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32. Amount Due to a Non-Controlling

33.

Shareholder of Subsidiaries

The amount is unsecured and interest free. The non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiaries agreed not to

15

demand for repayment within one year from the end

of the reporting period.

Share Capital

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital

during both years are as follows:

33.

[N
BELFRSF  ADAZBRABEFENT -

32. EAMBAR —RFEZRRRZK

2RI RN N e B o B AR Z SRR
RAB TG EREREH KRR —FAEBFE -

Number of
shares Amount
RBEE A
HKS’000
FAT
Authorised: JETE ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each as at R-ZE—=F—f—H -
1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and —E-—=F+-A=+—H
31 December 2014 k=ZZT—WF+=-A=+—H
FREE0.005 78 T2 ik 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREE -
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—H—H 1,664,921,500 8,325
Exercise of share options — ordinary shares of TEERE —SREE
HK$0.005 each 0.005 8 Lz LBk 2,925,000 15
Shares repurchased i=AEdil ) (17,505,500) (88)
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-A=+—H 1,650,341,000 8,252
Exercise of share options — ordinary shares of TEBKE — SREE
HK$0.005 each (note a) 0.0058 T2 i (Ffzta) 2,310,000 "
Shares repurchased (note b) BERl 2 &5 (HREDb) (23,266,000) (116)
At 31 December 2014 R-—ZE—NF+=-—fF=+—H 1,629,385,000 8,147

Notes:

M5t

(@  During the year, 22,000 shares (2013: 433,000 shares) of (@
HKS0.005 each were issued at HK$6.16 per share (2013:
HK$6.16 per share) upon exercise of the 2005 share
option under the 2004 Share Option Scheme (as defined
under note 34) and 2,288,000 shares (2013: 2,492,000
shares) of HK$0.005 each were issued at HK$6.40 per
share (2013: HK$6.40 per share) upon exercise of the

2009 share option under the 2009 Share Option Scheme
(as defined under note 34) of the Company by share
option holders and all these shares rank pari passu with
other ordinary shares of the Company in all respects.

FRARBFRBERERBEATERE-ZT
U 2 BB RT Bl — TR A F AR MR IE
—ETAFZBREEN _SENFHERE
CEZE R34 D REFR616 8T (=%
— =% 8kR6168T) E1T22,000E(=F
— =% : 433,000 %) & J% [ & 0.005 /& 7T 2 fX
P RIZEKR640ET(ZF—=4: &6.40
B T ) E 172,288,000/ ( = T — = £ :
2,492,0000% ) & % T {£0.005 7% 7T 2 B& 17+ PiT
BRERORETEHREARNBEME BT
CICEY: 3

-
-]
N
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33. Share Capital (continued) 33. KA (#7)
Notes: (continued) MisE : (48)
(b)  During the year, the Company repurchased its own O FR - ARERBERFAERE A BRDFEBNT

shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

Total number

710z HOday [enuuy  Pe3Wr SBUIPIOH [BUOIIBUISIU| DjAISHT

of ordinary
shares Price per share Aggregate
repurchased gREE consideration
Month of repurchased Bz EBER Highest Lowest paid
=88 A 17 BAEER 53-1 &K B SEE
HKS HKS HK$'000
BT BT T
February 2014 1,271,500 15.54 15.24 19,499
March 2014 11,258,500 15.48 14.48 168,880
April 2014 5,216,500 16.06 14.94 81,414
May 2014 3,278,500 15.26 14.66 49,263
June 2014 2,241,000 15.12 14.78 33,557
23,266,000 352,613
In prior year, the Company repurchased its own shares REF  ARATRHRERZFIERE AR RO FHEN
on the Stock Exchange as follows: T
Total number
of ordinary
shares Price per share Aggregate
repurchased FREE consideration
Month of repurchased EE 2 EER Highest Lowest paid
=58 A LRt = B85 BIE BEEHE
HKS HKS HK$'000
BT BT Fis
April 2013 6,882,000 17.42 16.92 118,530
May 2013 3,951,000 17.30 15.92 64,892
June 2013 = 3,296,500 17.50 15.88 54,469
September 2013 —E-=FNA 63,000 16.14 16.08 1,017
October 2013 —ZT—=%+A1 3,313,000 16.10 15.66 52,827
17,505,500 291,735
34. Share-Based Payment Transactions 34. REEFRKRS
The 2004 Share Option Scheme —EENFEEKRESE
The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) AARERABE —_ZTTNF=-_A=-+tHRAE
was adopted for a period of 10 years commencing 27 Hi4-4F 2 R kst 2 ([ 5518 ) - IREZET
March 2004. Under the Scheme, the Company may 2 AAFAMAANTREWEB A TR Y
grant options to selected full-time employees and 2RESNEELTERE  UREAQTE
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to 5 o AN - KRB A RIS IRE B/ ISH A A
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the NEIRENBARIZABRER RZAERE
Company may, from time to time, grant share options AR -

to eligible advisors and consultants to the Company and
its subsidiaries at the discretion of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board of Directors”).
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34. Share-Based Payment Transactions

(continued)

The 2004 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point of time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted
and may be granted to any individual in any one year is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders, independent non-
executive directors, or any of their respective associates
(including a discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director or any of their
respective associates) in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HKS5,000,000 must be approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later
than 5 days from the date of offer), upon payment of
HKS1 per option. Options may be exercised at any time
during a period commencing on or after the date on
which the option is accepted and deemed to be
granted and expiring on a date to be notified by the
Board of Directors to each grantee which shall not be
more than 10 years from the date on which the option
is accepted and deemed to be granted. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii)
the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

The 2009 Share Option Scheme

The adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2009
Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the
shareholders of the Company in an extraordinary
general meeting held on 3 March 2009 for a period of
10 years commencing from 3 March 2009 as incentive
or reward for the contribution of the eligible
participants to the growth of the Group and to provide
to the Group with a more flexible means to reward,
remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to
the eligible participants.

34.

REARRXS (&)

“EENFERETS (8
IAREARRRIRERE LA - RIBAF SR
BB AR P R R ) # B TS BAR R RN
RIS fE 2 31T 10% o BAR A AR FIACR
EEME - PMEA—F - sLERER A LA
BN AR 2 BB R B 3T S G BT 2 B B
B TRBEAQAREMKEHEEHTRN
1% BT EEIRR - BIUIFRITEFHEMR
EXRAZHBBA(RERERET  MAMDEX
HMABEEERRB T IFNTTE F R AE(TR
SEEXEZHBEAN)BBARRRAK0N%KEE
#2838 5,000,0008 7T 2 BRHE - TRAZREE AR R
JEFRHLAE o

R 2 BRAEAN R 2 AT ER R (TSR
PEE2 BEIERT S B) AW - BARAREH
BRESZMN1ETT - BEEATREARKRER
EREEASZEREEEESNE S AR AR
mE AR EERS T - HAREAREER
EREBREE ARG TSBBI0F - TEE
MARRERET  BAERORLASMAR
A WTHE  MEERE A D EZ%A
& FHWTE  RIDAXFROHEE=EZ

—EENFERETS
ARARBRRAR-ZZBZNF=ZA=ZHRTZER
FRIAE EHERATBRESZ( _ZEZN
FREERESSD A -—TTNF=ZA=ZRES
e (FRABERZEZEHAREEHEFRED
BRIz B RE - WEALEE AW
SERSEERMEE - R - WHEE KR
HARF o
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Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, the Company
may grant options to (a) any full-time or part-time
employee of the Company and/or any subsidiary; (b)
any directors (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive director) of the Company
and/or any subsidiary; and (c) any consultant or adviser
(whether professional or otherwise and whether on an
employment or contractual or honorary basis or
otherwise and whether paid or unpaid), distributor,
contractor, supplier, service provider, agent, customer
and business partner of the Company and/or any
subsidiary who, at the sole determination of the Board
of Directors, have contributed or will contribute to the
Company and/or any subsidiary.

There is no general requirement on the minimum
period for which an option must be held or the
performance targets which must be achieved before an
option can be exercised under the terms of the 2009
Share Option Scheme. However, the Board of Directors
may offer to grant any options subject to such terms
and conditions in relation to the minimum period of the
options to be held and/or the performance targets to
be achieved before such options can be exercised and/
or any other terms as the Board of Directors may
determine in its absolute discretion.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options which may be granted under the
2009 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 166,860,950 shares, representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 3 March 2009,
the date on which the 2009 Share Option Scheme was
approved by the shareholders of the Company. The
Board of Directors may seek approval by shareholders in
general meeting to renew such limit provided that it
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of approval of the renewed limit.
The maximum aggregate number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme and any other scheme must not exceed
such number of shares as shall represent 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

34. Share-Based Payment Transactions 34. REGEARKRS (&)
(continued)
The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued) —EEhFHERETE (E)

RE-_STNEBRETS AQFARTE
Pt T (@ AR E R, SATAIF B A R (E A2
B RBES O ARRE R RAERHERF
ZEAEE(BERIT  FTTRIBIIEMITE
B) ROREES2ERE CHABHEY
AR R R S AR B B A RIE B B2 AR A
Ko/ SAEARIB B 22 B 2 AR R B P sk B RS (1
MEEREFEALIRTREERER a4k
REBHRHEMEENERERE)  DHEE AL
7 HER - BRI HER - RIE - BPRER
Rt

HRBRAE R AR — ST N FRERETE
GRITEE AT LRSS A B i 2 B SR A ZE
Mz RBAB  WERT —RIUERE - A
EEZSR TEMBRER A RIA B IRR G
- BRREABEREIATTEAMLARTER
Pt 2 RIEEAR K s BER s RBE R
R/ RE G RE G E 2 AL READ IR o

HiTERE - TTNFHEEET S R ARBIE
{A] B A A R T B T 2 T B MR AR A 1T R 2577
Z By 488 - & 5T 11518 18 166,860,950 A% i
o HERARRBRNR _-_ZZNAF=A=H
BITZRRFRARE L BREIE—TTNF
BREASIZEAARBSEHITRAI0% - E=
EARKRERAEG LSRR ZHMENETHEH
REE - HZRBINSHEEMNRBLAZ AR
NAIBEITIRAZ10% « (TERBE -_ZTZNEF
BRI REMNEMASIMEEE TMEAR
TTEZ ARITEBRERETZROEAE - A&
HZTFRBAR RN D ETRAI0% 2K
EAE -
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34. Share-Based Payment Transactions 34. RIGIFRKRS (&)

-
a1
-

(continued)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)
Where options are proposed to be granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or any of their
respective associates, and the proposed grant of
options will result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the date of offer and
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HKS5 million, such grant of options must be subject to
the approval of the shareholders taken on a poll at
general meeting. The connected person involved in
such proposed grant of options and all other connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting in
such general meeting (except that any connected
person may vote against the proposed grant provided
that his intention to do so has been stated in the
relevant circular to the shareholders).

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later
than 5 days from the date of offer), upon payment of
HKS1 on acceptance of the offer. Options may be
exercised at any time during a period to be notified by
the Board of Directors to each grantee which shall not
be more than 10 years from the date of the offer. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
share.

SEENFHEREE (8
R E R BIEE T BRI 12 @ A REHE
MARBEERR  BIYFERTEEIWES
BZEMBMEARTERE £z ALET
EAEER M ERBERE (BROITE &
B R i AR T R 2 BB ) T 2 31T RS BT 2 IR
MBBEFBBERARANEBLH AR HITRA
201% > A BAEGESET B HKRO W
BETH ) #H#85,000,0008 7T - BIZRIE R R %
FTAEBRRKRE DS RZRBIRER R
e B REZIEBRE TR ZBEALIAR
RRRZHAEEMBEBEALTAE LABRRKRS
ERERRE (AT EFEEALHRERY
Ryds MHEAREAHRIINBURR 28
REmEA)

BT 2BREARBL KR ERR (TSR
NELHBHHEESH) AR - NMERBORA
1B - BREANRERESANETZARA
HIF AR T - R EH B HEE T SEG
10F - TEEHARFESRETE 2L R T
Fl=EFpz&eEORTBHART RO KT
B8 ()87 B HI5 IE 2 % B R FHu%k
TE Rl ARF R EE -

Rl e = R e

o

HaNE |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
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34. Share-Based Payment Transactions
(continued)

Detai

|s of specific categories of options are as follows:

34. ROINRKS ()

FrRE SRR A 2 BT

Adjusted
Exercise exercise
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price price
BRERE BHAH BB TS TEE THEfE
HKS HKS
BT BT
Under the 2004 Share Option Scheme
f£2004 FRERRMEATEIT
2005 7.10.2005 7.10.2005-7.10.2008 7.10.2006-26.3.2014 12.32 6.16
—TTREF —ZTRF “ZERFTALHE “ETRFE+AtEE (note 1)
+A+tH T N\E+AtH “ET-mFE=ZA=+~H (MI=E1)
2007C 31.8.2007 31.8.2007-1.10.2010 1.10.2008-26.3.2014 37.00 18.50
—ETEER ZZTLAF “ETHFENA=Z+—HBE Z—ETN\FET+A—HE (note 1)
NA=+—H —T-ZF+A—H “T-mFE=ZA=+H (M=E1)
Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme
fE2009 FRERRMERTEI T
2009 (note 2) 2.2.2009 (note 3) 2.2.2009-7.2.2012 7.2.2010-26.3.2014 6.40 6.40
“ZTNE(MFE2) —ETNF —ZTAFE_A-HE —T-TE_A+HE

ZAZBA(ME3) —ET--%ZA+tH

Notes:

‘N

(2)

(3)

The exercise price had been adjusted upon sub-division
of shares of the Company of HK$0.01 to HK$0.005 on 27
September 2007.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, 20,400,000
share options were newly granted as replacement for the
cancelled share options under option types of 2007A and
2007B and this is accounted for as a modification of the
original share options.

Option subject to approval by independent shareholders
was proposed and granted by the Board of Directors on
2 February 2009. The approval was subsequently obtained
on 3 March 2009, which is the date of grant as defined in
accordance with HKFRS 2.

—E-NE=ZA=-+H
GEX

M EEROR-_ZZTLFAA-TLEAR0IET
FABZE 0.005 B T » IT{EEE KA -

2 BE—ZZEAF+T-RA=1+—HILEFE A2
AT 20,400,000 17 B P4 - AR =T F
tERR-EELFBRERERETEEH
B - WIAMERRERE 2 T AR

B EFERN-_TTAF_A-_BEERRLER
IR R AL 2 AR - BRI IRIBEEM
WEERFE2RATET2REAP-_ZThF=
RA=ZRESHE -
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34. Share-Based Payment Transactions 34. B ITRRZ (&)
(continued)
The following table discloses movements of the TREEAETEEREFFARAQAAERE
Company’s share options held by certain employees b
and directors:
2014 —E—-NEF
Outstanding at Exercised Lapsed Outstanding at
1 January during during 31 December
2014 the year the year 2014
R-E—DmF R-E-IE
-HA—-B +=ZA=+-H
Option type BREEE R TE FRTE FRAXN HARTE
2005 —TERF 22,000 (22,000) - -
2007C T+ER 17,020,000 - (17,020,000) -
2009 —TENF 2,336,000 (2,288,000) (48,000) -
Total FotTs 19,378,000 (2,310,000) (17,068,000) -
Exercisable at end of the year RELA] T -
HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT
\Weighted average exercise price SREFHTEE
per share 17.03 6.40 18.47 -
2013 —E—=F
Outstanding at Exercised Outstanding at
1 January during 31 December
2013 the year 2013
RZE—=F RZZE—=F
—A—H +-A=+—H
Option type BiRERE RARTTIE FRITHE HARTTE
2005 455,000 (433,000 22,000
2007C 17,020,000 - 17,020,000
2009 4,828,000 (2,492,000 2,336,000
Total it 22,303,000 (2,925,000 19,378,000
Exercisable at end of the year PELR 178 19,378,000
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
Weighted average exercise price FRINEFEHITEE
per share 15.63 6.36 17.03

In respect of the share options exercised during the
year, the weighted average closing share price of the

Company immediately before the exercise dates and at

the dates of exercise was HK$14.73 (2013: HK$17.04)
and HKS$14.95 (2013: HK$16.91) respectively.

RENBTERBREMNS @ BHNERBRE
TE A AT — R R BBIRRETT6E B 2 hnfE P g U
BEHRIA14738 (=T —=4 :17.04% 1)

F14.95 8T (ZE—=% :16.9187T) °
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35.

36.

Reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises in the PRC, the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain a
statutory surplus reserve fund. Appropriation to such
reserve is made out of net profit after taxation as
reflected in the statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis
are decided by its board of directors annually. The
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up
prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in
conversion into capital by means of capitalisation.

Disposal of Subsidiaries

(a) Disposal of Li Hua Jia Commercial Building
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (“Li Hua Jia (Tianjin)")
On 31 December 2012, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Tianjin Disposal
Agreement”) with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”) for disposal of the entire equity
interest in Li Hua Jia (Tianjin), at a total cash
consideration of RMB545,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$677,980,000) less all loans,
including principal or interest, outstanding and
owed by Li Hua Jia (Tianjin) to other subsidiaries of
the Company in an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB99,000,000 (equivalent to
HKS$123,156,000) ("Outstanding Loans”) as at the
date of completion, subject to the adjusting
condition as set out below.

Pursuant to the Tianjin Disposal Agreement, the
Group shall reimburse to the Purchaser of an
amount equal to the net current liabilities in the
management account of Li Hua Jia (Tianjin) at the
completion date after repayment of the
QOutstanding Loans and an amount of
approximately RMB4,449,000 (equivalent to
approximately HKS$5,535,000) was paid by the
Group to the Purchaser. Pursuant to a
memorandum entered on 31 December 2012, an
amount of RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HKS2,488,000) representing part of
the consideration payable shall by withheld by the
Purchaser as guarantee deposit and released to
the Group on or before 25 April, 2014 (“Guarantee
Deposit”). The transaction was completed on 25
April 2013 and the final total consideration is
RMB540,551,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKS$672,445,000).

35. f#f#

36.

REMTBEIECE ZABZERIER AR
RlZPBEMBARATEEEAES - BHM
Wz BRI RETENERAREEMBIREKZ

BRIIRALF) -

MABE O REEHEETSESF

RE RERTEEA ARBEBEFE ZER
(WA) > WARERNMEZ T AEBRBEXR -

HEMEAR

(@)

HEMNZEEFE(XB)BRLATTH
E#EKE)D
R-ZZE——F+-_A=+—8 ' A&£H
HM—BUE=HF(EFDREEREE
(RE)MN2BRERTEEGHNT LS
XKEANM]D BESTREAEARE
545,000,000 7t (FH55 52 47 677,980,000 74
TL)BEFBER - BENRR5EKABE
BRFEE(CRFE)RAARHEMHME AR
RIZKEBEASRFE  EHHARKE
99,000,000 7t ( #8 =5 K #9123,156,000 7%
7o) ([ENESK]) » WS T XHEHF
EL A% o

RIBHERREN  AEEEENES
—EXE BERVNEE(RBIRRS
TRA - BERNERER RNEERRBEZ
FRBAGB - MEBREHNARYE
4,449,000 7T, ( #95,535,000/% 7T ) - E &
REEZNGET - RER-_F——F
TZA=T—BRZEEE SORER
A R # 2,000,000t ( 492,488,0007% 7T )
EWELNE  UMERRES - HRES
R -ET-—MFEOAB -+ H BRI
BAEH - WRFHER-_F—=FMA
“THEAEER RREKRESARE
540,551,000 7t (49672,445,000/8 7T) °
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final payment of RMB272,500,000 (equivalent to

BAEAR &&%&NK

RAR K

approximately HK$339,768,000) (the “Final
Payment”) shall be payable to the Group within nine
months from the completion date by the
Purchaser and Guarantee Deposit of RMB2,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,488,000)
representing part of the consideration payable
withheld by the Purchaser shall be released to the
Group on or before 25 April 2014. The Final
Payment with deferred payment term is recognised
at amortised cost with effective interest of 6.0%
per annum and fair value adjustment of
approximately RMB11,734,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$15,376,000) is recognised at the
completion date. The Final Payment was received
on 24 January 2014.

272,500,000 7T (%7339,768, OOO/%TE) #)
RE(HENKDBETAEE - 5
Sh BRFAR-—ZE-—NENA-+HAH
s BA AT # A R #2,000,0007T ( 49
2,488,000/870) M H D R EREFEET
AR o M TR N RIGR 2 ZIRI K
INEBRFRE6%EHKART AR
kAN R #117340007C( Bl 49
15,376,000/ 7T) A FEABER T

KRR SBEEEALR - &ZENRER-F
—POF— A = E -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #R4& & ##H 3& M & () ll
for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE f
54
B
%
=
A
. - - - - R
36. Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued) 36. HEMHEBATR (&) 2
(a) Disposal of Li Hua Jia (Tianjin) (continued) (a) HERZEE(KRE) E )
HK$’000 =
FAT z
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed of: HENEEMBBESIT m
Investment property LEYE 647,920 S
Property, plant and equipment W - BE &EE 12,683 £
Rental and other receivables FEUHE & K B b JE UL SR IE 2,857 5
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRAS 1,995
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEAE (57,520
Other payables and rental deposits received ﬁ‘r@%ﬁmﬁﬁaﬂﬁﬁi} Koa (7,782)
Amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company FEAT AR RIM B A B I8 (123,156)
Net assets disposed of HERFEE 476,997
Gain on disposal HEZ W=
Consideration received and receivable representing: B ERIE L EKAEBRIES :
Receipt in advance in 2012 R-ZT——F e WFEWIE 37,320
Consideration receivable (note) PR EZIE (M) 326,880
Cash consideration received by the Group REBELWH SR BRIE 292,869
657,069
Less: Amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company W FER AR A TN B A FIIE (123,156)
533,913
Net assets disposed of HERFEE (476,997)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of HEmETN D BEEEEDN
the net assets of the subsidiary reclassified MEBARFEEZ
from equity to profit or loss EFtIEN =5 50,819
Gain on disposal H&E 2z s 107,735
Net cash inflow arising on disposal AEEMELEZESRATHE
Cash consideration received by the Group in 2013 RIE—=FAKEEH
B YR RERIE 292,869
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B HEZRITAESR RIS (1,995)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal in 2013 RIEBE—=FAHEMELZ
BERANFE 290,874
Cash consideration received in 2014 AT —NFEWRSNRERIE 342,526
Note: Pursuant to the Tianjin Disposal Agreement, the Mt : MEBHEXREELN B E/Eﬁé%ﬁfcx%
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36. Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

(b)

36. HEMELQR (H)

Disposal of Li Hua Jia (Tianjin) (continued) (@) HERZEE(XZ)E)
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, NAEERAZEEVEREERNA
the fair value of the investment property at the FEER-_ZE——F+ZA=+—HBHK
disposal date approximates the fair value at 31 NEBERE - ETKEENRBRR - 28]
December 2012. The related asset revaluation REZENERNIEBREESEGHHEE
reserve previously recognised in equity amounting 119,961,000/8 7L B B ER BB )m 71
to HK$119,961,000 was transferred to retained
profits upon disposal of the subsidiary.
Disposal of Lakehill Holdings Limited (b) HE&Lakehill Holdings Limited
On 5 July 2013, the Group disposed of its entire R-ZE—=F+tHRH AEBRFLEE
interest in a subsidiary, Lakehill Holdings Limited, A B2 FE B #E A Lakehill Holdings
which holds certain of the Group’s trademark Limited z =588 F B E =75 - B8
license to an independent third party for a cash 4 K 8 &7,375,000% T ( H & B &
consideration of US$7,375,000 (equivalent to 57,220,000 7T) - FEERLEZ BN
HKS57,220,000). The details of the net assets at the BT
date of disposal are as follows:
HKS$000
FET
Royalty receivables e EF B 7,750
Other receivables HoAth i W R IE 45
7,795
Gain on disposal HEZ W=
Consideration received B ERE 57,220
Net assets disposed of HEMNFEE (7,795)
Gain on disposal & 2 s 49,425
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMELEZBEESRATE
Cash consideration REeRERIE 57,220
Less: amount received in 2012 W R TP EkE (7,750)

49,470
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37. Operating Leases 37. KREHY

The Group as lessee AEEEREEA
2014 2013
—ZE-mEF TE—=fF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Minimum lease payments paid under operating HIRIRIE& ST L2 2
leases during the vyear: SRFALFIA -
Other assets Hih&E 583 516
Leasehold land and buildings HE M REF 251,583 168,508
252,166 169,024

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group REE-FT—NF+-_A=1+—HLEFE =K
incurred HK$30,453,000 (2013: HK$109,685,000) EEZEESETEP XN ABE A
contingent rents which was based on certain 35),453,000;‘%73(: = — = F : 109,685,000

percentage of sales. JC) °

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has R EHMAER  AEER T REELEE
commitments for future minimum lease payments HWZFMAEARSERYRB(RREERAS)
under non-cancellable operating leases (fixed rent only) W -

which fall due as follows:

-
gl
N

Rl e = R e

o

HEHHDE

2014 2013

ik —T=%F

HK$'000 HK$’000

FHExT FET

Within one year —F R 217,418 192,899
In the second to fifth year inclusive EFE_EZERF(RIEEEMRT) 923,234 918,987
Over five years TBiE A F 1,189,989 1,459,422
2,330,641 2,571,308

KeHnFEEHAEEEXNEERE L
& E2,329,940,000% o ( — & — = 4 :
2,570,439,000% 7T ) M f£ H Ath & 2 701,00078
TT(ZZT—=4 : 869,000 L) WS -

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its leasehold land and building
amounting of HK$2,329,940,000 (2013:
HKS$2,570,439,000) and other assets amounting of
HK$701,000 (2013: HK$869,000).
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

37. Operating Leases (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for leasing commercial properties and other
assets which represented machineries and rentals
payable are predetermined at fixed amounts except for
certain lease of which contingent rental are charged
based on certain percentage of sales. Leases are
generally negotiated for terms ranging from one to five
years and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one
to two years except the followings:

(@

()

@

Lease of Shanghai Joinbuy Cityplaza by Shanghai
Ongoing Department Store Limited, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, for the period
from 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2024, with
an option to renew for a further 10 years upon the
request from Shanghai Ongoing Department Store
Limited not less than 12 months before the expiry
of the lease terms.

Originally, lease of the Amazon, No. 12 Salisbury
Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon from Hong Kong
Island Development Limited (“Hong Kong Island”), a
related party of the Group (see Note 40(a)(2)), by
Sogo Hong Kong Company Limited (“Sogo HK"), for
the period from 30 September 2005 to 29
September 2020, with an option to renew for a
further 5 years upon the provision of a written
notice by Sogo HK not less than 3 months before
the expiry of the lease terms. In 2012, Hong Kong
Island and Sogo HK mutually agreed to early
terminate the lease in Tsimshatsui, and Sogo HK
agreed to surrender and deliver up vacant
possession on 15 February 2014.

Lease of the Elegance, at Sheraton of Sheraton
Hotel at the junction of Nathan Road and Salisbury
Road, Kowloon by Sogo HK for the period from 15
July 2014 to 14 July 2023.

37.

e (8

REMEREBAA (B)
REBEOFERAEEREREENE READ
BE#S) RNz - MENZESATE
EEBEMSRE BT —LREEEHELOA
R M AERE AT - A —ARIREEH —
ENFHE HEBEERE EMFETE @ IE
AT EHAIRRSN

ARABFE2EWMBRARLBEARAESR
RARFEIZAEBLEEBLBERTESZ
A HEA —FETONFTA-—HEC
ZoNFEANA=+H AEEE-SE
Ht+E BLBEAXBEARAREALE
HEHMERERI AR+ —EARRESR

=E A
AR 2K ©

ER(BEB)EBEERARTSEK(ES)))
Fral L BRI NBEERD BT T EFE125
535 % 2 LM FE40@)(12) - RAFH HI
—ZEERFNAZFTHE_ZTE-_TFAH
AZ+hB  wEEgE—SEHAF 8
S (BB BEEHEHREMA TIOR3
BARERHEEmBEN -R_T——F &
H(BBE)HEEERERAATES])
EHEBRAKRIELDPBE ALY R
2R (BEB)RBER _ZET—NE_A+H
AEZIEEE -

S (B RIS A BN EEBEUE LR
TEMBRRCERBBAE2EN R
Z-NELATHEEE-Z-_=F+H
TEH o
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37. Operating Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

38.

37. &EMRH A
FEEEREBA

NHREHRGEER  AREERBEFFTONA
BREMOFBELT

2014 2013
—E—-mF —F—=
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
Within one year —F R 84,335 85,659
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF (BIEEEME) 115,858 113,738
Over five years B AF 1,842 2,034
202,035 201,431
Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from HO—RIZHERE —E=RAFWHE -
one to five years.
In addition, the Group had contracted with its pEAN - AREB B H T EEMIZ T EME &

concessionaires to receive contingent rentals based on

the concessionaires’ turnover for terms ranging from #J o

one to two vears.

BUREAESITIFHRPA —ERFZA

Capital Commitments 38. EAAKIE
2014 2013
—=E—-mF —E—=%F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of HEHEEAWE  HELEEL
property, plant and equipment and property WERRIBE 2 EARX
development project:
— Authorised but not contracted for — EEEMRETA 4,085,400 6,460,900
— Contracted for but not provided in the — BRIERR
consolidated financial statements iR S TR R AR 1,616,200 192,700
5,701,600 6,653,600

159
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39. Pledge of Assets 39. EEKH
At 31 December 2014, the Group has pledged certain R-IZE—NE+-_A=+—H AXEBKE
leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong with carrying M & £A1,369,900,000/ 0 ( —Z & — =4 :
values of HK$1,369.9 million (2013: HKS$1,414.2 million), 1,414,200,000 8 L) LR BB 2 B THE TR
together with certain shares of the Company’s BT EREARQRWNBRRE TRGIER  EA
subsidiaries, to secure the available banking facilities of & B ERTT A] A HY B & 58 4,065,900,000 7%
HK$4,065.9 million (2013: HK$4,533.0 million) granted to o (=ZF—=4 : 4,533,000,000%7T) 2 8 -
the Group.
Certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment in AEBMAPBEKYEE - BEREERTH - 5
the PRC and prepaid lease payments with carrying value B AR EE #72,694,200,000/8 T ( —E— =4 :
of approximately HK$2,694.2 million (2013: HKS2,730.3 2,730,300,0007% 7T ) } BR M 16 4,330,100,000 7%
million) and HKS$4,330.1 million (2013: HK$673.6 million), T (ZZ—=4 : 673,600,000/ 7T ) LAFE R4 A
respectively, have been pledged to secure loan facilities R #3,040,000,000 7T ( #T & #73,787,800,000 %
in the amount of approximately RMB3,040 million L) (ZZF—=% : AR%650,000,0007T (&
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,787.8 million) (2013: #7832,700,000/87T)) 2 BEFREBEE o LI - KIBR
RMB650.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$832.7 18 /41,790,900,000 8 70 2 2 A FEFF AB &
million)). In addition, financial assets at FVTPL with 2 e®AE(ZT—=%:1,393,900,000% 7T )
carrying value of approximately HK$1,790.9 million A HR49255,000,00055 7T (4875 741,976,300,000
(2013: HK$1,393.9 million) have been pledged to secure ) (—ZE—=4F : 155,000,000 7T (L8 E %
loan facilities in the amount of approximately US$255.0 1,201,300,000787C)) EFR @A 7E -
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,976.3 million)
(2013: US$155.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$1,201.3 million)).
40. Related Party Disclosure 40. EEAEATHE
(a) Transactions @ x5
During the year, the Group had entered into the FAAEEGHENTAEBEATET
following significant transactions with the THEARRS :
following related parties.
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Nature of related parties transactions BEREATHNREME
(i) Rental and management fee paid to Shanghai BF EENAWTELSERAR
Joinbuy City Plaza Co., Ltd. (“Property JV") (MMELECE) Z2HE R
(hote 1) EEE (1) 224,803 246,394
(i) Loan interest income received from Property JV ¥ 48 A% WH 2z &R
(note 1* FBUA (HIEE1) 3,561 3,576
(i Loan interest expenses paid to Property JV MMERELESINZ
(hote N* EFRF S (HE1)* 839 592
(iv)  Concessionaire income received from HMAXBUEEBER AT
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited and REMBAR(AARER)
its subsidiaries (“CTF Group”) (note 3) Wz ST EEER (ME3) 47,330 48,333
(V) Rental, vetting fee, air-conditioning charges MEEXNzHEE  EHER -
and management fee paid to Hong Kong Island =& R EEE ([f:532)
(note 2) 14,442 73,998
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40. Related Party Disclosure (continued)

Transactions (continued)
Notes:

(a)

(b)

(&)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Property JV is a joint venture in which the Group
has a 50% interest.

Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-tung and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun,
Henry, directors of the Company, have control over
Hong Kong Island. As such, Hong Kong Island was a
related party of the Group. Hong Kong Island was
an associate of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited
who held 50% equity interest in Real Reward, the
then controlling shareholder of the Company. As
such, Hong Kong Island was a connected party of
the Company and the transactions constituted
coTnected party transactions under the Listing
Rules.

Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-tung and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun,
Henry, directors of the Company, have control over
CTF Group. As such, CTF Group is a related party of
the Group. CTF Group is an associate of CTF
Enterprises who has 50% indirect interest in Real
Reward, a substantial shareholder of Lifestyle
Properties (a listed subsidiary of the Group), and is
therefore a connected person of the Group. As
such, the transactions constituted connected party
transactions under the Listing Rules under the
Listing Rules.

At 31 December 2014, concessionaire sales payable
included amounts HK$41,823,000 (2013:
HK$45,961,000) aged within 30 days due to CTF
Group. The amount was trading in nature and
related to payables arising from concessionaire
sales. These trading balances are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable according to the
terms of the concessionaire dealership agreement.

These transactions constitute connected
transactions but are exempted from complying
with the disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules.

compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of executive directors during
the year was determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
the individuals and market. Details of which
together with the other 4 highest paid
management personnel are disclosed in note 14
above.

41. Retirement Benefits Schemes
Hong Kong
The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme
under Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(“ORSO Scheme”) and Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme ("MPF Scheme”).

For members of the MPF Scheme, both the Group and
the employee contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HKS$25,000 with effect from 1 June 2013 and revised to
HK$30,000 with effect from 1 June 2014 for the MPF
ordinance. No forfeited contribution was available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at 5% of the
employee’s basic salary.

40. BEEAEALTHKE (&)
%5m®
5 :

a1.

(a)

(b)

(1

(2)

7%$§l$z&ﬁ50%%‘

SR - R AL
‘MEE* ﬁﬁLAE 5 Hﬂﬁ

¥ER TZHW%/\ va ﬁ%*ﬁﬁ&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2014 = =—Z—WNFE+_—_A=+—HILFE

a1.

42.

Retirement Benefits Schemes a1.
(continued)

PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by the respective local governments in relevant
jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute and
recognise a specified percentage of payroll costs to the
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligations of
the Group with respect to these schemes are to make
the specified contributions and recognise the respective
retirement pay in accordance with terms set out in the
schemes and relevant jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the
above-mentioned schemes amounted to approximately
HK$19,259,000 (2013: HK$21,281,000).

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries a2.
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the details of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place/Date of incorporation/

BHEREE (F)

FE
AEBEFENETIHEMEBEEERD
R 7 BT E (R B R B IR R KR A ET B Y
RE - REBAERBIHERTIERANNIETE
DB EIN BB BEF - NEEIE LT
B —MEBREHEEHRLBRIZRBTE
FrIEMGERMAE R AEERMNER ZBBE
KRIE -

B Ll A EER M EIP T ABRENE
BN B P48 5E 49 519,259,000 T (— B —=
£ 121,281,000 7T) ©

FTEMEARFE
R-_TE—MER_FT—=F+=-A=+—8"
ARREEFE 2 EEZMBRAAFBENAT

establishment Issued and fully paid Attributable equity interest
Name of company and operation share capital/registered capital of the Group (note a) Principal activities
BlEAEES
RAER DR e LB H DROIRES/FRBA REBEERAES (Hia) TEEH
2014 2013 2014 2013
“2-mfF “I=F —E-IF —3-=E
Ample Sun Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
HREEARAR 17 August 2007 10,000% 7T 1000057 REER
R
ZEREE\ATLA
Congenial Company Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  General trading and
24 April 1981 10,000,000/&7% 10,000,000 T property holding
B —REIRNERE
-AN\-ENAZ+TA
Eastlord Development Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property holding and
MEREBRAR 21 August 1987 500,000 7T 500,000 leasing
B NEREREE
“AMEENAZT-B
Everwin Worldwide Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 100% 100% Property leasing
XERHBRAR 17 November 2000 28T 2B NERE
“2PRFL-AtiR
Fine Shine Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 100% 100%  License holder
ERERAR 11 September 2003 2T 2B FHERBA
ZEECENATH
Forceworld Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property holding
MEREBRAR 15 July 1988 500,000 500,000 ES ]
- \ELATER
Future Develop Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss3 U3 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong LES 3ET RERR
12 December 2003
EEEMRES /A
i 2 e
Clory Line Management Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Provision of property
BEERERAT 5 September 1995 500,003 500,00077 security and
¥ management services
“AMEFAAER RENZRZREBRTH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #R4& & ##H 3& M & () 7
for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE "
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42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 42. FEMBEARFEE) A
(continued) l
Place/Date of incorporation/ —
establishment Issued and fully paid Attributable equity interest =
Name of company and operation share capital/registered capital of the Group (note a) Principal activities —
EMAIREELY us}
ARER SARERER L A BRTRES/FREA REBEERRES (M) TEER &
2014 2013 2014 2013 &
—Z2-mE Ik “E-mE —E--F %
Grand Kinetic Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
2EERAT 7 February 2001 BT 28T NERAREE
ik
—FZ-5-f+H
Lifestyle Properties Cayman slands/Hong Kong HK$41,911,400 HK$41,911,400 59.56% 59.56%  Investment holding
HESEZRARAR 5 January 2012 419118007 491140057 RERR
BEHe/Eh
“2-Z5-A1H
S Finance (2017) Limited British Virgin Islands/ us$1 Us$1 100% 100%  Financing
Hong Kong 137 1%L BERH
' November 2011
REgRREE/BE
“3—%+-A-A
1S Finance (2022) Limited British Virgin Islands/ us$1 U1 100% 100%  Financing
Hong Kong 137 (e BEZH
27 September 2012
REgEREE/BE
ZE-ZERAZHER
Pacific Trump Development Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
MEREERAA 6.July 1995 287 28T NERARHEE
E#
“ANEEEARA
Public Might Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100% 100%  Property investment and
BEERAA 30 August 1984 100037 1,000/ provision of building
Bk management services
-n\BENAZTH NERERREAE
ERRE
Ranson Kwok Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Building management
5 October 1993 1,000,000% 70 1,000,000% 7 and club operator
B REEEREMLE
-ANZET+ATRR
Sogo Hong Kong Company Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 HK$4,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
Sk (BB EEBRARA 23 September 1983 4,000,000% 7T 4,000,000% 7 TEEK
B3
-hN\ZERAZTZR
Superlite Limited British Virgin Islands/ us$1 Us$1 100% 100%  Property holding
Hong Kong 147 157 S
3 April 2001
REERREE/BE
ZZT-ENA=H
LEAREEARAF PRC 1$$12,000,000 612,000,000 65% 65% Retaling business
(Shanghai Ongoing Department 12,000,000% 7 12,000000%7T TEEK
Store Limited)
ZEIRELACHAA
Wingold Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
REERAA 20 April 2007 10,0007 100007 REARK
E#
ZE2ERLENACTA
HMREEEEXERAR" PRC RMB2,500,000,000 RMB2,500,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
23 April 2012 ABR#2,500,000,0007 | AK%2,500,0000007 RERR
PEARANE
“Z-ZEMAZTZR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #=& B3R MsE (&)
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42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 42. S EMHBE A RFE (&)
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(continued)

Place/Date of incorporation/
establishment

Issued and fully paid

Attributable equity interest

Name of company and operation share capital/registered capital of the Group (note a) Principal activities
EAEES
Pk DREERE LB H BRARES/FRRA REBEERAES (Hifa) TEER
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE —5-=f “E-IE —5-=F
HEfaRmEARAT PRC RMB1,500,000 RMB1,500,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
31 March 2012 AB#1,500,000 70 ARE1,500,0007 RERR
PEARKAE
“5--FZR=t+-R
BREREFARAE™ PRC RMB710,090,392 RMB710,090,392 100% 100% Retailing business
 December 2006 AR¥T00903927 | ARH710,0903927 TERK
PEARKAE
ZE5,FTZR-A
BRREEFARAE™ PRC 15$89,990,000 15574,990,000 50.56% 59.56%  Property holding
12 March 2007 89,990,000 % 74,990,000% 7T NERE
PEARLNE
“ES+F=AfCA
HiEBs EN ERAR PRC RMB600,000,000 RMB600,000,000 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
Lifestyle Plaza (Suzhou) ' March 2007 AR600,000000% | AR 600,000,007 NELERAEE
Co., Limited PEARLAE
Z53+F=f-A
AREE BN BERAR PRC 1S512,000,000 15$12,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
17 January 2008 12,000,000 %70 12,000,000% 7 TEEK
PEARLNE
“EE\E-ATLA
MEBE(KE) BRAR™ PRC 1S$45,000,000 15$45,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
9 October 1993 45,000,000 %70 45,000,000% 7t TEEH
PEARKAE
“M=ETANR
SEHE(ER)BRAR™ PRC RMB225,000,000 RMB225,000,000 59.56% 59.56%  Property holding
Lifestyle Plaza (Qingdao) Co., Limited 31 December 1995 AR#2250000007 | AKH225000,0007T HESE]
PEARKAE
-ANEETZA=1-A
REEFIEREERAR™ PRC 15$18,000,000 15$18,000,000 59.56% 59.56%  Property holding
16 October 1995 18,000,000% ¢ 18,000,000 %7 NERE
PEARLAE
“NMAEFTATAA

* a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.
o wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC.

Notes:

(@) Lifestyle Properties is directly held by the Company. Other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group

which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors of the Company, result in

particulars of excessive length.

Y RMERYZ RN ALY

= RRERSZ2NELE

B -

@ FEBERAAATEERE  LHHEBAT
AR ARSI -

LRI RINHEEBREBTEAEERER
BEZMBAR -EZRR RHAGHEBR
AIAEHSYRFEBE -
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As described in note 1, during the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group had completed the Spin-off
Listing of Lifestyle Properties. Upon completion of the
Spin-off Listing, the Group’s interest in Lifestyle
Properties Group had reduced from 100% to 59.56%
and the Group continued to have control over Lifestyle
Properties Group. As a result of the Distribution, an
amount of HK$393,809,000 (being the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the net assets of
Lifestyle Properties Group) had been transferred to
non-controlling interests. In addition, as a result of the
Public Offer and Placing (as defined in the Prospectus),
an amount of HK$314,506,000 (being the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the net assets of
Lifestyle Properties Group) had been transferred to
non-controlling interests and the difference of
HKS$147,058,000 between the increase in the non-
controlling interests and the net proceeds from the
Public Offer and Placing had been debited to retained
earnings and exchange reserve in the amount of
HKS$142,705,000 and HK$4,353,000, respectively.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the none of the Group’s subsidiaries that has non-
controlling interests are material to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and therefore, the
financial information in respect of those subsidiaries
that has non-controlling interests are not presented.

MK AEER —FE—=F+ A
=t+—BHIEFEERKADHFNEBHE LT - 1
DI ETIEMR - AER BRI 8 3 AR [ Y A
R 100% 3 > £ 59.56% » A% B EBEES
MEHESBENZEHE 5K 2 1&
393,809,000% 7T (BN £t fll 315 T 48 s = &£
FFEEREE) DEEBB R HERER - It
S RRBEREEZR(EXRARE)
314,506,000% 7T (B & (5 7 4@ b 2= SR 1) &
EREE) CAB R SFERER - MIFERER
MEBENEAHAEEREEMBIRFRER
147,058,000,8 7T E 5 Bl 0K OR B s 1| 2 BEE 34 i
& - &85 5l /142,705,000 7% 7T & 4,353,000
BT e

RAREEFRR  AEHIWRE HEREHMBR
REBASAPE GEIFEREaZEAR
B BULERZENB AR ZMBERNILIZAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #R4& & ##H 3& M & () ll
for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE f
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42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 42. XEHBRARFE (&) A
(continued) B
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has REEHHAR AR F 2 MM E A R ¥ AR
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A BLSEEATE REOPZENBLARERS =
majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong and RABGEE - ZEWB AR B EBE &
the PRC. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are T B
summarised as follows: E
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries g
FEEK FTERE I MEATRE
2014 2013
—E—mF —E-=F
Restaurant operator Hong Kong 2 2
BRELE B
PRC 1 1
i
3 3
Securities investment Hong Kong 7 5
FHEE BE
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43. Statement of Financial Position of the 43. RN BRI R
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company \ )
Information about the statement of financial position RmEMREER - ARRMBMARARERE
of the Company at the end of the reporting period ¥E
includes:
2014 2013
—E-mE —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Non-current asset EMBVEE
Interests in subsidiaries LN 774,925 774,925
Current assets MENAE
Other receivables HoAth e W RIE 941 1,449
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEBERZEMEE
profit or loss - 9,307
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a) FEURT B A R A (fata) 5,792,443 5,817,224
Bank balances and cash RITEGFRRS 69,827 280,991
5,863,211 6,108,971
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables H b B A SRR 2,481 2,377
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note a) FERTMT B A T3k E (Mt a) 4182,813 4,486,833
Tax payable FEEFHIR 197 118
4,185,491 4,489,328
Net current assets MEVEEFE 1,677,720 1,619,643
2,452,645 2,394,568
Capital and reserves B R
Share capital R A 8,147 8,252
Reserves (G 2,444,498 2,386,316
2,452,645 2,394,568
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for the year ended 31 December 2014 #E=—Z—MF+—_A=+—HItFE

43. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (continued)

43. AR BRI FR ()

Movement of the reserves of the Company is as follows: RARFEESSHWT -
Capital  Share-based
Share  redemption payment Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
EXERE [iSRNEN
R EE e ikt RE A Fohy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHL FAT FHL FAT FHL
At 1 January 2013 WZE-=F—-H—-H 5157 349 151,424 3,135,667 3,292,597
Profit and total comprehensive AEEREFREZERA
income for the year FekS] - - - 516,275 516,275

Share repurchase R E

— premium on repurchase of shares  — BRI (D 2 & B (14,743) - - (276,904) (291,647)

— transfer — - 88 - (88) -

Exercise of share options SR EET(E 21,661 - (3,060 - 18,601

Dividends paid BIRARE - - - (894,498) (894,498)

Distribution in specie (note b) EWHR (D) - - - (255,012) (255,012)

At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=F+-A

=t+—H 12,075 437 148,364 2,225,440 2,386,316

Profit and total comprehensive AERRENREZERA

income for the year ke - - - 1,335,175 1,335,175

Share repurchase B &R

— premium on repurchase of shares  — BEIR(H 2 HE (29,110 - - (323,387) (352,497)

— transfer — g - 116 - (116) -

Exercise and lapse of share options  BERRHEETT(E 17,035 - (148,364) 146,096 14,767

Dividends paid BIRARE - - - (939,263) (939,263)

At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NFE+=A

=t+—H - 553 - 2,443,945 2,444,498

Notes: B 5

a.  The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured, a. Y (A B R RREREER 28R
interest-free, and repayable on demand. AN BEREEE -

b.  Pursuant to the Distribution, the distribution in specie is b RIEDIK - 1RO FE S FIE 2 R AR OR R
recognised at the proportionate share of the interest in R A B Y D IR IER MR B & FIF0ER ©
Lifestyle Properties in the statement of financial position
of the Company and debited to retained profits.

c. Under the Company Law (2009 Revision) of the Cayman c. RIZF S BLH A FNA(20090E7]) - AR 2

Islands, the share premium of the Company is available

for distribution or paying dividends to shareholders

subject to the provisions of its memorandum or articles
of association and provided that immediately following
the distribution of dividends, the Company is able to pay

its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business. The Company’s reserve available for distribution
as at 31 December 2014 consisted of share premium of

nil (2013: HK$12,075,000) and retained profits of
HK$2,443,945,000 (2013: HK$2,225,440,000).

R ERBEE AR AMER RS AEALZ 5
E o DIRTRESKIEARBABRRIRE - HE
BERRE D IRTE - ARRIBAENIFERBE
XEBEPHBIEE N _E—HEFE+_A
=+—8  AQAERA RS IR H B K
B E( - Z — =4 :12,075000% T ) &
1R 5% M #)2,443,945,0008 T ( —ZE— =4 :
2,225,440,000 7 7T) 48AK ©

-
()]
N

Rl e = R e

HEHHDE W
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

EFEEEHE

Results E
For the year ended 31 December HE+-_A=1+—HIFE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NF T —T——fF —T——F —T-ZF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FAT FAT FAT FEL
(Restated)
(E3)
Turnover L] 5,969,740 5,955,335 5,523,443 5,131,950 4,317,465
Profit attributable to owners NG 2PN L
of the Company vl 2,143,994 2,448,247 2,057,461 1,867,170 1,407 534
Earnings per share (HK cents) FRRAEF (GBL)
— Basic — H AR 1311 147.8 1235 11M11.3 83.9
— Diluted —E 1311 147.6 1231 110.3 83.4
Total dividends per share Bk 8%
(HK cents) () 59.1 591 494 449 337
Assets and Liabilities EERAE
At 31 December ®W+=—A=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mF “T-=F —T——fF —T——fF —ZE-ZF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FTERT FET FET FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Total assets BERE 26,847,895 26,715,998 24,598,805 18,581,349 13,872,956
Total liabilities BELE (13,858,982) (14,452,228) (14,116,780) (9,472,410 (5,969,902)
Net assets EEFE 12,988,913 12,263,770 10,482,025 9,108,939 7,903,054
Non-controlling interests FEIE R AR R M 2 (1,886,546) (1,799,205) (933,474) (806,526) (686,170)
Net assets attributable to YNSIE Y PN L
owners of the Company EEFE 11,102,367 10,464,565 9,548,551 8,302,413 7,216,884
Net assets per share (HKS) BREEFEBT) 7.97 7.43 6.30 5.46 4.71
Net assets per share attributable A )% A AL
to owners of the Company (HKS)  GRREEFE(ET) 6.81 6.34 5.74 498 430
Number of shares issued BEIRHEE 1,629,385,000 | 1,650,341,000 1,664,921,500 1,667,513,500 1,678,985,000
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